WEDNESDAY

W ez %

HE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE NoO 4957 oF 2010

'“‘ £RY DIVISION
LOMPANIES COURT

THE HONOURABLE MR JUSTICE SMITH
17 August 2010
IN THE MATTER OF

EBT MoBILE CHINAPLC

-and -

IN THE MATTER OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

18/08/2010 AND CHANCERY CHAMBERS
COMPANIES HOUSE THE RE-REGISTRATION AS A PRIVATE COMPANY

SN

UPON THE ADJOURNED CLAIM FORM dated 15 June 2010 (the "Claim Form") of the above-
named EBT Mobile China PLC (the "Company") whose registered office 1s situate at Phoenix
House, 18 King Willlam Street, London, EC4N 7HE

AND UPON HEARING Counsel for the Company
AND UPON READING the said Claim Form and the evidence

AND UPON EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited and EBT Digital Communications Retail
Group by Counsel for the Company being its Counsel for this purpose, submitting to be bound by
the scheme of arrangement hereinafter sanctioned (the "Scheme”) and to execute and do all
such documents and or things as may be necessary or desirable to be executed or done by 1t for
the purpose of giving effect to the Scheme

THIS COURT HEREBY SANCTIONS the Scheme set forth in the Claim Form and in the first
Schedule hereto

AND THIS COURT ORDERS that the reduction of the capital of the Company from £269,756 34
to £0 resolved on and effected by a special resolution passed at a General Meeting of the
Company held on 27 July 2010 be and 1s hereby confirmed in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "2006 Act")

AND THIS COURT approves the statement of capital set forth in the second Schedule hereto
AND IT IS ORDERED that this Order and a copy of the Scheme be produced to the Registrar of

Companies and that an office copy hereof be delivered to him together with a copy of the sad
statement of capital




AND THIS COURT AUTHORISES pursuant to Sections 6561(1) and 651(2) of the 2006 Act the
re-registration of the Company as a pnvate company without it having passed the special
resolution required by the 2006 Act AND DIRECTS that in connection with such re-registration
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company be altered as set out in the third
Schedule hereto

AND IT IS ORDERED that the registration by the Registrar of Companies of this Order (so far as
it confirms the reduction of capital of the Company) and of the said statement of capital be
published once in The Times newspaper within 21 days after such registration

Dated 17 August 2010




THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

PART 1 OF THIS DOCUMENT COMPRISES AN EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 897 OF THE COMPANIES ACT

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you are recommended to seek
your own financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant or independent financial adviser who, if you are taking advice in the United
Kingdom, 1s authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or from anogther
appropnately authorised independent financial adviser if you are taking advice in a territory
outside the United Kingdom

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your EBT Shares, please send this document and
the accompanying Forms of Proxy at once to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker,
bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was eflected, for transmission to the
purchaser or transferee However, such documents should not be forwarded or transmitted, in
whole or In part, (n or into any jurisdiction If to do so would constitute a wolation of the relevant
laws of such junsdiction If you have sold or transferred pan of your halding of EBT Shares, please
consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was efiecled

The distnbution of this document in jurisdictions other than the United Kingdorm may be restncted
by the laws of those junsdictions and therefore persons into whose possession this document
comes should inform themselves about, and abserve, any such restrnctions Failure to comply with
any such restrichons may constitute a viclation of the secunties laws of any such junsdiction

EBT Mobile China PLC

(Incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985, with Registered Number 4654471)

Recommended proposal
for the introduction of a new holding company domiciled in the Cayman Islands
by means of a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006
and
Notices of Court Meeting and General Meeting

Your attention 1s drawn to the letter from the Chairman of the Company, which also compnses an
explanatory statement in complance with section 897 of the Companies Act, set out in Part 1 of
this document This Part 1 explains the Scheme and contans the unanimous recommendation of
the Directors that you vote in tavour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting and In favour of the
Special Resolution to be proposed at the General Meeling

Notices of the Court Meeting and the General Meeting, each of which will be held at the offices of
Hogan Lovells International LLP, Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on 27 July
2010, are set out at the end of thus document The Court Meeting will start at 300 pm and the
General Meeting at 330 pm ({or as soon thereafter as the Court Meeling shall have been
concluded or adjourned)

The action to be taken in respect of the Meetings 1s set out on page 4 and also in paragraph 16
of Part 1 of this document Shareholders will find accompanying this document a white Form of
Proxy for use in connection with the Court Meeting and a blue Form of Proxy for use in connection
with the General Meeting Whether or not you intend to attend the Meetings in person, please
complete and sign each of the Forms of Proxy in accordance with the instruchions printed thereon
and return them to the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, as soon as possible and, in any event, so as to be received not later
than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the time apponted for the relevant Meeting If
the white Form of Proxy for the Court Meeting s not returned by the above time, it may be
handed to the Chairman of the Court Meeting before the start of the Court Meeting and will stit be
valld However, in the case of the General Meeting, unless the blue Form of Proxy i1s returned by
the tme mentioned in the instructions printed thereon, 1t will be nvaid

The completion and return of a Form of Proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting in
person at the Court Meeting or the General Meeting or any adjournments thereof, f you so wish
and are so entitled




IMPORTANT NOTICE

The distnbution of this document n junisdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restricted
by the laws of those junsdictions and therefore any persons who are subject to the laws of any
junsdiction other than the United XKingdom should inform themselves about, and observe, any
applicable requirements Any failure to comply with the restnctions may constitute a violation of the
secunties laws of any such junsdiction This document does not constitute an offer or an mvitation
to purchase or subscribe for any securities or a solcitaton of an offer to buy any secunties
pursuant to this document or otherwise In any junsdiction in which such offer or solicitation 1s
unlawful This document has been prepared for the purposes of complying with English {aw and
the information disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been disclosed if this
document had been prepared in accordance with the laws of any junsdiction outside England

The New Shares have not been and will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securihes Act”) or under the secunties laws of any state of the Unied States
Neither the US Secunties and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) nor any US state securiies
commission has reviewed or approved this document or the Scheme or the New Shares Any
representation to the contrary 1s a cnminal offence in the United States

Notice to New Hampshire residents

Neither the fact that a registration statement or an application for a licence has been filed
under this chapter with the state of New Hampshire nor the fact that a secunty is effectively
registered or a person Is licensed in the state of New Hampshire constitutes a finding by
the secretary of state that any document filed under RSA 421-B i15 true, complete and not
misleading Neither any such fact nor the fact that an exemption or exception is available
for a security or a transaction means that the secretary of state has passed in any way
upon the merits or qualifications of, or recommended or given approval to, any person,
security, or transaction. it 1s unlawful to make, or cause to be made, to any prospective
purchaser, customer, or client any representatton inconsistent with the provisions of this
paragraph.

The statements contained in this document are made as at the date of this document, unless
some other time 15 specified in relation to them, and service of this document shall not give rse to
any implcaton that there has been no change in the facts set forth in this document since such
date

Nothing contained in this document shall be deemed to be a forecast, projection or estimate of the
future financial performance of the Company or the Group except where otherwise stated

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains certain forward looking statements with respect to the financial condition,
results of operations and business of the Company or the Group, NewHoldCo and BVICo and
certain plans and objectives of the boards of directors of the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo
These forward looking statements can be dentified by the fact that they do not relate to historcal
or current facts Forward looking statements often use words such as “anlicipate”, “target”,
“expect”, “"estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “goal”, “beheve”, “will”, “may”, “should”, “would”, “could” or
other words of similar meaning These statements are based on assumptions and assessments
made by the boards of directors of the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo in the light of ther
expenience and ther perception of histoncal trends, current conditions, expected future
developments and other factors they believe appropnate By ther nature, forward locking
statements involve nsk and uncertainty and the factors described in the context of such forward
looking statements in this document could cause actual results and developments to differ
matenally from those expressed in or implied by such forward looking statements

Should one or more of these nisks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions
prove Incorrect, actual results may vary matenally from those descnbed in this document The
Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo assume no oblgation to update or correct the information
contained n this document

CURRENCIES

(LTS LENNTY

All references to “pounds”, “pounds Sterling”, “Sterhng”, “€", “pence”, “penny” and “p” are to the
lawful currency of the United Kingdom and all references to “US dollars”, “$”, "US$" and “cents”
are to the lawful currency of the United States




EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Event
Latest time for lodging Forms of Proxy for
(a) Court Meeting (white form)
(b) General Meeting (blue form)
Veting Record Time
Court Meeting®
General Meeting®

Count Hearing (to sanction the Scheme and confirm the
reduction of capial invalved in the Scheme)

Scheme Record Time

Effective Date of the Scheme

Time and/or date

300pm on 23 July 2010
330pm on 23 July 2010’
600pm on 23 July 2010
300pm on 27 July 2010
27 July 2010°

17 August 2010*
600 pm on 16 August 2010*

18 August 2010

Unless otherwise stated, all references in this document to times are to London times.

pry

Please see “Action to be taken” on page 4

2 The Court Meeting and the General Meeting will both be held at the offices of Hogan Lovells International LLP, Atlantic House,

Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on 27 July 2010

3  Tocommence at 330 pm or, if later, iImmediately after the conclusion or adjournment of the Court Meeting
4 These times and dates are indicative only and will depend, among other things, on the date upon which the Court sanctions the

Scheme Any changes to these times and dates will be notified 1o Shareholders

3




ACTION TO BE TAKEN

This page should be read in conjunction with the rest of this document and the
accompanying Forms of Proxy. You are recommended to seek your own financial advice
immediately from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or independent
financial adviser who, if you are taking advice in the United Kingdom, is authorised under
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or from another appropriately authorised
independent financial adviser if you are taking advice in a terntory outside the Urited
Kingdom.

The Scheme will require approval at a meeting of EBT Shareholders convened by order of the
Court to be held at the offices of Hogan Lovells international LLP, Atlantc House, Holborn Viaduct,
London EC1A 2FG at 300 pm on 27 July 2010 Certain resoluttons will also require approval of
EBT Shareholders at the General Meeting to be held at the same location at 330 pm on 27 July
2010 (or as soon thereafter as the Court Meeting 18 concluded or adjourned)

Instructions on the actions to be taken are set out in paragraph 16 of Part 1 of this document and
are summansed below

Whether or not you plan to attend the Meetings, please

1 complete, sign and return the WHITE Form of Proxy, as soon as possible, but in any event
50 as to be recewved by any of the means set out below no later than 300 pm on 23 July
2010,

AND

2 complete, sign and return the BLUE Form of Proxy, as soon as possible, but in any event so
as to be received by any of the means set out below no later than 330 pm on 23 July
2010

The completion and return of Forms of Proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting at the
Court Meeting and/or the General Meeting, or any adjournments thereof, 1n person should you so
wish and are so entitled

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT, FOR THE COURT MEETING, AS MANY VOTES AS POSSIBLE ARE
CAST SO THAT THE COURT MAY BE SATISFIED THAT THERE IS A FAIR AND
REASONABLE REPRESENTATION OF SCHEME SHAREHOLDER OPINION. YOU ARE
THEREFORE STRONGLY URGED TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN YOUR FORMS OF
PROXY AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

Forms of Proxy should be returned to the Company’s registrars

(a) by post using the reply-paid service printed on the reverse of the Form of Proxy (for use n
the UK only), or

(b} by post otherwise addressed to Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU, or

(c) durnng normal business hours only, by hand to the Company's registrars at the address set
out in (b) above

Alternatively, white Forms of Proxy (but NOT blue Forms of Proxy) may be handed to the
Chairman of the Court Meeting before the start of the Court Meeting on 27 July 2010 and will still
be valid
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PART 1

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
AND EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(in comphance with section 897 of the Companies Act 2006)

Registered Office
Phoenix House

18 King Willlam Street
London EC4N 7HE
United Kingdom

24 June 2010

To EBT Shareholders and, for infermation only, to participants under the Share Schemes

Dear Shareholder

Introduction of a new holding company domiciled in the Cayman Islands for the Group and
proposed re-organisation of the Group

1. Introduction

| am wniting to set out detalls of a proposal to change our corporate structure which will include
establishing a new exempted company incorporated i the Cayman Islands as the ulimate holding
company of the Group, by way of a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act
which will require the approval of EBT Shareholders and the Court The proposal to change our
corporate structure will also involve the winding-up of the Company following the Scheme
becoming effective

The purpose of this letter 1s 10 set out the background to and reasons for the Scheme, sel oul the
terms of the Scheme and the terms of the proposed Re-organisation and explain why the Board
considers the proposed Scheme to be in the best interests of EBT Shareholders This letter also
explains why the Board s unanimously recommending that EBT Shareholders vote in favour of the
Scheme at the Count Meeting and General Meeting

In order to approve the terms of the Scheme, a majorty in number representing not less than 75
per cent n value of the EBT Shareholders present and voting either in person or by proxy will
need to vote in favour of the resolutions to be proposed at the Court Meeting, to be held on
27 July 2010 Shareholders will also have to vote in favour of vanous resclutions 1o be proposed
at a general meeting of the company, which will be held immediately following the Court Meeting
Details of the actions you should take are set out in paragraph 16 below

2. Background to and reasons for the proposed Scheme and the Re-organisation

In September 2005, the Company (which was then called The Trading Exchange plc) acquired
EBT Mobile Limited (which 1s incorporated in Hong Kong) At the time of the acquisition of EBT
Mobile Limited, the Company had no trading business and was treated as an investment company
under the AIM Rules Following this acquisition, the Group's trading actvities were based entirely
autside the United Kingdom, with its main trading companies located in China As Shareholders are
aware, on 17 December 2008, the EBT Shares ceased to be admited to trading on AIM The
current structure of the Group 1s set out 1n Annex 1 to this document

The Board has recently conducted a review of the Group's overall business strategy As part of
this review, the Board has examined the existing corporate structure of the Group which has
included a consideration of the ments of continuing with a holding company which I1s incorporated
in England and Wales, in circumstances where

(a) the Group’s main business Is in China with no trading activities in the United Kingdom, and
(o) EBT Shares are no lenger traded con AIM




Taking Into account these factors, the Board has concluded that it 1s no longer appropnate for the
Group to incur the costs associated with maintaining a holding company which 1s incorporated in
the Urited Kingdom and for management time to be spent in ensuning thal apphcabte rules and
regulations In the United Kingdom are complied with The Board has, therefore, taken advice on
the most beneficial structure for the Group and, taking into account this advice, 15 proposing that
the Group’s corporate structure be changed as follows

{a) NewHoldCo, a newly-incorporated exempted company In the Cayman lslands should become
the ultimate holding company of the Group,

(b) a further company, BVICo, newly incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by NewHoldCo, should hold, directly, all of the EBT Shares in the Company, and

(c) the Company should be removed from the Group structure

The new Group structure as outlined in paragraphs (a} and (b) above will be implemented by way
of the Scheme and as outhned in paragraph (¢) by way of the Re-organisahon Annex 2 to this
document sets out the proposed structure of the Group following implementation of the Scheme
and Annex 3 sets oul the proposed structure of the Group following implementation of the Re-
organisation

The Board believes that the new Group structure offers the Group the following key advantages

(a) the reporting and ongaing regulatory obligations imposed on NewHoldCo and BVICo will be
less burdensome than those currently imposed on the Company As a consequence, this will
provide cost savings for the Group and will enable management to spend more time
developing the Group’s business, and

{b) Increased flexibiity when implementing future plans for market consolidation, capital raising
and development and expansion in the mobile telephony market

As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, 1 1s intended to carry out the Re-organisation,
which will involve the winding-up of the Company It 1s anticipated that this will be implemented by
way of a members’ voluntary liguidaton As part of the Re-orgamsaton, the assets of the
Company (principally comprising shares held by it in certan members of the Group incorporated
outside the United Kingdom) will be distnbuted to the Company's shareholder, BVICo, following
satisfaction of the Company’s liabilities

Save as required under the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement (descnbed in paragraph 6
below), the approval of the Shareholders to the Re-organisation 1 not required However, the
Board will only implement the Re-organisation if it determines that to do so would be most lkely to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole This proposed
Re-orgamisation 15 not expected to have any material effect on the Group’s principal activities but Is
proposed so that the Group can benefit from the less burdenscme comphiance regime and
increased management avallability resulting from hawing a group consisting of companies
incorporated and resident outside the United Kingdom

Folfowing implementation of the Scheme and the Re-organisation, the Group's principal activities
will continue to be the retail sale of mobile phone products and services, including mobile phones,
SIM cards, phone cards, mobile phone accessores and mobile phone related value-added services
in China

3 Structure of the Scheme

The introduction of NewHoldCo as the ultimate holding company of the Group will be effected by
means of a scheme of arrangement between the Company and the EBT Shareholders under Part
26 of the Companies Act, the provisions of which are set out In full in Part 5 of this document The
Scheme will result in EBT Shareholders being allotted New Shares in place of therr existng EBT
Shares and in the Company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of BVICo As a consequence,
NewHoldCo will become the new parent company of the Group This 1s to be achieved by

{(a) canceling the Scheme Shares on the Effective Date and applying the reserve arnising from
such cancellabon in paying up in full a number of New Company Shares which 15 equal to
the number of Scheme Shares cancelled and 1ssuing such New Company Shares 1o BVICo,

(b) BVICo 1ssuing the New BVI Share to NewHoldCo in consideration for the issue of the New
Company Shares by the Company to it, and
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(c) NewHoldCo 1ssuing the New Shares to the Shareholders in consideration for the 1ssue of New
BVI Share by BVICo to it

Under the Scheme, Scheme Shareholders on the register of members at the Scheme Record Time
will receive from NewHoldCo

for each Scheme Share cancelled one New Share

To become effective, the Scheme must be approved by a majonty in number of those EBT
Shareholders present and voting either in person or by proxy at the Court Meeting representing 75
per cent or more in value of all Shares held by such EBT Shareholders

The Scheme also requires the sanction of the Court at the Court Heanng, as well as salisfaction or
waiver of the other Conditions set out In paragraph 4 below Upon the Scheme becoming effective,
it will be binding on all EBT Shareholders, irrespective of whether or not, being entitled to do so,
they attended or voted at the Court Meeting or the General Mesting

On the Effective Date, share certificates in respect of Scheme Shares will cease to be vald and
should be destroyed In addition, on the Effective Date, enttiements to Scheme Shares held within
CREST will be cancelled

Scheme Shareholders who are citizens, residents or nationals of any junsdiction outside the United
Kingdem should refer to paragraph 14 below

In order 1o facilitate the Scheme, certain amendments to the EBT Aricles are proposed These
amendments will ensure that any EBT Shares issued (other than to BVICo or its nominee(s))
between the approval of the Scheme at the Court Meeting and the Scheme Record Time will be
subject to the Scheme and that any EBT Shares 1ssued after the Scheme becomes effective will
automatically be acquired by BVICo on the same terms as under the Scheme The proposed
amendments to the EBT Articles are described in paragraph 23 of Part 4 of this document and set
out in full in the notice of General Meeting in Part 8 of this document

The current shareholder of NewHoldCo is Ringtone Investment Limited (“Ringtone™), currently a
shareholder in the Company, which holds 10,000 shares in the capital of NewHoldCo (the
“Ringtone Shares”) The Ringtone Shares were 1ssued at nominal value and are fully pad up
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtone Shares for nominal
consideration and the Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

4. Conditions
The implementation of the Scheme 1s conditional on the following

(a) the Scheme being approved by a majonty in number, representing 75 per cent n value, of
those Shareholders present and voting, either in person or by proxy, at the Court Meeting,

{(b) the Special Resolution to approve the matters in connection with the Scheme being duly
passed at the Generai Meeting by a majonty of not less than 75 per cent of the votes cast,

{c) any consents, approvals, registrations, filngs or other requirements of any third party, whether
governmental, regulatory, contractual or otherwise, having been made, gven or otherwise
satisfied,

(d) the Scheme being sanctioned (with or without modification) and the reduction of capital of the
Company provided for by the Scheme being confirmed by the Court at the Court Heanng,
and

(e) an office copy of the Order of the Courl sanctioning the Scheme under Part 26 of the
Companies Act and confirming under section 648 of the Compantes Act the reduction of
capital provided by the Scheme having been delivered to the Registrar of Companies In
England and Wales for registration and, in the case of the capital reduction, if the Order of
the Court confirming it so specifies, registered by him

The Directors will not take the necessary steps to implement the Scheme unless the above
conditions have been satisfied or waived and, at the relevant time, they consider that it continues
to be in the Company's and the EBT Shareholders’ best inlerests that the Scheme should be
implemented

The Scheme contains a provision for the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo jointly to consent, on
behalf of all persons concerned, to any modfication of, or addition 1o, the Scheme, or to any
condition that the Court may think fit to approve or impose The Court would be unlikely to approve
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or impose any modification of, or addition or condition to, the Scheme which might be matenal to
the interests of Scheme Shareholders unless Scheme Shareholders were informed of any such
modification, addition or condiion 1t will be a matter for the Court to decide, in its discretion,
whether or not the consent of Scheme Shareholders should be sought at a further meeting
Simitarly, if a modiication, addition or conditon 1s put forward which, in the opinion of the
Directors, 15 of such a nature or importance as to require the consent of the Scheme Shareholders
at a further meeting, the Directors wil not take the necessary steps to enable the Scheme to
become effective unless and until such consent 1s obtained

The Court Heanng will be held on 17 August 2010 All EBT Shareholders are entitled to attend the
Court Hearing in person or through representation to support or oppose the sanctioning of the
Scheme The Court Heanng will be held at the Royal Courts of Justice, The Strand, London WC2A
2LL

The Scheme will become effective upon the delivery to the Registrar of Companies in England and
Wales of a copy of the Order, and, if the Order so specifies, registration of that Order This 1s
expected to occur on 18 August 2010 Unless the Scheme becomes effective by not later than
30 September 2010, or such later date as the Company, NewHoldCo and BYICo may agree and
the Court may allow, the Scheme will not become effective, in which case NewHoldCo shall not
become the new ultimate holding company of the Group In such an event, EBT Shareholders will
remain shareholders of the Company, the Scheme Shares will not be cancelled and New Shares
will not be issued by NewHoldCo to EBT Shareholders

5. Effects of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, Scheme Shareholders will exchange their sharsholdings in the Company for
the same number of New Shares in NewHoldCo, which will be denominated 1n Sterling Therr
proportionate entitiement 1o participate in the Company’s capital and income will not be affected by
reason of the implementation of the Scheme

Immediately following the Scheme becoming effective, BVICo will ewn no assets other than the
share capital of the Company and nominal cash balances and NewHoldCo will own no assets
other than the share capital of BVICo and nominal cash balances EBT Shareholders will not
receive any amount In cash pursuant to the terms of the Scheme

6. Consents and undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into the
Shareholders’ Agreement dated 24 August 2009 Pursuant to the terms of the Shareholders’
Agreement, the Scheme and the proposed Re-organisation require the pnor wntten consent of
Ringtone and at least three of Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Director appomnted by the Managers
Further detalls of the Shareholders’ Agreement are set out in paragraph 22 of Part 4 of thus
document

Each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers has given 1ts or his written consent to
the Scheme and the subsequent proposed Re-organisation In addition, the Company has received
rrevocable undertakings to vote 1n favour of the Scheme from each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan,
CRV and the Managers Further detalls of these Sharehelders’ consents and undertakings to vote
in favour of the Scheme are set out in paragraph 9 of Part 4 of this document

The Company has also received irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme from
each of the Directors who hold legal title to Shares, Stephen Davidson and Zhang Ge, as well as
from those Directors who hold options over EBT Shares Further detalls of the Directors’ interests
in EBT Shares are set out In paragraph 5 of Part 4 of this document and of the Director's
irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme are set out in paragraph & of Part 4 of
this document

7. NewHoldCo and BVICo

On mncorporation, the initial authorised share capital of NewHoldCo was £400,000 divided into
4,000,000 shares of par value £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo One share in the capial of
NewHoldCo was 1ssued to Walkers Nominees Limited, the subscrber to NewHoldCo's
memorandum of association (such share being the “Subscriber Share"}) The Subscriber Share
was I1ssued at its nominal value of £0 10 and was fully pad up The Subscrber Share was
transferred to Ringtone for a consideration of £0 10 on 8 Apni 2010 Ringtone subscribed for a
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further 99 new shares of par value £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo on 8 April 2010 By
shareholder resolutions dated 20 May 2010, Ringtone resolved to vary the share capital of
NewHoldCo from £400,000 diwvided into 4,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of
£0 10 each, to £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of 01
pence each, and to subdivide the shares in the capital of NewHoldCo which had been issued to
Ringtone into 10,000 shares of 01 pence each (the “Ringtone Shares”) Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtone Shares for nominal consideration and
ihe Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

On incorporation, the mital authorised share capial of BVICo was US$50,000 dvided into 50,000
shares of par value US$1 00 each One share in the capital of BVICo was issued to NewHoldCo
for a consideration of US$1 00 on 12 February 2010

8. Head office retocation

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in keeping with the ntreduction of a new ultimate
holding company that 1s incorporated in the Cayman Islands, NewHcldCo's registered office will be
in the Cayman lIslands BVICo's registered office will be n the British Virgin Islands NewHoldCo
and BVICc will both have their principal place of business, from which the Group will be managed
and conirolled, in China

None of the Company, NewHoldCo nor BVICo have any plans to alter existing arrangements with
employees or to change the locations of the Group's places of business as a result of or following
Scheme

9. NewHoldCo Articles

The economic nghts attaching to the New Shares will, after the Scheme becomes effective, be
substantially the same as the nghts attaching to EBT Shares

As NewHoldCo 15 incorporated in the Cayman Islands, it will be subject to the laws of the Cayman
Islands As the laws of the Cayman !slands do not contain certain statutory safeguards (e g pre-
emption nights) that English law does, NewHoldCo has adopted and enshrined these sateguards in
the NewHoldCo Articles A summary of the NewHoldCo Articles 1s set out in paragraph 14 of Par
4 of this document and details of the differences between English company law and the company
law of the Cayman Istands are set out in paragraph 16 of Pant 4 of this document

10. Share Schemes

The Company has established the Share Schemes Summanes of the prnincipal features of these
schemes are set out In paragraph 21 of Part 4 of this document

11. Directors’ and other interests

The names of the Directors and details of their interests (and those of their connected persons} in
the Company and in NewHoldCo fcllowing the Effective Date and under the Share Schemes as at
22 June 2010 (being the last praclcable date prior to the publication of this document) are set out
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of Parl 4 of this document

In common with the other participants in the Share Schemes, the Directors will be able to exercise
thewr options or to accept any offer made by NewHoldCo to exchange therr options over Shares for
options over New Shares as descnbed 1n paragraph 21 of Part 4 of this document

All of the existing Directors were appointed directors of NewHoldCo on 8 Apnl 2010 and of BVICo
on 12 February 2010 The drectors of NewHoldCo and BVICo have been appointed to the
respective boards of NewHoldCo and BVICo in the same capacities they currently hold on the
Board

In all matenal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appomiments as directors of NewHoldCo and
BVICo are the same as the Directors’ existing arrangements with the Company, detalls of which
are set out in paragraph 7 of Part 4 of this document

The effect of the Scheme on the interests of the Directors does not differ from its effect on the like
interests of any cother EBT Sharehclders
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12 New Shares and setilement
12 1 Issue of New Shares

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme will be issued credited as fully paid and
free from all liens, charges and encumbrances whatsoever, and will rank n full for all dvidends or
distnbutions on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo declared, made or paid after the Effective
Date The New Shares will be denominated in pounds Sterling

Following the Scheme becoming effective, the New Shares will not be hsted on any stock
exchange

12.2 Settlement

Subject to the Scheme becoming effective (and except as provided in paragraph 14 below n
relation to certain Qverseas Shareholders), seitiement of the consideration to which any
Shareholder 1s entitied under the Scheme will be effected in the manner set out In this section

Al the Effective Date, each New Share to which each EBT Shareholder 1s entitted as at the
Scheme Record Time will be 1ssued In registered form Each holding of New Shares will be
entered into the register of members of NewHoldCo, which will constitute ewdence of ownership of
such shares pursuant to the Companies Law Share certificates ih respect of the New Shares
will only be issued by NewHoldCo following wntten request by the relevant New
Shareholder. Shareholders shouild note that the New Shares are not capable of being held
in CREST

As from the Effective Date

{a) any holding of Scheme Shares credited to any stock account in CREST will be disabled as
from the Effective Date and all Scheme Shares will be removed from CREST, and

{b} each certificate representing a holdng of Scheme Shares will cease to be of value and
should be destroyed

From the Effective Date, settlement of transfers of New Shares through CREST wili not be
possible Shareholders with quenes or wishing to request share certificates 1n respect of New
Shares or 1o register transfers of New Shares should contact or, in the case of registration of
transfers of New Shares, provide complete transter forms to, NewHoldCo's directors, c/o s
registered office service provider, Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary
Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005 Cayman Islands On the registration of any such transfers, the
transferee will not receive a share certificate in respect of such New Shares unless wrtten request
1s made 1o NewHoldCo

All mandates relating to the payment of dividends and cther instructions given to the Company by
EBT Shareholders in force at the Scheme Record Time relating to holdings of Scheme Shares will,
unless and until amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be an effective
mandate or instruction to NewHoldCo In respect of the corresponding New Shares

13. Taxation

Certain United Kingdom and Cayman Islands tax considerations relevant to EBT Shareholders are
summarnsed 1in Part 3 of this document

14. Overseas Shareholders
14.1 General

The imphcations of the Scheme for EBT Shareholders who are resident in, or citizens or nationals
of, junsdictions outside the United Kingdom (“Overseas Shareholders”) may be affected by the
laws of the relevant jJunsdictions Such Overseas Shareholders should inform themselves about and
observe all apphcable legal requirements

It 1s the responstbiity of any person into whose possession this document comes to satisfy
themselves as to their full observance of the laws of the relevant junsdiction In connection with the
Scheme, including the obtaining of any governmenial, exchange control or cther consents which
may be required and/or compliance with other necessary formalties which are required to be
observed and the payment of any 1ssue, transfer or other taxes due in such junsdiction

If, in respect of any Overseas Shareholder, NewHoldCo 1s advised that the alloiment and/or 1ssue
of New Shares would or might infnnge the laws of any junsdiction outside the Urited Kingdom, or
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would or might require NewHo!dCo to obtain any governmental or other consent or effect any
registration, filng or other formalty with which, i the opinion of NewHoldCo, it would be unable 1o
comply or which 1t regards as unduly onercus 1o comply with, the Scheme provides that
NewHoldCo may, in its sole discretion, determine either (a) that New Shares shall not be allotted
and 1ssued to such holder but shall instead be allotted and issued to a nominee appointed by
NewHoldCo and then sold, with the net proceeds being remited to the Shareholder concerned, or
{b) that New Shares shall be i1ssued to such holder and then sold on his behalf as soon as
practicable following the Effective Date at the best pnce which can reasonably be obtained at the
time of sale, with the net proceeds being remrted to the Shareholder concerned Any remittance of
the net proceeds of sale referred to in this paragraph shall be at the nsk of the relevant holder

Overseas Shareholders should consult their own legal and tax advisers with respect to the legal
and tax consequences of the Scheme in their particular circumstances.

14.2 United Stales

The New Shares will be 1ssued In rehance on the exemption from the registration requirements of
the Secunties Act provided by Section 3(a)(10} thereof and will not be registered under the
secunties laws of any state or other junsdiction of the Unnted States

For the purpose of qualfying for the exemption from the registration requirements of the Secunties
Act provided by Section 3(a){(10) thereof, the Company will advise the Court that its sanctioning of
the Scheme will be relied upon by NewHoldCo as an approval of the Scheme following a hearing
on its fairness to Scheme Sharehoiders, at which Court Hearing all Scheme Shareholders are
entitled to attend in person or through counsel to support or oppcse the sanctioning of the Scheme
and with respect to which notificatton has been given to all such Shareholders

Shareholders who are “affiiates” (as such term 1s defined in Rule 144 of the Securiies Act) of the
Company prior to implementation of the Scheme, or NewHokiCo after the Effective Date, may not
resell such New Shares without registration under the Secunties Act excepl pursuant to the
applicable resale provisions of Rule 145(d) under the Secunties Act, another applicable exemption
from registration under the Secunhes Act or in a transaction not subject to registration under the
Secunties Act “Affliates” of a company are generally defined as persons who directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediarnies, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control
with, that company Whether a person 1s an affillate of the company for the purpose of the
Securties Act depends on the circumstances, but affihates can include certain officers, directors
and significant shareholders Persons who believe they may be affilates of the Company or
NewHoldCo should consult therr own legal adwisers before any sale of secunties recewved in the
Scheme Any persons who hold Scheme Shares that are “restnicted securties” within the meaning
of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Secunties Act will receive New Shares that are subject to the same
restrictions as their Scheme Shares

Neither the SEC nor any US state securiies commission has reviewed or approved this document,
the Scheme or the New Shares Any representation io the contrary 1s a criminal office in the
United States

15. The Meetings

Before the Court's approval can be sought to sanction the Scheme, the Scheme will require the
approval of EBT Shareholders at the Court Meeting and, for its )mplementation, at the General
Meeting

Notices of each of the Court Meeting and of the General Meeting are set out In Part 7 and Part 8
of this document respectively Entitlement o attend and vote at these Meetings and the number of
votes which may be cast at them will be determined by reference to the Company's register of
members at 6 00 pm on the Business Day prior to the Business Day mmediately betore the
Meeting or any adjourned Meeting (as the case may be)

15.1 Court Meeting

The Court Meeting has been convened for 27 July 2010 at the offices of Hogan Lovells
International LLP, Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG to enable EBT Shareholders
to consider and, if thought fit, approve the Scheme At the Court Mesting, voting wiil be by poll
and each member present in person or by proxy will be entitted to one vote for each EBT Share
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held The approval required at the Court Meeting 1s a simple majonty in number representing 75 per
cent n value of those EBT Shareholders present and voting In person or by proxy

It 1s important that, for the Court Meeting in particular, as many votes as possible are cast
so that the Court may be satisfied that there is a fair and reasonable representation of
Scheme Shareholder opinion.

If the Scheme 1s approved and becomes effective, it wil be binding on all Scheme Shareholders
irrespective of whether they attended the Court Meeting or the way they voted

15.2 General Meeting

In addition, the General Meeting has been convened for the same date and place (to be held
immediately after the Court Meeting) to consider and, If thought fit, pass a Special Resolution
(which requires a vote tn favour of not less than 75 per cent of the votes cast) to approve

(@) authonsing the Directors to take all action as may be considered necessary or approprate for
implementing the Scheme,

(b) the cancellation and extinguishing of the Scheme Shares In relation to the Scheme,
(c) the creation of the New Company Shares in relation to the Scheme,
{d) the allotment of the New Company Shares to 8VICo,

{e) conditional on the Scheme becoming effective, amendment to the EBT Articles to deal with
transitional matters ansing from the Scheme

The Special Resolution proposed at the General Meeting will be decided by way of a poll On the
poll, each Shareholder present in person or by proxy will have one vote for each EBT Share held

16. Action to be taken

Whether or not you propose to attend the Meetings, you are requested to complete, sign and
return to Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, the enclosed
white Form of Proxy for use at the Court Meeting and the blue Form of Proxy for use at the
General Meeting by no later than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the time appointed
for the relevant Meeting If the white Form of Proxy relating to the Court Meeting 15 not lodged by
the above time, it may be handed to the Chairman of the Courl Meeting hefore the start of the
Court Meeting and will stil be valid However, in the case of the General Meeting, unless the blue
Form of Proxy is returned at least 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the General
Meeting and in accordance with the instructions printed on 1it, it will be invalld The completion and
return of a Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and vohing in person at either the
Court Meeting or the General Meeting, If you so wish and are so entitled

17. Recommendation

The Directors consider the Scheme to be far and reasonable In addition, the Directors believe the
Scheme to be in the best interests of Shareholders as a whole and, accordingly, unanimously
recommend that Shareholders vote In favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting, as they intend
to do in respect of their own legal or beneficial shareholdings, totaling 66,402,401 EBT Shares
(representing n aggregate approximately 24 6 per cent of the i1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company)

The Directors urge you to complete, sign and return the enclosed Forms of Proxy as soon
as possible and, in any event, by no later than 3.00 p.m. (in respect of the white Form of
Proxy for use at the Court Meeting) or 3.30 p.m (in respect of the blue Form of Proxy for
use at the General Meeting) on 23 July 2010.

18. Further information

The Scheme 1s set out in full In Part 5 of this document Your attention 1s also drawn to the
additional information set out 1n Part 4 and to the definstions 1n Part 6 of this document

Yours faithfully

Mark Qiu
Non-Executive Chairman
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PART 2
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Company applied International Financial Reporting Standards, endorsed by the European
Union, as the basis for preparation of s financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2009, 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 These financial statements are prepared on the
histoncal cost basis

1.  Statutory accounts for financial periods ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

Statutory accounts of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007, in
respect of which the Company’s auditors, Deloitte LLP, made unqualified reports, have been
delivered to and filed with the Registrar of Companies n England and Wales

2 Published report and accounts for financial periods ended 31 December 2007, 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2009

The published annual report and audited accounts of the Company for the financial periods ended
31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 (which are incorporated into this document by reference)
included, on the pages specified 1n the table below, the following information

Nature of information For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Income statement showing turnover, Page S Page 9 Page 3
net profit or loss before and after {Consolidated (Consolidated (Conscolidated
taxation, the charge for tax, Report) Report) Report)
extraordinary tems, minority interests
and the amount absorbed by
dividends and earnings and dividends
per share
Balance sheet showing the assets Page 11 Page 11 Page 5
and habilities of the Group (Consolidated (Consolidated (Consolidated
Report) Report) Report}
Cash flow statement Pages 13-14 Pages 12-13 Pages 6-7
(Consohdated {Consolidated (Consolidated
Report) Report) Report)
Accounting policies Pages 16-26 Pages 15-24 Pages 8-17
(Consolidated {Consolidated {Consolidated
Report} Report) Report)
Notes to the financial statements Pages 15-45 Pages 14-45 Pages 8-39
(Consolidated {Consolidated (Conschdated
Report) Report) Report}
Independent auditors’ repont Pages 7-8 Pages 7-8 Pages 1-2
(Consoldated (Consolidated (Censolidated
Report) Report) Report)

The published financial information referenced above (and, where applicable, incorporated Into this
document by reference) can be viewed at www ebimobile com

A hard copy of the above-referenced financial information will not be sent to recipients of this
document unless specifically requested Recipients of this document may request a hard copy of
the above-referenced financial information of the Company by writing to the company secretary of
the Company, Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited, at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU Relevant documents will be posted within two working days of receipt
of such a request
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PART 3
TAXATION

The following information, which 1s intended as a general guide only, relates to the United
Kingdom taxation position of EBT Shareholders who are resident and ordinarily resident in
the United Kingdom and tc the Cayman Islands tax position of NewHoldCo and its
shareholders The statements are based on current legislation and practice in the Umited
Kingdom and the Cayman Islands and do not purport to be comprehensive or to describe
all potential relevant considerations. EBT Shareholders should note that both taxation law
and interpretation are subject to change, possibly with retrospective effect.

The statements in this Part summarise certain limited aspects of the taxation treatment of
the Scheme, do not constitute tax advice and relate only to the position of EBT
Shareholders who hold their Shares beneficially as an investment {other than under a
personal equity plan or an individual savings account) and who have not {and are not
deemed to have) acquired their EBT Shares by virtue of an office or employment They do
not address the tax consequences for EBT Shareholders who are brokers, dealers or
traders in shares or securities

Special tax provisions may apply to Shareholders who have acquired or who acquire their
Shares by exercising options under the Share Schemes, including provisions imposing a
charge to income tax.

If you are in any doubt as to your taxation position, or you are subject to taxation in a
jurisdiction other than the United Kingdem and the Cayman Islands, you should consult a
professional independent financial adviser immediately

1 United Kingdom
1.1 General

The following paragraphs, which are intended as a general guide only, are based on current United
Kingdom legisiation and HM Revenue & Customs (“HMRC”} practice, both of which may be
subject to change at any time, possibly with retrospective effect They summarnse certamn hmited
aspects of the United Kingdom taxation treatment of the Scheme, do not constitute tax advice and
relate only to the positon of Scheme Shareholders who are resident or ordinanly resident In the
United Kingdom for taxation purposes, who hold their Scheme Shares benehcally as an investment
(other than under a personal equity plan or an individual savings account} and who have not (and
are not deemed to have) acquired ther Scheme Shares by wvirtue of an office or employment They
do not address the United Kingdom tax consequences for Scheme Shareholders who are brokers,
dealers or traders in shares or secunties

Speciat tax provisions may apply to Scheme Shareholders who have acquired or who acquire thenw
Scheme Shares by exercising options under the Share Schemes, including provisions imposing a
charge to income tax

If you are in any doubt as to your taxation position, or you are subject to taxation in a jurisdiction
other than the United Kingdom, you should consull a professional independent financial adviser
immediately

1.2 Taxation of chargeable gains

For a Scheme Shareholder who, either alone or together with persons connected with him, holds 5
per cent or less of the Scheme Shares, implementation of the Scheme should not result in such
Scheme Shareholder making a disposal or part disposal of Scheme Shares for the purposes of
Unned Kingdom taxation of chargeable gans Any gain or loss which would otherwise have ansen
on a disposal of such holders Scheme Shares should be “rolled-over” into his New Shares and
the New Shares should accordingly be treated as the same asset and as having been acquired at
the same time and for the same consideration as the Scheme Shares in respect of which they
were I1ssued

A Scheme Shareholder who, either alone or together with persons connected with him, holds more
than 5 per cent of the Scheme Shares 15 advised that the Company has received clearance from
HMRC pursuant to section 138 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 that HMRC 15
satisfied that the Scheme 15 being effected for bona fide commercial reasons and dees not form
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part of a scheme of arrangement of which the mamn purpose, or one of the main purposes, 15 the
avoidance of labiity to capital gains tax or corporation tax Accordingly, any such Scheme
Shareholder should be treated in the manner descnbed above

1.3  Siamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT")

The cancellation of Scheme Shares and the i1ssue of New Shares (whether paper shares or shares
transferred into CREST) pursuant to the Scheme will not give nse to a charge to stamp duty or
SDRT

2. Cayman Islands

There 1s, at present, no direct taxation in the Cayman lIslands and interest, dividends and gains
payable to the NewHoldCo will be received free of all Cayman Islands taxes NewHoldCo 1s
registered as an “exempted company” pursuant to the Companies Law {(as amended) NewHoldCo
has applied for and received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands
to the effect that, for a perod of twenty years from 13 Aprnl 2010, no law that thereafter 1s enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on profits, income or on gains or
appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inhentance tax, will apply to any property
compnsed In or any income arising under NewHoldCo, or to the shareholders thereof, in respect of
any such property or income Accordingly, it 1S not envisaged that the company will be subject to
any taxation in the Cayman Islands other than in relabion to incidental registry fees and stamp
duties on cerain instruments entered into by it

There are currently no withholding taxes or exchange control regulations in the Cayman Islands
applicable to the Company or its shareholders

There are currently no estate duty, gifts or gains taxes in the Cayman Islands applicable to the
New Shares or to any incoeme or gains that a Sharehclder derives either from holding or pursuant
to any transfers or redemptions of such shares
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PART 4
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Responsibility

The Directors, whose names are set out in paragraph 4 of this Part, accept responsibility for the
information contained i this document To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors
(who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in
this document for which they are responsible 1s In accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything lkely to affect the import of such information

2 Incorporation and activity of the Company

The Company was incorporated under the name TradingSports Exchange Systems Limited on
3 February 2003 under the Companies Act 1985 as a private company imited by shares and
registered 1n England and Wales with registered number 4654471 On 21 May 2003 1t re-registered
as a public company imited by shares and changed its name to TradingSports Exchange Systems
PLC On 21 September 2004 1t changed its name to The Trading Exchange PLC and on
7 September 2005 1t changed its name to EBT Mobile China PLC

The Company's registered office 15 at Phoenix House, 18 King Willlam Street, London EC4N 7HE

The Company 1s a holding company for a group of companies whose principal activities are the
retall sale of mobile phone products and services, including mobile phones, SIM cards, phone
cards, mobile phone accessornes and mobile phone related value-added services I China

3. Share capital of the Company

The authonsed and issued share captal of the Company as at 22 June 2010 (being the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this document) 1s as follows

Authonsed Issued and paid
Nominal Nominal
Class Number Value Number Value
Ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each 400,000,000 £400,000 269,756,335 £269,756 34

4. Directors and secretary of the Company
The Directors and their respective positions are

Name Position held

Mr Mark Quu Chairman and non-executive director

Mr Zhang Ge Chief Executive Officer and executive director
Mr James A Reiman Non-executive director

Mr Daniel Skaff Non-executive director

Mr Stephen Dawvidson Non-executive director

The business address of each of the Directors 1s Phoenix House, 18 King Willam Street, London
EC4N 7HE

The company sectetary of the Company 1s Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited, Ibex
House, 42-47 Minories, London EC3N 1DX
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5. Directors’ interests in the Company

As at the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this document, the interests of the
Directors, their immediate families and persons connected with such Directors within the meaning
of section 252 of the Companies Act, In the share capital of the Company were as follows

Percentage of
existing issued

Number of ordinary share

Shares capital

Mr James A Reiman’ 58,297,045 216

Mr Zhang Ge 7,045,356 26

Mr Stephen Davidson? 1,060,000 04

Mr Mark Chu® _ —

Mr Daniel Skaff* — —

Total 66,402,401 24 6
Notes

1 The interests of James A Reiman include the holding of 58,297,045 EBT Shares ndirectly held by CRV through Vidacoes
Nominees Limited CRV 1s 100 per cent owned by Mr Reiman Further details of CRV's shareholding in the Company are set
out in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Part

2  The interests of Stephen Davidson include the holding of 60,000 Shares held by Hargreave Hale Nominees Limited as
nominee for Stephen Dawidson

3 Mark Qiu s connected with China Harvest Fund, L P, which indirectly holds approximately 24 7 per cent of the existing share
capital of the Company as 1t holds approximately 97 83 per cent of the existing share capdal of Ringtone Mr Quu disclaims
beneficial awnership of the share capital of the Company held by Ringlone except to the extent of his pecuniary interest
therein Further details of Ringtone's shareholding in the Company are set out in paragraphs 8 and 8 of this Part

4 8,000,000 Shares held by James A Reiman via CRV are held as norminee for the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust, a trust to
which Daniel Skaff 1s connected Following the Scheme becoming effective, CRV has agreed to transfer the legal itle to the
corresponding number of New Shares to the Damel and Michelle Skaff Trust

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date pnior to the publication of this document, the
options and awards held by the Directors under the Share Schemes were as foliows

Number of Exercise
shares under price (GBP Period in which options
option per share) Date of grant can be exercised
Mr James A Reiman 1,000,000" 0025 01/01/2009 See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Stephen Dawvidson 1,000,000’ 0025 01/01/2008 See paragraph 21 2(c}
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Danel Skaft 1,000,000’ 0025 01/01/2009 See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Zhang Ge 400,0002 0 C01 01/07/2007  See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Notes

1 Optons under the EBT Mobile China plc share option scheme 2009
2 Options under the EBT Mobile China plc share oplion scheme 2007

Save as set out In this Part of the document, none of the Directors or any connected person within
the meaning of section 252 of the Companies Act has any interest, whether beneficial or non-
beneficial, in the share capital of the Group and there 1s nc person to whom any captal of any
member of the Group 1s under option or agreed unconditionally to be put under option

Following the Effective Date, the Directors will have corresponding interests in New Shares by
virtue of the effect of the Scheme on their existing interests in EBT Shares
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6. Directors’ irrevocable undertakings

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this document, the
Company was in receipt of irrevocable undertakings to vote 1n favour of the Scheme at the Court
Meeting from each of the Directors who hold legal title to EBT Shares, being Stephen Davidson
and Zhang Ge, as well as from those Directors who hold options over EBT Shares, as set out In
paragraph 5 of this Part In addition, as at that date, the Company was in receipt of an irrevocable
undertaking to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting from CRV, with which James A
Reiman 1s connected as set out in paragraph 5 of thus Part Further detalls of CRV’s interest in
Shares and the rrevocable undertaking given by it are set out In paragraphs 8 and @ of this Part

The Company has received Irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Court
Meeting from Directors who represent, legally or beneficially, directly or indirectly, approximately
24 6 per cent of the existng i1ssued share capital of the Company, as set out in paragraph 5 of
this Part

7 Directors’ remuneration and benefits

The Company does not have any executive directors other than Zhang Ge The Direclors’
appointments are subject to the terms of the EBT Artictes and the Shareholders’ Agreement,
details of which are set out in paragraph 22 of this Part

Mark Quu, Zhang Ge and James Reiman have been appointed pursuant 10 the terms of the
Shareholders’ Agreement, further details in relation to which are set out in paragraph 22 of this
Part Appointment and removal of these Directors shall be by way of wntten notice to the
Company, which shall take effect on delivery at the Company's registered office or at any meeting
of the Board or a commitiee thereot In the event that any relevant Shareholder appointing such a
Director ceases to hold Shares representing a specified percentage of the ssued share capital of
the Company, the Director appointed by such Shareholder shall resign immediately None of the
Directors has any nght to compensation upon early termination of their appointments

The following terms apply to the Directors

Date of appointment Annual fees (UIS$)
Mr Mark Quu 18/08/2009 N/A
Mr Zhang Ge 08/09/2005 N/A
Mr James A Reiman 08/09/2005 N/A
Mr Stephen Davidson 11/07/2006 25,000
Mr Damel Skaff 24/10/2005 20,000

In addition to the fees shown above, James A Reiman, Stephen Dawidson, Daniel Skaff and
Zhang Ge also hold interests in the Share Schemes Dstals of these interests are set out in
paragraph 5 of this Part and details of the Share Schemes are sel out in paragraph 21 of this
Par

There are no service contracts between any Director or proposed director of the Company and any
member of the Group and no such contract has been entered into or amended within the six
months preceding the date of this document

There 1s no arrangement under which a Director has waived or agreed to wave future emoluments
nor have there been any such wavers dunng the financial year immediately preceding the date of
this document

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by any member of the Group to,
or for the benefit of, any of the Directors

Other than as described in this paragraph 7, no benefit, payment or compensation of any kind 1s
payable to any Director of the Company upon termination of his or her employment
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8. Interests of major Shareholders

Insofar as i1s known to the Company as at 22 June 2010 (being the last practicable date prior to
publicattion of this document), other than a Director, the follewing persons have an interest in 3 per
cent or more of the Company’s capital

Percentage of

issued share

Number of Shares capital

Ringtone Investment Limited 66,611,111 247
Vidacos Nominees Limited 58,297,045° 216
KB (C ) Nominees Limited 56,165,000° 208
HSBC Global Custedy Nominee (UK) Limited 36,091,754* 134
Rock Nominees Limited 10,282,742° 38

Notes
1 Ringione is also the beneficial owner, but not the registered holder, of an additional 43,096 EBT Shares
2 Held as nominee for CRV See paragraph 9 of this Part for further detals

3 Held as nominee for Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley Investment Il See
paragraph 9 of this Part for further details

4 Held as nominee for Tartan Investment Partners, L P See paragraph 9 of this Pan for further details
5 Held as nominee for approximately 53 beneficial owners

Each of Ringtone, Audley (acting as investment manager for Audley European Opportunities
Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley Investment Il) and Tanan (acting as
investment manager for Tartan Investment Partners, L P} has agreed, subject to the Scheme
becoming effective, to purchase the numbers of New Shares from CRV set out In the table below
for a consideration of 4 pence per New Share together with additional censideration payable by the
relevant purchaser to CRV of 50 per cent of the amount over 4 pence per New Share that such
purchaser receives In the event of any subsequent disposal of such New Shares to any third party

In addtion, following the Scheme becoming effective, CRV has agreed to transfer the legal title to
8,000,000 New Shares to the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust (as referred to in footnote 4 to the
table setting out the interests of the Directors, theirr immediate families and persons connected with
such Directors in paragraph 5 of this Part)

Following completion of the acquisiions and transfers agreed as set out above, each of Ringtone,
Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust will have interests in NewHoldCo as
set out In the table below

Percentage of
Total number of NewHoldCo's

Number of New New Shares issued share

Shares to be held foliowing  capital folfowing

acquired from proposed proposed

CRV transactions transactions

Ringtone Investment Limited 21,303,014 87,914,125 326

Audley Capital Management Limited' 18,002,547 74,167,547 275

Tartan Investment Partners Fund GP Limited® 10,701,513 46,793,267 173

The Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust 8,000,000 8,000,000 30

China Retail Venture #1, inc — 289,971 01
Notes

1 Acting as investment manager for Audley European Opportuniies Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley

Investment ||

2  Acting as investment manager for Tartan Investment Partners, L P

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 8, the Directors are not aware of any interest which will
represent 3 per cent or more of the 1ssued share capial of NewHoldCo following the Scheme
becoming effective

So far as the Company s aware, no person or persens, directly or indirectly, jointly or severally
exercise or could exercise control over the Company
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There are no differences between the voting nghts enjoyed by the EBT Shareholders descrnbed in
this paragraph 8 and those enjoyed by any other holder of Shares

9, Major Shareholders’ consents and irrevocable undertakings

Pursuant to the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Scheme and the subsequent proposed
Re-organisation require the prior wntten consent of Ringtone and at least three of Audley, Tartan,
CRV and the Director appointed by the Managers Further detalls of the Shareholders’ Agreement
are set out in paragraph 22 of this Part

Each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers has given its or his written consent to
the Scheme and the proposed Re-organisation In addition, as at the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of this document, the Company was 1n receipt of irrevocable undertakings to vote in
favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting from each of Ringtone (which holds approximately 24 7
per cent of the existing share capital of the Company), Audley (acting as investment manager for
Audley European Opporiunties Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley Investment
I, which together hold approximately 20 8 per cent of the existing share captal of the Company
through K B (C 1) Nominees Limited), Tartan {acting as investment manager for Tartan Investment
Partners, LP, which holds approximately 134 per cent of the existing share capital of the
Company through HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited), CRV (which holds approximately
21 6 per cent of the existing share capital of the Company through Vidacos Nominees Limited} and
the Managers (who collectively hold approximately 3 8 per cent of the existing share capital of the
Company}

10. Incorporation and activity of NewHoldCo

NewHoldCo was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010 under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retaii Group and with
registered number WK-237161

NewHoldCo's registered office 15 at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker
House, 87 Mary Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-8005

NewHoldCo has not traded since incorporation and has undertaken no actviies other than those
associated with its administration and the Scheme

11. Share capital of NewHoldCo

Pursuant to NewHoldCo's memorandum of association its current authonsed share capital s
£400,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of 0 1 pence each The authonsed share capital can be
increased by a special resolution of its shareholders

On incorporation, the initial authorised share capital of NewHoldCo was £400,000 divided Into
4,000,000 shares of par value £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo One share in the capital of
NewHoldCo was 1ssued to Walkers Nominees Limited, the subscriber to NewHoldCo’s
memorandum of association {such share being the “Subscriber Share”) The Subscnber Share
was transferred to Ringtone for a consideration of £0 10 on 8 Apnl 2010 Ringtone subscnbed for a
further 99 new shares of par value £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo on 8 Apri 2010 By
shareholder resolutions dated 20 May 2010, Ringtone resolved to vary the share capitai of
NewHoldCo from £400,000 divided into 4,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of
£0 10 each, to £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of 01
pence each, and to subdivide the shares In the capital of NewHoldCo which had been 1ssued to
Ringtone into 10,000 shares of 01 pence each (the “Ringtone Shares”) Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtone Shares for nominal consideration and
the Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 11, at the date of this document, there has been no I1ssue of
share or loan capital of NewHoldCo since its incorporation and no share or loan capital of
NewHoldCo 1s under option or agreed to be put under option

Save as disclosed in paragraph 18 of this Part, at the date of this document, NewHoldCo has no
subsidiaries and, accordingly, there has been no matenal issue of share or loan capital by any
subsidiary undertaking of NewHoldCo for cash or other consideration

The New Shares have not been marketed, and are not avalable in whole or in part to the public
otherwise than pursuant to the Scheme No commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special
terms have been granted In respect of the 1ssue of any share capital of NewHoldCo

21




The Scheme will result In EBT Shareholders being allotted New Shares in place of ther existing
EBT Shares and in the Company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of BVICo As a
consequence, NewHoldCo will become the new parent company of the Group This s to be
achieved by

{a} canceling the Scheme Shares on the Effective Date and applying the reserve ansing from
such cancellation in paying up In full a number of New Company Shares which 15 equal to
the number of Scheme Shares cancelled and 1ssuing such New Company Shares to BVICo,

{by BVICo i1ssuing the New BVYI Share to NewHoldCo n consideration for the issue of the New
Company Shares by the Company to it, and

(c) NewHoldCo 1ssuing the New Shares to the Shareholders in consideration for the 1ssue of the
New BVI Share by BVICo to it

Under the Scheme, Scheme Shareholders on the register of members at the Scheme Record Time
will receive from NewHoldCo

for each Scheme Share cancelied one New Share

The New Shares to be 1ssued pursuant to the Scheme will be 1ssued credited as fully paid and
free from all liens, charges and encumbrances whatsoever, and will rank in full for all dividends or
distnbutions on the ordinary share capital of NewloldCo declared, made or paid after the Effective
Date The New Shares wili be denominated in pounds Sterling

Accordingly, the proposed authonsed, 1ssued and fully pad share capital of NewHoldCo as 1t will
be following the Effective Date, and before the purchase and cancellation of the Ringtone Shares
referred to in this paragraph 11, 1s as follows

Authonsed issued and paid
Class Number Norminal Value Number Nomunal Value
Shares of 0 1 pence each 400,000,000 £400,000 269,766,335 £269,766 34

The table set out above assumes there s full exercise of options over EBT Shares between the
date of this document and the Effective Date

12 Directors and secretary of NewHoldCo

All of the existing Directors of the Company were appointed directors of NewHoldCo on 8 April
2010 The directors of NewHoldCo have been appointed to the board of NewHoldCo in the same
capacities they currently hold on the Board

The busimess address of each of the directors of NewHoldCo 1s Walker House, 87 Mary Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman Islands

13. NewHoldCo directors’ remuneration and benefits

In ali matenal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appoiniments as directors of NewHoldCo are
the same as the Directors’ existing arrangements with the Company, details of which are set out In
paragraph 7 of this Part

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by NewHoldCo to, or for the
benefit of, any of the directors of NewHoldCo

14. NewHoldCo Articles

The nghts and obligations of the New Shareholders are governed by the memorandum and articles
of association of NewHoelkdCo You should examine the memorandum and articles of association of
NewHoldCo carefully and consult with your own legal counsel concerning these rnights and
obligations before making a decision In refation to the Scheme

Memorandum of association

NewHoldCo’s memorandum of association provides that NewHoldCo's objects are unrestricted and
provide that NewHoldCo, inter aha, has full power and authomty to carry out any object not
prohibited by law

Articles of association
The NewHoldCo Articles contain, mter alia, provisions to the following effect
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14.1 Directors

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Composttion of the board of directors

Unless otherwise determined by NewHoldCo in general meetng, the number of
NewHoldCo Directors shall not be less than two and not more than five

Power to alfot and issue New Shares and warrants

Subject to the Companies Law and without prejudice to any special nghts or restnictions
for the time being attached to any New Shares, all New Shares for the time being
unissued shall be under the control of the NewHoldCo directors who may I1ssue, allot
and dispose of the same to such persons, in such manner, on such terms and having
such nghts and being subject to such restrictions as NewHoldCo may from time to time
determine by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders {cr, in the absence of any such
resolution, as the board of directors of NewHoldCo may determine) and grant options
with respect to such New Shares and issue warrants or similar instruments with respect
thereto, and, for such purposes, the NewHoldCo Directors may reserve an appropriate
number of New Shares for the time being unissued

Notwithstanding the above, and subject to certain limited exceptions, before NewHoldCo
may I1ssue any New Shares, it must first offer each of the Key Shareholders the right to
acquire a number of New Shares in the proportion which its exising holding of New
Shares bears to the total number of New Shares held by all of the Key Shareholders

Power to dispose of the assets of NewHoldCo

There are no specific provisions In the NewHoldCo Articles relating to the disposal of the
assets of NewHoldCo The NewHoldCo Board may, however, exercise all powers and do
all acts and things which may be exercised or done or approved by NewHoldCo and
which are not required by the NewHoldCo Articles or the Comparies Law to be
exercised or done by NewHoldCo n general meeting

Confiicts of interest

Subject 1o the Companies Law, and Imited exceptions set out in the NewMoldCo
Articles, a NewHoldCo Director shall not vote (nor be counted 1n the quorum) In respect
of any contact or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he has an
interest which may be reasonably regarded as likely to give nse to a conflict of interest
otherwise than by wrtue of hus holding of New Shares or other secunties of or through
the Company

Remuneration

The ordinary remuneration of the NewHoldCo Directors shall from time to time be
determined by the NewHoldCo Board except that such remuneration shall not exceed
US$300,000 per annum i aggregate or such higher sum as may from time tc time be
determined by ordinary resolution of NewHoldCo and shall (unless such resolution
otherwise provides) be divisible among the NewHeoldCo Directors as the NewHoldCo
Board may agree, or, faling agreement, equally, except that any NewHoldCo Director
who shall hold office for part only of the penod in respect of which such remuneration 1s
payable shall be entitied only to rank in such division for a proportton of remuneration
related to the penod during which he has held office.

The NewHoldCo Board may repay to any NewHoldCo Director all such reasonable
expenses as he may properly incur In attending and returning from meetings of the
NewHoldCo Board or of any committee of the NewHoldCo Board or general meetings or
otherwise In connection with the performance of his duties as a NewHoldCo Director

Retirement, appointment and removal

At each annual general meeting one-third of the NewHoldCo Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation (or, If thewr number i1s not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) shall so retire provided always that all
NewHoldCo Directors must be subject to re-electon at intervals of no more than three
years

The NewHoldCo Drirectors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to
obtain the number required) any NewHoldCo Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-elechon Any further NewHoldCo Directors so to retire shall be those
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of the other NewHoldCo Directors subject to retirement by rotaton who have been
longest In office since therr last re-election and so that as between persons who became
or were last re-elected NewHoldCo Directors on the same day those to retire shall,
unless they otherwise agree among themselves, be determined by lot together with
those who n the absence of any such retirement would continue In office for a period in
excess of three years A retinng NewHoldCo Director shall be ehgible for re-election

NewHoldCo may by ordinary resolution appoint any person who i1s willing to act to be a
NewHcldCo Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the existing NewHoldCo
Board, but so that the total number of NewHoldCo Directors shall not at any time
exceed any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with the NewHoldCo Arlicles
The NewHoldCo Board may also appoint NewHoldCo Directors

A NewHoldCo Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of NewHoldCo betfore
the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which such
NewHoldCo Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him
and NewHoldCo) and may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place

The office of a NewHoldCo Director shall be vacated if

{ he ceases to be a NewHoldCo Director by wvirtue of any prowvision of the
Companies Law or he becocmes prohibsted by any applicable law from being a
NewHoldCo Director,

() he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangements or composiion with his
crediors,

(m} he dies or I1s found to be or becomes of unsound ment,
(v} he resigns by notice in wniing to NewHoldCo,

(v) he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without
permission of the NewHoldCo Board from meetings of the NewHoldCo Board held
during that period and the NewHoldCo Board resolves that his office be vacated, or

(v1) notice stating he 15 removed from cffice as a NewHoldCo Director 1s served upon
him signed by all his co- NewHoldCc Directors who must account to the Members
at the next general meeting of NewHoldCe If a NewHoldCo Director holds an
appointment to an executive office which automatrcally determines on his removal
from office under this or the preceding sub-tem such removal shalf be deemed an
act of NewHoldCo and shall have effect without prejudice to any claim for damages
for breach of any contract of service between him and NewHoldCo

{g) Borrowing powers

The NewHoldCo Directors may exercise all the powers of NewHoldCo to borrow money
and to mortgage or charge all or part of its undertaking, property and uncalled capital or
any part thereof, to 1ssue debentures, debenture stock, and other secunties whenever
money 1S borrowed or as secunty for any debt, llabiity or obligation of NewHoldCo or of
any third party

14 2 Requirements for annual general meetings
The NewHoldCo Directors shall convene a general meeting at least once each calendar year

14.3 Notices of general meetings and business to be conducted thereat

Al least fourteen days’ notice In writing, exclusive of the date service 1s deemed to take place and
the day on which the meeting is held, specifying the place, the day and the hour of the meeting
and, in case of special business, the generat nature of that business (in which case such notice 1s
deemed a special notice), shall be given to such persons as are, under the NewHoldCo Articles,
entitled to receive such notices from NewHoldCo, but with the consent of New Shareholders
holding 95 per cent In nominat or par value of New Shares entitled to receive notice of some
particular meeting and attend and vole thereat, that meeting may be convened by such shorter
notice or without notice and 1n such manner as those New Shareholders may think fit

All business carned out al a general meeting shall be deemed special with the exception of (a} the
consideration of the accounts, balance sheets, and any repert of the NewHoldCo Directors or of
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NewHcldCo's auditors, (b) the appointment and removal of NewHoldCo Directors, and {c) the fixing
of the remuneration of NewHoldCo's auditors

No special business shall be transacted at any general meeting without the consent of all members
of NewHoldCo entitled 1o receve notice of that meeting unless notice of such speciai business has
been given in the nolice convening that meeting

14.4 Quorum for general meetings

No business, other than the appointment of a chairman, shall be transacted at any general meeting
unless a quorum 1s present when the meeting proceeds 1o business

The quorum for a general meeting shall be two members present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote at that meeting

14.5 Special/ordinary resolution majorities required

Pursuant to the NewHoldCc Aricles, a special resolution of NewHoldCo must be passed by a
majorty of not less than two-thirds of such members as, being entitied so to do, vote In person or,
in the case of such members being corporations, by therr duly authonsed representatives or, where
proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of which notice, specifying the intention to
propose the resolution as a special resolution, has been duly given, or in writing by all members of
NewHoldCo entitled to vote at a general meeting of NewHoldCo

An ordinary resolution 15 defined in the NewHoldCo Articles to mean a resolution passed by a
simple majonty of such members as, being entitted to do so, vote in person ot, In the case of such
members being corporations, by their duly authorised representatives or, where proxies are
allowed, by proxy at a general meeting held in accordance with the NewHoldCo Arucles, or in
writing by a majonty of 75 per cent or more of the votes of New Shares entitled to vote at a
general meeting of NewHoldCo

14.6 Voling rights

Subject to any nghts and restnctions for the time being attached to any New Share, on a show of
hands every New Shareholder present in person and every person representng a New
Shareholder by proxy shall, at a general meeting of NewHoldCo, each have ane vote and on a poll
every New Shareholder and every person representing a New Shareholder by proxy shall have one
vote for each New Share of which he or the person represented by proxy Is the holder

14.7 Modification of Rights

The nghts attached to any class of New Shares for the time being issued (unless otherwise
provided by the terms of issue of the New Shares of that class) may only be vaned or abrogated
with the consent in wrting of the holders of not less than three-quarters in nominal or par value of
the 1ssued New Shares of the relevant class or with the sanction of a resolution passed at a
separate meeting of the holders of the New Shares of such class by a majorty of three-quarters of
the votes cast at such a meeting To every such separate meeting all the prowvisions of the
NewHotdCo Articles relating to general meetings of NewHoldCo or to the proceedings thereat shall,
mutatis mutandys, apply except that the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons at least
holding or representing by proxy one-third In nominal or par value amount of the 1ssued New
Shares of the relevant class (but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such holders a quorum as
above defined 1s not present, those holders of 1ssued New Shares of the relevant class who are
present shall be a quorum) and that every holder of 1ssued New Shares of the class present may
demand a poll and every such person shall on a poll have cne vote for each New Share of the
class held by such shareholder For such purposes, the NewHoldCo Dwectors may treat all
classes, or any two or more classes, as forming one class if the NewHoldCo Direclors consider
that all such classes would be affected 1n the same way by the proposals under consideration but
in any other case will treat them as separate classes

14.8 Transfer of New Shares

New Shares may be transferred in accordance with the NewHoldCo Articles, subject to the writen
consent of the NewHo!dCo Direclors by using such form or forms as may from time to time be
prescribed by the NewHoldCo Directors and be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and i in
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respect of a nil or partly paid up New Share, or if so required by the NewHoldCo Directors, shall
also be executed on behalf of the transferee

The NewHoldCo Articles provide that, subject to certain exceptions, the Key Shareholders shall
not, and shall not agree to, transfer, morigage, charge or otherwise dispose of the whole or any
part of his interest i, or grant any option or other nghts over, any New Shares in the capital of
NewHoldCo to any person, unless provisions setting out pre-emplive nights of transfer to the other
Key Shareholders are first complied with

if a bona fide third party who 1s not an associate of a New Sharehclder makes an arms’ length
offer to the New Shareholders on the same terms for each New Shareholder to acquire all of therr
New Shares for cash {or for assets for which there 1s a ready market for sale i exchange for
cash) then New Shareholders who wish 1o accept the offer and who hold between them at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued New Shares may commence a process to require the remaining New
Shareholders to sell their New Shares to the purchaser

If any transfer of New Shares would result in the transferee {including his associates) becoming
the holder of a controlling Iinterest in the New Shares, the transferor must require that the
transferee makes an offer to all other New Shareholders to acgquire therr New Shares for a
consideration per New Share at least equal to the highest consideration per New Share pad or
payable by the transferee for any New Share duning the pencd of 12 menths ending on the date of
the offer

14.9 Dividends

Subject to any nghts and restnctions for the tme being attached to any New Shares, the
NewHokiCo Directors may from time to time declare dividends (including intenm dividends) and
other distributions on New Shares In 1ssue and authonse payment of the same out of the funds of
NewHoldCo lawfully available therefor

14.10 Procedures on liquidation

If NewHoldCo shall be wound up, the hquidator may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution
divide amongst the New Shareholders in specie the whole or any part of the assels of NewHoldCo
(whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose set
such value as he deems farr upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how
such dwvision shall be carned out as between the New Shareholders or different classes The
hquidator may, with the ke sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon
such trusts for the benefit of the New Shareholders as the hquidator, with the like sanction shall
think fit, but so that no New Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any asset whereon there s
any hability

14.11 Amendments to the memorandum and articles of association of NewHoldCo

NewHoldCo’s memorandum and articles of association may be amended by a special resolution of
the holders of the New Shares in accordance with the Companies Law

14 12 Other Rights and Liabilities

All New Shareholders are entitled to the benefit of, and are bound by and are deemed to have
notice of, the provisions of NewHoldCo's memorandum and articles of association Under the terms
of the memorandum and articles of association, the liability of any New Shareholder 15 hmited to
the any amount unpaid on therr New Shares

15. Comparison between the EBT Articles and NewHoldCo Articles

The information In the table below 1s n summary form only, and you should examine the EBT
Articles and the NewHoldCo Articles carefully before making a decision in relation to the Scheme

Subsect EBT Articles NewHoldCo Articles
Composition of the The number of Directors shall not be  The number of NewHoldCo Directors
Board less than two and not more than six  shall not be less than two and not

more than five
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Subject

Power to allot and
1ssue shares

Power to dispose of
assets

Conflicts of interest

Remuneration of
directors

Retirement,
appointment and
removal

Borrowing powers

Annual general
meetings

Notices of general
meelings

Quorum at general
meetings

Special resolution
majorities

EBT Articles

Subject 10 apphcable laws, the power
1o 1ssued umissued EBT Shares shall
rest with the Directors

No nights of pre-emphon apply in
favour of the Key Shareholders

Directors may exercise all powers and
do all acts which ray be performed by
the Company

Subject to exceptions, Directors may
not vote in relation to matters which
may {or may reasonably be regarded)
as giving nse to a conflict of interest

Directors’ aggregate remuneration
shall not exceed US$300,000 per
annum (unless otherwise approved by
ordinary resolution)

At each annuai general meeting one-
third of the Directors shall retire and
be subject to re-election The
Company may appoint and remove
Directors by ordinary resolution The
Board may also appoint and remove
Directors

The Board may exercise all of the
powers of the Company to borrow
money, to give guarantees and to
charge or mortgage all or part of the
Company's assets

The Board shall convene and the
Company shall hold annual general
meetings in accordance with the
requirements of applicable laws at
such time and place as the Board may
determine

An annual general meeting shall be
called by not fewer than 21 days’
notice and any other general meeting
by not fewer than 14 days’ notice

Two holders of Shares (in person or
by proxy)

A special resolution can be passed in
general meeting by a majonty of not
less that 75 per cent of the members
entitled to vote, and In writing by
members representing 75 per cent of
the total voting nights of eligible
members Written resolutions may
only be proposed by the directors or
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NewHoldCo Articles

Subject to nghts of pre-emption in
favour of the Key Shareholders, the
power to Issued unissued New Shares
shall rest with the NewHoldCo
Directors

NewHoldCo Directors may exercise
all powers and do all acts which may
be performed by NewHoldCo

Subject to exceptions, NewHoldCo
Directors may not vote in relation to
matters which may (or may
reasonably be regarded) as giving nse
to a cenflict of interest

NewHoldCo Directors’ aggregate
remuneration shall not exceed
US$300,000 per annum (unless
otherwise approved by ordinary
resolution)

At each annual general meeting one-
third of the NewHoldCo Directors shall
retire and be subject to re-election
NewHoldCo may appoint and remove
NewHoldCo Directors by ordinary
resolution The NewHoldCo Board
may also appoint and remove
NewHoldCo Directors

The NewHoldCo Directors may
exercise all of the powers of
NewHoldCo 1o borrow money, and to
charge or mortgage all or part of
NewHoldCo's assets

The NewHoldCo Directors shall
convene a general meeting at least
once In each calendar year

At least 14 days' notice In wnting to be
given

Two holders of New Shares (in person
or by proxy)

Two-third of the holders of New
Shares entitled to vote on the matter,
or all holders of New Shares entitled
to vote on the matter where the
resolution 1s taken in wnhting




Subject

COrdinary resolution
majorities

Voting nghts

Medification of nghts

Transter of shares

Drag along nghts

Tag along rights

Dividends

EBT Articles

members holding at least 5 per cent of
the 1ssued shares (unless the articles
state a lower percentage) of the
Company The removal of a director
or auditor before the expiration of hus/
its penod of office may not be passed
by written resolution

An ordinary resolution can be passed
in a general meeting or in wniing by
members representing a simple
majonty of the total voting nghts of
eligible members Whntten resolutions
may only be proposed by the directors
or members holding at least 5 per cent
of the 1ssued shares (unless the
articles state a lower percentage) of
the Company The removal of a
director or auditor before the
expiration of his/its perod of office
may not be passed by written
resolution

Subject to applicable law, each EBT
Shareholder present at a general
meeting (in person or by proxy) shall
have one vote on a show of hands and
one vote for each EBT Share held by
him on a poll

Subject to applicable laws, the nghts
attached to any class of EBT Shares
In i1ssue may only be varied or
abrogated with the consent in writing
of the holders of not less than three-
quarters in nomnal value of the
issued EBT Shares of the relevant
class

EBT Shares may be transterred with
the consent of the Board

No pre-emptive transfer rnights apply in
favour of the other Key Shareholders
in relation to any transfer of EBT
Shares by a Key Shareholder

Drag along nghts will apply where
EBT Shareholders helding at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares
accept an offer by a bona fide third
party to acquire all of therr EBT
Shares

Tag along nghts will apply in relation
to any transfer of shares which would
result in the transferee acquinng a

controlling interest in the EBT Shares

Final dividends
Subject to applicable laws, the
Company may by ordinary resolution
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NewHoldCo Articles

A stmple majonty of the holders of
New Shares entitled to vote on the
matter, or a majority of 75 per cent or
more of the voles of New Shares
entitled to vote on the matter where
the resolution 1s taken In writing

Each New Shareholder present at a
general meeting (1n person or by
proxy} shall have one vote on a show
of hands and one vote for each New
Share held by him on a poll

The nghts attached to any class of
New Shares in 1ssue may only be
vared or abrogated with the consent
in writing of the holders of not less
than three-quarters in nominal or par
value of the iIssued New Shares of the
relevant class

New Shares may be transferred with
the consent of the NewHoldCo
Directors

Pre-emptive transfer nghts in favour of
the other Key Shareholders apply to
any transfer of New Shares by a Key
Shareholder

Drag along nghts will apply where
New Shareholders holding at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued New Shares
accept an offer by a bona fide third
party to acquire all of their New
Shares

Tag along rights will apply in relation
to any transfer of shares which would
result in the transferee acquinng a
controlling interest in the New Shares

The NewHoldCo Directors may from
time 1o time declare dividends




Subject

Liguidation

EBT Articles

declare dividends, but no such
dividend shall exceed the sum
recommended by the Board

Intenm dividends

The Board may declare and pay fixed
dividends on any class of Shares
carrying a fixed dividend, and may
also from time to time declare and pay
interim dividends

Subject to applicable laws, on a
iiquidation of the Company, the
hquidator may, with the sanction of a
special resolution divide amongst the
EBT Shareholders the whole or any
pari of the assets of the Company and
may, for such purpose set such value
as he deems far upon any one ar
more classes of property and may
determine how such division shall be

NewHoldCo Articles
{including intenm dividends) in relation
to New Shares

On a liguidation of NewHoldCo, the
hquidator may, with the sanction of an
ordinary resolution divide amongst the
New Shareholders the whole or any
part of the assets of NewHoldCo and
may, for such purpose set such value
as he deems fair upon any property to
be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be
carned out as between the New

carned out as between the EBT
Shareholders or different classes

Shareholders or different classes

NewHoldCo's memorandum and
articies of association may be
amended by a special resolution of
the holders of the New Shares

Amendments to
memorandum and
articles of association

Not prowvided for

16. Principal differences between English and Cayman Islands company law

Shareholders of a Cayman Islands incorporated company may not have the same
protections (including protections against takeovers} which are equivalent to shareholders
of a company incorporated in England and Wales.

As NewHoldCo 15 incorporated in the Cayman Islands 1t 1s subject to the laws of that junsdiction
The Companies Act does not apply to NewHoldCo and Cayman Islands law does not provide
identical shareholder protections to those contained in the Companies Act Set out below 15 a
description of certain differences between companies incorporated in England and Wales and the
Cayman Islands

() Pre-emption nghts Shareholders do not have statutory pre-emplion nghts under the
Companies Law over further 1ssues of shares in NewHoldCo Certain resinctions on the ability
of the NewHoldCo directors to allot shares are contained in the NewHoldCo Articles, which
may be amended by a specal resolution of shareholders

(1) Takeovers The Companies Law does not contain provisions similar to those in the City Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “City Code”) which oblige a person or persons acquiring at
least 30 per cent of votmg nghts in a company to which the City Code applies to make an
offer to acquire the remainder of the shares In such company The New Shares are subject
to the compulsory acquisition ('Squeeze Qut") provisions set out in Section 88 of the
Companies Law Under these provisions, any offeror making a takeover offer which, within
four months of making the offer, has been approved by the holders of not less than 30 per
cent tn value of the shares to which the offer relates, 1s entitled tc acquire compulsonly from
dissenting shareholders those shares which have not been acquired or contracted to be
acquired on the same terms as under the offer

(m) Dusclosure of interests in shares The rules on disclosure by shareholders of Interests in a

company under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the UK Financial Services Authorty

and under sections 793 and related sections of the Companies Act are not applicable to

NewHoldCo Under the Companies Law, shareholders are not oblged to disclose ther

interests 1n the NewHoldCo In same way as shareholders of a company governed by the
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Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Companies Act The NewHoldCo Articles
incorporate provisions relating to disclosures of interests in the Company, but these may be
amended by a special resoluton of the shareholders

17. Incorporation and activity of BVICo

BVICo was incorperated in the Bntsh Virgin Islands on 12 February 2010 under the BVI Business
Companies Act 2004 (as amended} of the Bntish Virgin Istands as a business company with the
name EBT Digital Communications Retaii Limited and with registered number 1571258

BVICo's registered office 1s at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services {BV!) Limited, Walkers
Chambers, 171 Main Street, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110

BVICo has not traded since incorporation and has underlaken no activities other than those
assoclated with 1its administration and the Scheme

18. Share capital of BVICo

BVICo's memorandum of association limits the maximum amount of shares it may issue to, In
aggregate, US$50,000 dmided into 50,000 shares of US$1 00 each

On incorporation, one share in the capttal of BVICo was issued to NewHoldCo for a consideration
of US$1 00 on 12 February 2010

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 18, at the date of this document, there has been no issue of
share or loan capital of BVICo since iis incorporation and no share or loan capital of BVICo 1s
under option or agreed to be put under option

At the date of this document, BViCo has no subsidianes and, accordingly, there has been no
matenal 1ssue of share or loan capital by any subsidiary undertaking of BVICo for cash or other
consideration

The New BVI Share has not been marketed, and is not avalable in whole or in part to the public
No commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted in respect of the
1Issue of any share capital of BVICo

Under the Scheme, BVICo will 1ssue the New BVI Share, credited as fully pad, to NewHoldCo
Accordingly, the proposed authonsed, tssued and fully pad share capital of BVICo as 1t will be
following the Effective Date 1s as follows

Authorised Issued and paid
Class Number Nominal Value Number Nominal Value
Shares of US$1 00 each 50,000 US$50,000 2 us$2 00

19 Directors of BVICo

All of the existing Directors of the Company were appointed directors of BVICo on 12 February
2010 The directors of BVICo have been appointed to the board of BVICo n the same capacities
they currently hold on the Board

The business address of each of the directors of BVICo 1s Walkers Chambers, 171 Main Street,
Road Town, Tortola, Bntish Virgin Islands, VG1110

20. BVICo directors’ remuneration and benefits

In all matenal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appointments as directors of BVICo are the
same as the Directors' exisling arrangements with the Company, details of which are set out in
paragraph 7 of this Part

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by BVICo to, or for the benefit
of, any of the directors of BVICo

21. Share Schemes

21.1 Effect of the proposed Scheme on the Share Schemes

The majonty of options outstanding under the Share Schemes are already exercisable To the
extent that they are not, they will become exercisable for a penod of time either at the date of this
document (in the case of the Trading Exchange plc long-term incentive plan 2004 and the
Tradingspons Exchange Systems plc “Everyman” long-term mcentive plan 2004) or on the date on
which the Court sanctions the Scheme

30




The Company and NewHoldCo propose to offer optionholders the opportunity to exchange therr
options over EBT Shares for options over New Shares All other terms and conditions will remain
the same, as summarised below

21 2 The EBT Mobile China pic share option scheme 2007 and the EBT China plc share option

scheme 2009 (the "Schemes”’)

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date prnor to the publication of this document, there
were options outstanding over 5,728,000 shares under the Schemes

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e

The Schernes

The Schemes apply only In relation to options exchanged for options over New Shares No
new options will be granied under the Schemes The rules of the Schemes are similar, except
where specified below

Admurustration
The Schemes are administered by the Board or a duly authornsed committee of the Board

Exercise of options

Under the 2007 Scheme, the options are exercisable in three equal tranches after one, two
and three years If specified price targets are met (or, f later, the date on which that target 1s
met)

Under the 2009 Scheme, 50 per cent of the options granted are normally exercisable at the
rate of 1/16 quarterly over a pencd of four years from the date of grant The remaining 50
per cent are exercisable only on a hsting, sale or change of control If the performance target
has been salsfied Special provisions apply if the cptionholder dies or if the ophonholder's
employment terminates by reason of permanent incapacity wrongful or constructive dismissal
or where the employment contract 1s terminated in circumstances where the optionholder 1s
not in breach of contract

In both the 2007 and 2009 Schemes, a change in conirol will normally result in options being
exercisable for a short time after which they will lapse Options will normally lapse on the
tenth anniversary of the date of grant

Performance measures

Under the 2007 Scheme, the options are exercisable f the Company's average share price
over 20 days (as below) 1s as follows

Percentage of option

Share Price (pence) exercisable
36 333
43 333
52 334

Under the 2009 Scheme, the performance condition s set by reference to the Company's
share price at the date of a sale, listing or change of control, as set out in the table below

Percentage of option

Share Price (pence) exercisable
6 0
16 25
26 50
36 75
46 100

If the share price 1s between the two prices shown in the table, the percentage of the option
that 1s exercisable 1s calculated on a straight-hne basis

Shares

Shares i1ssued on the exercise of an option will rank par passu with existing Shares except
for any nghts attached to such Shares by reference to a record date pnor to the date of
atlotment
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(fy Vanation of share capttal
Under the 2007 Scheme, on any vanation of the share capital by way of captalisation or
rights 1ssue or by consolidation, sub-division or reduction of capital or otherwise, the Board
may make such adjustments as it considers appropnate to the exercise price and/or the
number of Shares compnsed in an option No such adjustment may be made without the
written confirmation from the Company’s auditors that it 15 1n thewr opinion fair and reasonable

Under the 2009 Scheme, on any vanation of the share capital by way of capitalisation or
nghts 1ssue or by consolidation, sub-division or reduction of capital or otherwise, the Board
may adjust the exercise price and/or number of shares compnsed in an option so that the
total exercise price multiphed by the number of shares in relaton to an option remains the
same (as nearly as possible}

(ay Amendments to the Schemes
The Board may amend the Schemes at any time in any respect No amendment may be
made to alter to the matenal disadvantage of any option holder any nghts already acquired by
him (except in the case of the 2009 Scheme where such amendments may be made with
written consent from the optionholder)

21.3 The Trading Exchange pic long-term incentive plan 2004 and the Tradingsporis Exchange
Systems pic “Everyman” long-term incentive plan 2004 (the “LTIPs")

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, there
were options outstanding over 1,773,000 shares under the LTIPs

(a) ThelTiPs
The LTIPs are similar in every respect to which this summary relates

(b) Admimstration

The LTIPs are administered by the remuneration committee of the board of directors (the
“*Committee™)

{c) Exercise of Awards
Options are already exercisable and the performance condiions have been satisfied

Options will lapse at the expiry of ten years from the date of grant

(dy Vanation of awards

The Committee may at any time make such adjustments to any outstanding awards as  shall
deem appropnate in the event of any capitalisaton 1ssues, nghts 1ssue, subdivision,
consolidation or reduction or other vanation in the share capital of the Company

(e) Amendments to the LTIPs

The Board may amend the LTIPs at any time in any respect The rules of the LTIPs relating
to ehgibilty, imits on the number of Shares avalable under the LTIPs, the basis for
determining an elgible employee’s participation, the maximum entitiement of any participant,
terms for share transfer and to the adjustment of awards on a varation of capitai and to the
amendment provisions may not, however, be amended 1o the advantage of existing or future
optionholders without the prior approval of the Company in general meeting except that the
Board may

() make any amendments necessary to comply wth or take account of a change In
legislation and 10 obtain or mantan favourable taxation, exchange contro! or regulatory
treatment of the Company, any of its subsidianes or any optionholder, and

(1 make minor amendments to benefit the administration of the LTIPs

21.4 2005 Options

individual options were granted over shares in EBT Mobile Limited on 1 June 2005 These were
exchanged for options over shares in the Company on 15 August 2005 The replacement options
were granted over Shares with a subscription pnce of £0 0197 per share As at 22 June 2010, the
latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this document, there were options outstanding
over 1,507,554 shares under the 2005 Options
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(a)

(b}

(©)

22.

Exercise of options

The options have both vested in full and may be exercised at any time untd the 10th
anniversary of their ongmal grant date

Vanation of options

If there 15 any alteration in the capital structure of the Company by way of capitalisation of
profits or reserves, nghts 1ssue, consolidation, sub-diwision or reduction of the share capital,
the Board may make such amendments to the options as it deems appropnate and as the
auditors of the Company cerlify in writing to be fair and reasonable

Amendment of options

The terms and condiions of the options may be altered by the Board except that no
alteration may adversely effect the terms of 1ssue of an option without the consent of the
optionholder

Material contracts

22.1 Contracts entered into by members of the Group

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have
been entered into by members of the Group In the period beginning on 24 June 2008 (being the
date two years prior to the date of this document) and ending on the latest practicable date pnor to
the publication of this document and are or may be matenal

(a)

(b)

Subscription Agreement

The Company and Ringlone have entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) dated 20 August 2009 Pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Agreement,
the Company agreed to allot and 1ssue 66,611,111 EBT Shares to Ringtone at a subscription
price of £0 09 per EBT Share

The proceeds of the subscnption of EBT Shares by Ringtone were utlised by the Company
to open new mobile phone/digital specialty retaul stores branded by, or co-branded with,
“EBT", for strategic mergers and acquisitions and as general working capital

Pursuant to the Subscrnption Agreement, the Company undertook to implement an operational
restructuring of the Group and to use reasonable efforts to iniiate a redomestication plan
within one year of approval of such plan by the Board The Company alse undertook to adopt
new articles of association at its next general meeting

Shareholders’ Agreement

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into the
Shareholders’ Agreement dated 24 August 2009 The Shareholders’ Agreement is intended to
regulate the relatonship between the Company and Ringtone, Audley, Tartan and CRV as
key shareholders in the Company

Under the Shareholders’ Agreement, each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan and CRV shall have
the nght, for so long as it holds at least 10 per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares, 1o nominate
one Director (and such Director shall alsc be a member of any committee of the Board)
Ringtone has nominated Mark Cuu as its Director and CRV has nominated James Reiman as
its Director Audley and Tanan may only exercise their nghts to appont a Director upon the
termination of the directorship of Dantel Skaff or Stephen Dawvidson by jointlly selecting his
replacement The Managers shall have the nght, for so long as they collectively hold at least
5 per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares, 10 nominate one Director {and such Director shall also
be a member of any committee of the Board), which person shall be the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company The Managers have nominated Zhang Ge as their Director

The partes to the Shareholders’ Agreement have undertaken to exercise all voting nghts and
powers of control avallable to them to procure that the Company shall not 1ake certain actions
without the prior wniten consent of any four of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the
Director appointed by the Managers (unless, in certain cases, the Director appointed by the
Managers has a conflict of interests, in which case the pror written consent of any three of
Ringtone, Audley, Taran and CRV shall be required) Such reserved matters include
expanding, developing or evolving the business of the Company other than through the
Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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(c)

In addiion, the parties to the Shareholders’ Agreement have undertaken to exercise all voting
nghts and powers of control available to them to procure that the Company shall not take
certain actions without the prior wntten consent of Ringlone and any three of Audley, Tartan,
CRV and the Director appointed by the Managers Such reserved matters include

() making any amendment to the memorandum or articles of association of any member of
the Group which would matenally alter the nghts of the EBT Shareholders or any subset
thereof,

(M entenng mto change of control transactions, Incuding any disposition of substantial
assets, business, undertaking, property, inteilectual property nghts or other assets,
except In connection with a sale of goods or services in the ordinary course of business
of the Group or for a sale of all or a substantial part of the existing Shares in which the
aggregate value of all Shares I1s valued at or more than US$250 mullion,

(m) allowing any amalgamation, demerger, merger, corporate reconstruction or consolidation
of the Company however effected,

(iv) taking any steps to wind up or dissolve the Company, Including making a proposal for a
voluntary arrangement under section 1 of the Insolvency Act 1986,

(v) authonsing, creating or issuing any Shares, on a cumulative basis, that will constitute
more than 20 per cent of the share capital of the Company at the relevant time, and

(vt} implementing any specific plan for changing the place of incorporation of the holding
company of the Group from the United Kingdom to the Cayman Islands

The Company has also undertaken not to 1ssue any Shares to any person except In
accordance with certain pre-emption nghts set out 1n the Shareholders’ Agreement, pursuant
to which Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers shall have the nght to subscrbe
to any such new Shares n proportion to therr existng shareholdings These pre-emptive
nghts shall not apply to any Shares i1ssued in connection with a business combination,
including the Company’s acquisition of another company by merger, consolidation, scheme of
arrangement or asset purchase or other re-organisation, provided that such transactions shall
have been approved in accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement

Termination Deed

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into a deed of
termination and release relating to the Shareholders’ Agreement dated 21 May 2010 (the
“Termination Deed”) Pursuant to the Terminaton Deed, the parties have agreed to
terminate the Shareholders’ Agreement and waive all nghts or clams aganst the other parties
under or in connection with the Shareholders’ Agreement, conditional upon

() the Scheme beccming effective pursuant to its terms, and

(n) NewHoldCo, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers entening into the New
Shareholders’ Agreement (further details of which are set out in paragraph 22 2 of this
Part)

22.2 Contracts entered into by NewHoidCo and BVICo

NewHoldCo, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into a sharehoiders’
agreement dated 21 May 2010 (the "New Shareholders’ Agreement”) The New Shareholders’
Agreement 1s intended to regulate the relationship between NewHoldCo and Ringlone, Audley,
Tartan and CRV as key shareholders in NewHoldCo, and 1s expressed to lake effect from the
Effective Date

The terms of the New Shareholders’ Agreement are matenally similar to those contained in the
Shareholders’ Agreement, as described In paragraph 22 t{b) above, with the following exceptions

(a)
(b)

()

references to “the Company” in paragraph 22 1({b) above should be construed as references
to NewHo!dCo in the context of the New Shareholders' Agreement,

references to “EBT Shares” in paragraph 22 1({b) above should be construed as references to
New Shares in the context of the New Shareholders’ Agreement,

references to “a Director” or “the Directors” in paragraph 22 1(b) above should be construed
as references to a NewHoldCo Directors or the NewHoldCo Directors respectively,
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(d} the terms of the New Shareholders’ Agreement differ from those contaned In the
Shareholders’ Agreement where required to reflect the difference in junsdiction and applicable
law between the Company and NewHoldCo, and

(e) where a party loses the nght to nominate a Director as a result of its holding of New Shares
falling below the spectfied percentage, the remaining parties {other than NewHoldCo) may by

unanimous consent nominate an additional Director to replace the Director previously
nominated by that party

Other than as contained in this paragraph 22 2, none of NewHoldCo nor BVICo has entered into
any contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, in the penod
beginning on the date of its incorporation and ending on the latest practicable date pror to the
publication of this document which are or may be matenal

23 Amendments to the EBT Articles

Part of the Special Resotution to be approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting relates
to the approval of certain changes to the EBT Articles The changes are set out in full in the notice
of General Meeting in Part 8 of this document

The proposed new Article 3A set out in paragraph 2 of the Special Resolution prowides a
mechanism to deal with existing nghts over EBT Shares Under the proposed new Article 3A, If the
Company 1ssues EBT Shares (other than to BVICo or its nominee(s))

(a) between the approval of the Scheme at the Court Meeting and the Scheme Record Time,
they will be subject to the Scheme, and

(b) after the Scheme becomes effective, BVICo will automatically becorme entitled to acquire such
EBT Shares in consideration for procuring that NewHoldCo 1ssues or procures the transfer of
an equivalent number of New Shares

24. No material change

Save as disclosed in this document, there has been no known matenal change in the financial or
trading position of the Company since 31 December 2009, being the date to which the latest
published audited financial statements of the Company were drawn up

25 Matenal hitigation

No member of the Group, NewHoldCo nor BVICo, 1s or has been engaged in any governmental,
legal or arbitration proceedings, claims, disputes or investigations (Including any such proceedings,
claims, disputes or investigations which are pending or threatened of which the Company 1s aware)
during the perniod covering at least the 12 months preceding the date of this document which may
have, or have had In the recent past, a significant effect on the Company or the Group’s financial
or trading position or profitability

26. Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours on
any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) up to and including the Effective
Date at the offices of Hogan Lovells International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG

(a) the memorandum and articles of association of the Company,
(b) the memorandum and articles of association of NewHoldCo,
(¢) the memorandum and articles of association of BViCo,

(d) the audited consolidated accounts of the Company for the three financial years ended
31 December 2009,

(e) copies of the undertakings referred to in paragraphs 6 and 9 above,

(i copes of the wniten consents referred to in paragraph 9 above,

{g) coples of the matenal contracts referred to in paragraph 22 above,

(h) this document and the Forms of Proxy, and

() copies of the Scheme Document and any revised versions of the Scheme Document
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PART 5
THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE NO 4957 OF 2010
CHANCERY DIVISION

COMPANIES COURT

REGISTRAR NICHOLLS

(A)

IN THE MATTER OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
-and -
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
(under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006)
between
EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
and
THE HOLDERS OF THE SCHEME SHARES

(as hereinafter defined)

PRELIMINARY

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions bear
the following meanings

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, publc holiday or bank
holiday, on which banks are generally open for normal business in the City of Londen,

“BVICo” means EBT Digial Communications Retal Limited, a business company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with registered number 1571258, having s registered
office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Walkers Chambers, 171 Main
Street, Road Town, Tortola, Bntish Virgin Islands,

“certificated form” or “in certificated form” means a share or other secunty which 1s not In
uncertificated form (that 1s, not in CREST),

“Companies Law” means the Companies Law, CAP 22 of the Cayman Islands, as amended,

“Company” means EBT Mobille China PLC, a public imited company incorporated in England
and Wales with registered number 4654471, having its registered office at Phoenix House,
18 King Wilham Street, London EC4N 7HE,

“Court” means the High Court of Justice in England and Wales,

“Court Meeting” means the meeting of the holders of EBT Shares convened with the
permission of the Court pursuant to sectton 896 of the Companies Act 2006 for 300 pm on
27 July 2010 to consider and, if thought fit, approve the Scheme, including any adjournment
thereof,

“CREST” means the system for the paperless setlement of trades In secuntes and the
holding of uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited in accordance
with the Regulations,

“EBT Shares” or “Shares” means ordinary shares of 01 pence each in the capital of the
Company,

“Effective Date” means the date on which this Scheme becomes effective in accordance with
its terms,

“holder” means a regisiered holder and includes any person(s) entitled by transmission,
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(C)

D)

(E)

“New BVI Share” means one share of US%1 00 in the caprtal of BVICo to be allotted and
1ssued to NewHoldCo in accordance with the Scheme,

“New Company Shares” means new ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each in the capital of the
Company to be allotted and i1ssued to BVICo in accordance with the Scheme,

“NewHoldCo” means EBT Digital Commurications Retall Group, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with registered number WK-237161, having its registered
office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Serwvices Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands,

“New Shares’’ means new shares of 01 pence each in the capital of NewHoldCo to be
allotted and 1ssued in accordance with the Scheme,

“Order” means the order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme and confirming the reduction
of capital involved in the Scheme,

“Order Date” means the date on which the Order 1s made or, if later, the date on which the
Crder 18 expressed to take effect,

“Regulations” means the Uncertficated Secunties Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3755), as
amended from time to time,

“Relevant Holders” means holders of Shares whose names appear In the register of
members of the Company at the Scheme Record Time,

“Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement in its present form or with or subject to any
modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by the Court,

“Scheme Record Time” means 6 00 pm (London time) on the Business Day immediately
preceding the Crder Date,

“Scheme Shares” means
(a) all EBT Shares in 1ssue at the date of this document,

(b} al (f any) additional EBT Shares i1ssued after the date of this document but up to the
Voting Record Time, and

(¢) all (f any) further EBT Shares which may be i1ssued at or after the Scheme Record
Time but at or prior o 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately preceding the Order
Date in respect of which the onginal or any subsequent holder thereof shail be bound by
the Scheme or shall by such time have agreed in wnting to be bound by the Scheme,

save for any Shares registered in the name of (or beneficially held by} NewHoldCo,

“uncertificated form” or “in uncertificated form” means a share or other security recorded
on the relevant register as being held in uncertificated form in CREST, and title to which, by
virtue of the Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST, and

“Voting Record Time” means 6 00 pm on the date which 1s two Business Days before the
date of the Court Meeting or, if the Court Meeting i1s adjourned, 6 00 pm on the second
Business Day before the date of such adjourned meeting

The Company's articles of association imit the maximum amount of shares it may i1ssue to, In
aggregate, £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each At the date
this statement 15 made, the Company has an 1ssued share capital of, in aggregate,
£269,756 34 with 269,756,335 ordinary shares of 01 pence each having been issued and
allotted fully paid

NewHoldCo was incorporated in the Cayman lslands on 12 February 2010 under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retal
Group

Pursuant to NewHoldCo's memorandum of association, its current authonsed share capital 1s
£400,000 divided inte 400,000,000 shares of 01 pence each The authonsed share capital
can be increased by a special resolution of its shareholders At the date this statement 1S
made, NewHoldCo has an 1ssued share capital of, in aggregate, £10 00 with 10,000 shares of
01 pence having been issued and allotted fully pad

BVICo was incorporated 1n the Bntish Virgin islands on 12 February 2010 under the BVI
Business Companies Act 2004 (as amended) of the Brtish Vogin Islands as a business
company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited
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(F)

(G)

1.2

1.3

22

32

33

BVICo's memorandum of association limits the maximum amount of shares it may 1ssue 1o, In
aggregate, US$50,000 dwided into 50,000 shares of US$100 each At the dale this
statement 1s made, BVICo has an issued share capial of, in aggregate, US$1 00 with one
share of US$1 00 having been i1ssued and allotted fully paid

NewHoldCo and BVICo have agreed to appear by Counsel on the heanng of the claim form
to sanction this Scheme and to undertake to the Court to be bound by the provisions of this
Scheme and to execute and do or procure to be executed and done all such documents, acts
and things as may be necessary or desirable to be executed or done by it for the purpose of
giving effect to this Scheme

Cancellation of Scheme Shares

The 1ssued share capital of the Company shall be reduced by cancellng and exiinguishing
the Scheme Shares

The Company shall be re-registered as a private mted company in accordance with the
Order of the Court authorising such re-registration under section 851 of the Compames Act
2006

Forthwith and contingently upon the reduction of caprital referred to in clause 1 1 taking effect,
the Company shall apply and capitalise the reserve ansing as a result of the reduction of
capital pursuant to clause 11 in paying up in full at par such number of New Company
Shares as shall be equal to the number of Scheme Shares cancelled pursuant to clause 11
of this Scheme, which shall be allotted and 1ssued credited as fully pad up (free from all
liens, charges, encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other
interests of any nature whatsoever) to BVICo and/or its nominee

Consideration for the Cancellation of the Scheme Shares

Subject to and in consideration for the cancellation of the Scheme Shares pursuant to clause
11 and the allotment and 1ssue of the New QOrdinary Shares to BVICo as provided in clause
13, BVICo shall (subject to, and in accordance with, the remaining terms of this Scheme)
allot and issue the New BVI Share credited as fully paid to NewHo!dCo and/or its nominee

Subject to and in consideration for the issue of the New BV| Share to NewHoldCo and/or its
nominee referred to in clause 2 1, NewHoldCo shall (subject 1o, and in accordance with, the
remaining terms of this Scheme) allot and issue New Shares credited as fully pad to
Relevant Holders on the basis of one New Share for each Scheme Share held at the
Scheme Record Time

Allotment and issue of the New BVI Share and New Shares

The New BV| Share o be 1ssued pursuant to clause 2 1 shall rank pari passu with all other
shares n the capital of BVICo in 1ssue on the Effectve Date, will be 1ssued free from all
hens, charges, encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other
interests of any nature whatsoever, and shall rank 1n full for ail dwvidends or other distnibutions
made, paid or declared after the Effective Date on the ordinary share capital of BVICo in
accordance with BVICo's bye-laws

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to clause 2 2 shall rank parr passu with all other New
Shares In I1ssue on the Effective Date, will be i1ssued free from all liens, charges,
encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other interests of any nature
whatsoever, and shall rank in full for all dividends or distributions made, paid or declared after
the Effective Date on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo in accordance with
NewHoldCo's bye-laws

Immediately after this Scheme becomes effective

(a) BVICo shall make all such allotment of and shall 1ssue such New BVI Share as is
required to be issued to give effect to this Scheme to NewHoldCo, and

(b) NewHoldCo shall make all such allotments of and shall 1ssue such New Shares as are
required to be issued 10 give effect to this Scheme to persons respectively entiled
thereto,

such consideration to be settled as set out in clause 3 4, but subject to clause 35
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Settlement of the consideration shall be effected as follows

(@) the New BV| Share shall be issued to NewHoldCo in certificated form and a share
cettificate for those shares shall be 1ssued to NewHoldCo by the fourteenth day following
the Elfective Date, and

(o) i respect of a holding of Scheme Shares
() In uncertificated form, or
() in certhcated form,

the New Shares to which the Relevant Holder is entitted will be 1ssued In registered
form Each holding of New Shares will be entered into the regster of members of
NewHoldCo, which will constitute evidence of ownership of such shares pursuant to the
Companies Law Share certficates in respect of the New Shares will only be i1ssued by
NewHoldCo following written request by the relevant holder of such shares

The provisions of this clause 3 shall be subject to any prohibiion or condition imposed by
law Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, if, In respect of any holder of
Scheme Shares with a registered address in a junsdiction outside the United Kingdom or the
Cayman lslands, NewHoldCo 1s advised that the allotment and/or issue of New Shares
pursuant to this clause 3 would infringe the laws of such junsdiction or would or may require
NewHoldCo to observe any governmental or other consent or any registration, fiing or other
formalrty, with which NewHo!dCo s unable 1o comply or which NewHoldCo regards as unduly
onerous to comply with, NewHoldCo may, in its sole discretion, either

(a} determine that New Shares shall not be allotted and 1ssued to such holder under this
clause 3 but shall instead be allotted and 1ssued to a nominee appointed by NewHoldCo
as trustee for such holder on terms that the nominee shall, as soon as practicable
following the Effective Date, sell the New Shares so allotted and issued at the best price
which can reasonably be obtained and account for the net proceeds of such sale (after
the deduction of all expenses and commissions, including any amounts In respect of
value added tax payable thereon) by sending a cheque to such holder In the absence
of bad faith or wilful default, none of the Company, NewHoldCo or the nominee or any
broker or agent of any of them shall have any liability for any loss or damage ansing as
a result of the timing or terms of such sale, or

(b) determine that New Shares shall be sold, in which event the New Shares shall be
issued to such holder and NewHoldCo shall appoint a person to act pursuant to this
clause 3 5(b) and such person shall be authonsed on behalf of such holder to procure
that any shares in respect of which NewHoldCo has made such determination shall as
soon as practicable following the Effectve Date be sold at the best price which can
reasonably be obtained at the time of sale and the net proceeds of such sale (after the
deduction of all expenses and commissions, mcluding any amounts In respect of value
added tax payable thereon) shall be paid to such holder by sending a cheque to such
holder To give effect any to such sale, the person so appomnted shall be authonised on
behalf of such holder to execute and deliver a form of transfer and to give such
instructions and to do all other things which he may consider necessary or expedient in
connection with such sale In the absence of bad fath or wilful default, none of the
Company, NewHoldCo or the person so appointed or any broker or agent of any of
them shall have any hability for any loss or damage arsing as a result of the timing or
terms of such sale, and

() n the case of Scheme Shares in certificated form at the Scheme Record Time,
NewHoldCo shall on behalf of the nominee or person apponited pursuant to clause
35(a) make any cash payment pursuant to clause 3 5(a) by delvering to the persons
respectively entitled thereto, or as they may direct, cheques n stering drawn on a UK
clearing bank by post by the fourteenth day following the Effective Date

All deliveries of notices, documents of title and cheques required to be made by this clause
shall be effected by posting the same by first class post in pre paid envelopes addressed to
the persons respectively entitled thereto at therr respective addresses as appearnng in the
register of members (or, In the case of jont holders, to the address of that one of the joint
holders whose name stands first in the sad register of members In respect of the joint
holding} at the Scheme Record Time
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Neither the Company nor NewHoldCo shall be responsible for any loss or delay in the
transmission of the documents of title posted in accordance with clause 3 6 which shall be
posted at the nsk of the addressee

Transfers of the New Shares 1ssued tc Relevant Holders pursuant to this Scheme shall be
certified against the register of members of NewHcldCo

Certificates

With effect from and including the Effective Date, all certificates representing Scheme Shares
shall cease to be vald for any purpose and Relevant Holders shall at the request of the
Company return such certificates for cancellation to the Company or to any person appomted
by the Company

with effect from and including the Effective Date, in respect of those Relevant Holders
holding Scheme Shares in uncertificated form, Euroclear UK & ftreland Limited shall be
Instructed to cancel such holders’ entitlement to such Scheme Shares

Mandated payments

Each mandate relating to the payment of dividends on any Scheme Shares and other
nstructions given to the Company by Relevant Holders in force at the Scheme Record Time
shall, unless and untif amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be an
effective mandate or instruction to NewHoldCo In respect of the corresponding New Shares to
be allotted and 1ssued pursuant to this Scheme

Operation of this Scheme

This Scheme shall become effective in accordance with its terms as soon as an office copy
of the Order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme under section 899 of the Companies Act
2006 and confirming under section 648 of that Act the reduction of capital provided for by this
Scheme shall have been duly delivered to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales
for registration and, in the case of the capital reduction, if the Order of the Court confirming 1t
so speacifies, registered by him

Unless this Scheme shall become effective on or before 30 September 2010 or such later
date, if any, as the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may agree and the Court may allow,
this Scheme shall never become effective

The Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may jointly consent on behalf of all persons concerned
to any medification of or addition to this Scheme or te any condition which the Court may
approve or impose

Dated 24 June 2010
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PART 6
DEFINITIONS

“AIM” means the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange,

“Audley”’ means Audley Capital Management Limited, a company hmited by shares incorporated in
Guernsey with registered number 43347, having its registered office at Trafalgar Court, Les
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey, acting as investment manager for

(a) Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, a company hmited by shares
incorporated In Guernsey with registered number 43411, having its registered office at
Trafalgar Court, Les Bangques, St Peter Port, Guernsey,

(b) Audley Investment |, a company imited by shares incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
registered number 154492, having its registered office at PO Box 308, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1 — 1104, Cayman lslands, and

(¢) Audley Investment Il, a company hrmited by shares incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
registered number 156439, having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1 — 1104, Cayman Islands,

“Board” means the board of directors of the Company,

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, public holday or bank holiday, on
which banks are generally open for normal business in the City of Londen,

“BVICo” means EBT Digital Communications Retait Limited, a business company incorporated 1n
the British Virgin Islands with registered number 1571258, having its registered office at the offices
of Walkers Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Walkers Chambers, 171 Main Street, Road Town,
Tortola, British Virgin Islands,

“Capita Registrars” means a trading name of Capita Registrars Limited,

“Chairman” means the chairman of the Board,

“Compantes Act” means the Companies Act 2006, as amended,

“Companies Law” means the Companies Law, CAP 22 of the Cayman Isiands, as amended,

“Company” means EBT Mobile China PLC, a public limited company incorporated in England and
Wales with registered number 4654471, having its registered office at Phoenix House, 18 King
William Street, London ECAN 7HE,

“Court” means the High Court of Justice in England and Wales,

“Court Hearing” means the hearing by the Court of the clam to sanction the Scheme and confirm
the reduction of capital involved in the Scheme,

“Court Meeting” means the meeting of the holders of EBT Shares convened with the permission
of the Court pursuant to section 896 of the Companies Act for 300 pm on 27 July 2010 to
consider and, If thought fit, approve the Scheme, including any adjournment thereof, notice of
which 1s set out in Part 7 of this document,

“CREST” means the system for the paperless settiement of trades in secunties and the holding of
uncertificated securiies operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited in accordance with the
Regulations,

“CRV” means China Retall Venture #1, Inc, a corporation incorporated in the state of Delaware,
United States with registered number 90-0118835, having its registered office at Corporate Trust
Centre, 1209 Orange Street, Wimington, Newcastle, Delaware 198C1, United States,

“Directors” means the persons whose names are set out wn paragraph 4 of Part 4 of this
document or, where the context so requrres, the directors of the Company frem time to time, and
“Director” shall be construed accordingly,

“EBT Articles” means the articles of association of the Company,

“EBT Shareholders” or “Shareholders” means the holders of EBT Shares from time to time, and
“EBT Shareholder’ and “Shareholder” shali be construed accordingly,

“EBT Shares” or “Shares” means ordinary shares of 01 pence each In the capial of the
Company,
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“Effective Date” means the date on which the Scheme becomes effective In accordance with its
terms,

“Forms of Proxy” means both the white form of proxy for use at the Court Meeting and the blue
form of proxy for use at the General Meeting which accompany this document, and “Form of
Proxy” shall be construed accordingly,

“General Meeting" means the general meeting of the Company convened by the notice set out in
Part 8 of this document, including any adjournment thereof,

“Group” means, before the Effective Date, the Company and its subsidianes and subsidiary
undertakings, and, following the Effective Date, NewHoldCo and its subsidianes and subsidiary
undertakings,

“Key Shareholders” means the parlies, other than NewHoldCo, to the New Shareholders'
Agreement,

“Managers” means certain members of the Company’'s management who are parties to the
Shareholders’ Agreement,

“Meetings” means the Court Meeling and the General Meeting, and “Meeting” shall be construed
accordingly,

“New BVI Share”” means one share of US$1 00 in the capital of BViCo to be allotted and 1ssued
to NewHoldCo in accordance with the Scheme,

“New Company Shares” means new ordinary shares of 01 pence each in the capital of the
Company to be allotted and i1ssued to BVICo in accordance with the Scheme,

“NewHoldCo" means EBT ODigtal Communications Retal Group, an exempted company
incorporated In the Cayman islands with registered number WK-237161, having its registered office
at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman islands,

“NewHoldCo Articles” means the articles of association of NewHoldCo,
“NewHoldCo Board” means the board of directors of NewHoldCo,

“NewHoldCo Director” means the directors of NewHoldCo from time to time, and “NewHoldCo
Director” shall be construed accordingly,

“New Shareholders” means the holders of New Shares,

“New Shareholders’ Agreement” means a shareholders’ agreement dated 21 May 2010 between
NewHcldCo, Ringtone, Audiey, Tartan, CRV and the Managers,

“New Shares” means new shares of 0 1 pence each n the capiial of NewHoldCo to be allotted
and 1ssued In accordance with the Scheme,

“Order” means the order of the Court sanctoning the Scheme and confirming the reduction ot
capital involved in the Scheme,

“Order Date” means the date on which the Order 1s made or, if later, the date on which the Order
15 expressed to take effect,

“Overseas Shareholders” means EBT Shareholders who are resident in, or citizens or nationals
of, junsdicions outside the Umted Kingdom, and “Overseas Shareholder” shall be construed
accordingly,

“Regulations” means the Uncertificated Securnities Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3755), as amended
from time to time,

“Relevant Holders” means holders of Shares whose names appear n the register of members of
the Company at the Scheme Record Time,

“Re-organisation” means the corperate re-organisation and winding up of the Company which 1s
proposed to take place as soon as practicable after the Effectve Date, as described in more detall
In paragraph 2 of Part 1 of this document,

“Ringtone” means Ringtone Invesiment Limited a company imited by shares incorporated in the
Briish Virgin Islands with registered number 1540988, having its registered office at Kingston
Chambers, PO Box 173, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands,

“Ringtone Shares” means 10,000 shares in the capital of NewHoldCo,
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“Scheme” or "Scheme of Arrangement” means the scheme of arrangement in its present form,
as set out in Part 5 of this document, or with or subject to any modification, addition or condition
approved or imposed by the Coun,

“Scheme Document” means this circular dated 24 June 2010 addressed to Shareholders
containing, among other things, the terms and conditions of the Scheme, cerain information abouwt
the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo, the notices convening the Meetings and an Explanatory
Statement 1n compliance with section 897 of the Companies Act,

“Scheme Record Time” means 600 pm ({London time) on the Business Day immedately
preceding the Crder Date,

“Scheme Shareholders” means the holders of Scheme Shares, and “Scheme Shareholder” shall
be construed accordingly,

“Scheme Shares” means
{a) all EBT Shares in issue at the date of this document,

(b) all {f any} additional EBT Shares 1ssued after the date of this document but up 1o the Voting
Record Time, and

(c) all (if any) further EBT Shares which may be 1ssued al or after the Scheme Record Time but
at or prior to 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately preceding the Crder Date in respect
of which the onginal or any subsequent holders thereof shall be bound by the Scheme or
shall have agreed in writing to be bound by the Scheme,

save for any Shares registered In the name of (or beneficially held by) NewHoaldGo,
“SEC” means the US Securities and Exchange Commussion,
“Sacurities Act” means the US Secunties Act of 1933, as amended,

“Shareholders’ Agreement” means a shareholders’ agreement dated 24 August 2009 between

the Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers,

“Share Schemes” means

(a) the Trading Exchange plc long-term incentive plan 2004,

(b)Y the Tradingsports Exchange Systems plc “Everyman” long-term incentive plan 2004,

(c) the options granted on 1 June 2005 over shares in EBT Mobile Limited and exchanged for
options over shares in the Company on 15 August 2005,

(d) the EBT Mobile China plc share option scheme 2007, and
{e) the EBT Mgchile China plc Share Option Scheme 2009

“Special Resolution” means the special resolution to be proposed at the General Meeting in
connection with, inter alia, the implementation of the Scheme,

“Subscriber Share” means one new share in the capital of NewHoldCo, which was 1ssued on
incorporation of NewHoldCo to Walkers Nominees bimited and subsequently transferred to
Ringtone,

“Subscription Agreement” means a subscrption agreement dated 20 August 2009 between the
Company and Ringtone,

“Tartan” means Tartan Investment Pariners Fund GP Limited, a company hmited by shares
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with registered number WK-224125, having its registered office
at 1st Floor, Windward 1, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman
Islands, acting as investment manager for Tartan Invesiment Partners, LP, a limited partnership
incorporated 0 the Cayman Islands with registered number WK-32466 having its registered office
at 1st Floor, Windward 1, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman
Islands,

“Termination Deed” means a deed of termination and release relating to the Shareholders’
Agreement dated 21 May 2010 between the Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the
Managers,

“United Kingdom” means the United Kingdom of Greal Bntan and Northern Ireland,
“United States” or “US” means the United States of Amenca, its terrtories and possessions and
any state of the United States,
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“US$” or “US dollars” means United States dollars, or the lawful currency of the United States
from time to time,

“Voting Record Time” means 6 00 pm on the day which i1s two Business Days before the date
of the Count Meeting or, If the Court Meeting 1s adjourned, 6 00 p m on the second Business Day
before the date of such adjourned meeting, and

“£” means pounds Sterling, or the lawful currency of the United Kingdom from time to time
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PART 7

NOTICE OF COURT MEETING

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE 4957 of 2010
CHANCERY DIVISION
COMPANIES COURT

IN THE MATTER OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
- AND -
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

Notice 1s hereby given that, by an order dated 18 June 2010 made in the above matters, the Court
has directed a meeting to be convened of holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the Scheme of
Arrangement referred to below) save for EBT Digital Communications Retail Group for the purpose
of considenng and, if thought fit, approving (with or without modification) a scheme of arrangement
proposed 10 be made between EBT Mobile China PLC (the “Company”) and holders of the
Scheme Shares {the “Scheme of Arrangement”) and that such meeting will be held at the offices
of Hogan Lovelis International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on
27 July 2010 at 300 pm at which place and time all holders of Scheme Shares are requested to
attend

A copy of the said Scheme of Arrangement and a copy of the slatement required to be furnished
pursuant to section 897 of the Companies Act 2006 are (ncorporated in the document of which this
notice forms part

Holders of Scheme Shares may vote in person at the meeting or they may appoint another
person as their proxy to attend and vote in their stead. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company. A white form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed with this notice.

In the case of joint holders of Scheme Shares the vote of the semior who tenders a vote, whether
in person or by proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holder(s)
and for this purpose seniorty will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members of the Company In respect of the relevant joint holding

It 1s requested that forms appointing proxies be lodged with Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU not less than 48 hours {excluding non-working days) before the
start of the meeting but, if forms are not so lodged, they may be handed to the charman at the
meeting

Entittement to attend and vote at the meeting and the number of votes which may be case thereat
will be determined by reference to the register of members of the Company at 600 pm on the
Business Day pnor 10 the Business Day immediately before the meeting or any adjourned meeting
(as the case may be)

By the said order, the Court has appointed Stephen Dawidson, or faling him, Daniel Skaff to act as
chairman of the meeting and had directed the charman to report the result of the meeting to the
Court

The said Scheme of Arrangement will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the Court

Dated 24 June 2010

Hogan Lovells international LLP

Atlantic House

Holborn Viaduct

London EC1A 2FG

Solicitors for the Company

Notes

1 Amember of the Company entitied 10 attend and vote at this meeting 1s enhtled to appomnt one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote and, on a poll, vote instead of lum or her 1f you wish for your proxy or proxies to make any comments on your behalt,
you will need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give them the relevant instructions direclly A proxy need not be
a member of the Company
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Membaers are entitled to appont a proxy in respect of some or afl of their shares A space has been included in the white form of
proxy to allow members to spectfy the number of shares in respect of which that proxy is appointed Members who return the
while form of proxy duly executed but leave this space blank will be deemed to have appointed the proxy n respect of all of
therr shares You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy s appointed to exercise rights attached to different
shares You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share To appoint more than one
proxy, please photocopy the white form of proxy Please indicate the proxy holder's name and the number of shares in relation
1o which they are authonsed to act as proxy (which, In aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by the
member} Piease also indicate 1f the proxy imstruction 1s one of multiple instructions being given  All forms must be signed and
should be returned together in the same envelope

A white form of proxy 1s enclosed with this notice Instructions for use are shown on the ferm Lodging a white form of proxy will
not prevent the member from attending and voting In person

To be valid, the white form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authonty {if any) under which it 1s signed, or a
duly certiied copy thereof, must be deposiled by post or {dunng normal business hours onty) by hand with the Company’s
registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours before the ime
for holding the meeting or, as the case may be, the adjourned meeting Forms of proxy returned by fax will not be accepted If
the white form of proxy 1s not so lodged, it may be handed to the Chairman of the Court Meeting before the start of the Court
Meeting and will still be vald

The Company, pursuant to regulation 41(1) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (S | 2001/3755), speciies that
only those shargholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 6 00 pm on 23 July 2010 shall be entitled to
attend or vote at the mesting in respect of the number of shares registered n their name at that time Changes to entries on the
register after 6 00 pm on 23 July 2010 will be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting

In the case of joint holders of ordinary shares the vote of the senior shareholder who tenders a vole, whether in person or by
proxy, will be accepted lo the exclusion of the other jeint holder(s) and for this purpose senionty will be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the register of members of the Company n respect of the relevant joint holding

Shareholders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for the meeting or any
adjournment(s) by using the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures described in the
CREST Manua! CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voling service provider(s), should refer to thewr CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s}, who will be able to
take the appropniate action on their behalf

in arder for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate CREST message (a
"CREST Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Ltd's specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as descnbed n the CREST Manua! The message, regardless
of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the nstruction given to a previously appointed proxy,
must, 1n order to be vahd, be transmitted so as to be receved by the Company's agent, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU {ID RA10), by no later than the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the
notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the uimestamp applied to
the message by the CREST apphcations Host) from which the 1ssuer's agent 1s able to retneve the message by enguiry to
CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this ttme any change of nstructions to proxies appointed through CREST
should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, thewr CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Ltd does not make avalable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and
hmitations will therefore apply in relation to the mput of CREST Proxy Instructions 11 1s the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take {or, if the CREST member s a CREST sponsor or voting service provider{s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time In this connechion,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical kmitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invald a CREST Proxy Instruction in the crcumstances set out in Regulation 35(5){a) of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulation 2001
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PART 8
NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that a general meeting of EBT Mohile China PLC (the “Company”) will be
held at the offices of Hogan Lovells International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG on 27 July 2010 at 330 pm {or as soon thereafter as the meeting of the holders of
Scheme Shares (as defined in the scheme of arrangement dated 24 June 2010 (the “Scheme”)
between the Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the Scheme), a print of
which has been produced to this meeting and for the purposes of identification has been signed by
the chatrman of this meeting) convened for 3 00 pm on the same day and at the same place, by
an order of the High Court of Justice, shall have concluded or been adjourned) for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolution which will be proposed as a special
resolution

Special Resolution
THAT

1 for the purpose of giving effect to the Scheme n its onginal form or with or subject 10 any
modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by the Court,

{a) the directors of the Company be authonsed to take all such action as they may consider
necessaty or appropriate for carrying the Scheme into effect,

(by the share capsal of the Company be reduced by cancelling all the Scheme Shares,

(c) forthwith and contingently on such reduction of capital taking effect, the reserve ansing
In the books of account of the Company as a result of the cancellation of the Scheme
Shares be applied 1n paying up in full at par such number of new ordinary shares of 01
pence each as shall be equal to the number of Scheme Shares cancelled at sub-
paragraph (b) above, such new ordinary shares to be allotted and i1ssued credited as
fully paid to EBT Digital Communications Retal Limited and/or its nominee(s), and

{d) the directors of the Company be hereby authonsed pursuant to and in accordance with
section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) to give effect to this resolution and
accordingly to effect the allotment of the new ordinary shares referred to in sub-
paragraph (c) above, provided that

(1 this authonty shall expire on 27 July 2015,

() the maximum aggregate nominal amount of shares which may be allotted
hereunder shall be £269,756 34, and

(m) this authority shall be without prejudice to any other authonty under section 551 of
the Act previously granted before the date on which this resolution 1s passed,

2 conditional on the Scheme becoming effective, the arlicles of association of the Company be
and are hereby amended by the adoption and inclusion of the following new article 3A

“3A. Shares not subject to Scheme of Arrangement

(1) In this arhicle, references to the “Scheme” are to the Scheme of Arrangement
between the Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the
Scheme) dated 24 June 2010 {as the same may have been modfied with the
consent of the Company, NewHoldCo, BVICo and the Court) under section 899 of
the Companies Act 2006 and terms defined in the Scheme shall have the same
meanings In this article

(2) Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Aricles, if the Company i1ssues any
Shares (other than to NewHoldCo or any subsidiary of NewHoldCo (a
“"NewHoldCo Group Company”)) on or after the date of the adoption of this
article and prior to 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately prior to the date of
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the hearing to sanction the Scheme (the “Hearing Date”) such Shares shall be
issued subject to the terms of the Scheme and the holder or holders of such
Shares shall be bound by the Scheme accordingly

(3) H any Shares are 1ssued to any person (a “new member”) at or after 6 00 pm on
the day before the Heanng Date they will, provided that the Scheme has become
effective and that BVICo 15 a member of the Company, be immediately transterred
to BVICo (unless such shares are issued to a NewHoldCo Group Company) in
consideration of and condiional on the 1ssue to the new member of such number
of New Shares as that member would have been entitted to had each Share
transferred to BVICo hereunder been a Scheme Share at the Scheme Record
Time, being shares in NewHoldCo which rank pan passu with all other shares in
NewHoldCo for the time being in issue including any dwidends or distributions
made, paid or declared thereon following the date on which the transfer of the
shares in the Company 1s executed

{4) The number of shares in NewHoldCo to be i1ssued to the new member under this
article may be adjusted by the directors Iin such manner as the Company’s auditor
may determine on any re-orgamsation of the share capitatl of the Company or of
NewHoldCo

(5) To give effect to any such transfer requied by this article, the Company may
appoint any person to execute a form of transfer on behalf of the new member in
favour of BVICo and to agree for and on behalf of the new member to become a
member of NewHoldCo Pending the registraton of BVICo as the holder of any
share to be transferred pursuant to this article, BVICo shall be empowered to
appoint a person nominated by the directors to act as attorney on behalf of each
holder of the share in accordance with such directions as BVICo may give In
relation to any dealings with or disposal of such share {(or any interest theren),
exercising any nghts attached thereto or receiving any distnbution or other benefit
accruing or payable in respect thereof and the registered holder of such share shall
exercise all nghts attaching thereto n accordance with the directhons of BVICo but
nct otherwise ”

24 June 2010

By order of the Board

Capia Company Secretanal Services Limited
Secretary

Registered office
Phoenix House

18 King Wilham Street
London EC4N 7HE

Registered in England and Wales no 4654471

Notes

1

A mamber of the Company entitled Lo attend and vote at this meeting 1s enttled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote and, on a poll, vote instead of him or her If you wish for your proxy or proxies to make any comments on your behaff,
you will need to appoint someone other than the Chatrman and give them the refevant instructions directly A proxy need not be
a member of the Company

Members are entitied to appoint a proxy In respect of sorme or all of thewr shares A space has been included in the blue form of
proxy to allow members 10 specify the number of shares in respect of which thal prexy is appointed Members who return the
blue form of proxy duly executed but leave this space blank will be deemed o have appointed the proxy in respect of all of thewr
shares You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy 1s appointed to exercise nghts attached Lo different shares
You may not appomnt more than one proxy lo exercise nghts attached to any one share To appont more than one proxy,
please photocopy the blue form of proxy Please indicate the proxy holder’s name and the number of shares i relation to which
they are authonsed to act as proxy (which, in aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by the member) Please
also indicate if the proxy instruction 1s one of multiple instruchions being given All forms must be signed and should be returned
together in the same envelope

A blue form of proxy 1s enclosed with this notice Instructions for use are shown on the form Lodging a blue form of proxy wall
not prevent the member from attending and voting in person
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To be vald, the blue form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authonty (if any) under which it 1s signed, or a
auly certified copy thereof, must be deposited by post or {dunng normal business hours only} by hand with the Company’s
registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours before the tme
for holding the meeting or, as the case may be, the adjourned meeting Forms of proxy returned by fax will not be accepted
The Company, pursuant o regulation 41{1) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (S | 2001/3756), specifies that
only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 6 00 pm on 23 July 2010 shall be entitled to
attend or vote at the meeting i respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time Changes to entnies on the
register after 6 00 pm on 23 July 2010 will be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vole at the
meeting

In the case of joint holders of ordinary shares the vote of the senior shareholder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holder(s) and for this purpose senicnty will be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the register of members of the Company in respect of the relevant joint holding

Shareholders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appoint a proxy or proxes for the meeting or any
adjournment(s) by using the CREST electrornuc proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures described in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider(s}, should refer to their CREST spansor or voling service provider(s}), who will be able to
take the approprniate action on thewr behalf

in order for a proxy appomtment or instructton made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate CREST message (a
"CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly authenlicated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Ltd's specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The message, regardless
of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy.,
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted s0 as 1o be receved by the Company's agent, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU (ID RA1Q}, by no later than the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the
notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the ime (as determined by the timestamp apphed to
the message by the CREST applications Host) from which the 1ssuer's agent is able to retneve the message by enguiry to
CREST in the manner prescrbed by CREST After this time any change of instruchions to proxies appointed through CREST
should be communicated to the appomtee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Ltd does not make available special procedures in CREST for any parhicular messages Normal system timings and
limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions itis the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take {or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular ime In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, thewr CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerming practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invald a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out n Regulation 35(5){(a) of the
Uncertificated Secunttes Regulation 2001
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ANNEX 1
CURRENT GROUP STRUCTURE

Shareholders

The Company

EET Mobile Limited
(incorporated in

Hong Kong)
|
]
1AtoZ Beying Co, EBT international Trade
(incorporated m China)* {Shanghai} Co Ltd
{incorperated in China)

Shanghal YBT Service

Consulting Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China)

Communication Terminal

|
i Shanghar Everbright
|

Hube! Yiteng
Telecommunications
Prcducts Co, Ltd
(incorporated n China)

Products Distnbution Ltd
(ncorporated in China)

Suzhou Everbright
Communication Terminal

Suzhou Yiteng
Telecommunications
Products Co, Lid
(incorporated in China)

Products Distnbution Ltd
{incorporated in China)

*Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the issued share capital of 1AtoZ Beying Co, Ltd EBT Mobile Limited 1s able to

exercise control through exclusive purchase nghts and accrued benefil nights arrangements
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Shanghai EBT
Telecommunications
Products Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China}




ANNEX 2
GROUP STRUCTURE FOLLOWING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SCHEME

Shareholders

|

NewHoldCo

BVICo

The Company

l

EBT Mobile Limited
incorporated In
Hong Kong

EBT International Trade
{Shanghai} Co Ltd
{incorporated n China)

1AtoZ Beying Co,
(incorporated in China)*

Huber Yiteng
Shanghai YBT Service Telecommunications

Consulting Co, Ltd Products Co, Lid
{incorporated in China) (ncorporated in China)

Shangha Everbnght Suzhou Yiteng
Communtcation Termunal Telecommunications
Products Distnbutionltd Products Co, Ltd

{incorporated in China} {incorporated in China)
Suzhou Everbnght Shanghai EBT
Comrmunication Terminal Telsacommunications

Products Distnbution Ltd Products Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China) {(incorporated in China}

*“Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the issued share capital of IAtoZ Beyng Co, Lid EBT Mobile Limited 1s able to
exercise control through exclusive purchase nghts and accrued benefit nghts arrangements
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ANNEX 3

Shareholders

NewHoldCo

BVICo

EBT Mabile Limited
(incorporated in
Hong Kong)

GROUP STRUCTURE FOLLOWING RE-ORGANISATION

1Al0Z Beling Co,
{incorporated in China)*

Shanghal YBT Service
Consulting Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China)

Shanghail Everbnght
Communication Terminal
Products Distnbution Ltd

(incorporated in China)

Suzhou Everbnght
Communication Terminal
Products Distnibution Lid

(incorporated in China)

EBT International Trade
{Shanghai} Co Ltd
(incomporated in China)

Hube! Yiteng
Telecommunications
Products Co, Ltd
(ncorporated in China)

Suzhou Yiteng
Telecommunicahions
Products Co, Lid
(incorporated in China)

Shangha: EBT
Telecommunications
Products Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China)

*Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the issued share capital of 1AtoZ Beying Co, Lid EBT Mobile Limited 1s able to
exercise control through exclusive purchase nghls and accrued benefit nghts arrangements
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reducing its capital supported by a for a company re-registering from
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E Statement of capital (Share capital in pound sterling (£))

Please complete the table below to show any class of shares held in pound sterling
if all your 1ssued capital 1s in sterling, only complete Section 2 and then go {o Section 5.

Class of shares Amount paid up on Amounl (if any) unpaid Number of shares € Aggregate nominal valus €
(Eg Ordinary/Preference efc ) gach share € on each share € \
|Ord1nary ’ £0 00 ’ £0 00 | 0 |E 0
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Statement of capital

Currency

Class of shares

(E g Ordinary/Preference eic )

Amount paid up on

Amount (if any} unpaid
each share @

on each share @

Number of shares € | Agaregate nominal value €

| | [

| | |

|
|
|

Totals |

;
|

© Including both the nominal value and any

share premium

© Total number of 1ssued shares in this class

© Number of shares 1ssued mulBplied by
nommal value of each share
page f necessary

Continuation pages
Please use a Statement of Capital continuation

Statement of capital (Totals)

Please give the total number of shares and total aggregate nominal value of
issued share capitat

Total number of shares

Total aggregate ©
nominal value
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different cumrencies separately
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ele

Statement of capital (Prescnbed particulars of nights attached to shares

)

Please give the prescnibed particulars of nghts attached to shares for each class
of share shown in the statement of capital share tables in Sectton 2
and Section 3.

Class of share

=

Prescribed particulars
©

Class of share

Prescribed particulars
(5]

© Proscnbed particulars of rights
attached to shares

The particulars are

a particutars of any voting rights,
inciuding nghts that anse only in
cerlain circumstances,

b particulars of any nghts, as
respects dnidends, to participate
in a distribution,

¢ partculars of any nghts, as
respects capdal, to participate n a
distnbution (including on winding
up), and

d whether the shares are to ba
redeemed or ara hable to be
redeemed al the ophon of the
company or the shareholder and
any terrns or conditions relating 1o
redemption of these shares

A separate table must be used for
each class of share
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Statement of capital

Class of share

-

Prescribed particulars
o

Class of share

Prescribed particulars
o

@ Prescnbed parhiculars of nghts
attached to shares

The particulars are

a particulars of any voting nghts,
including nghts that anse only n
certain crcumstances,

b particulars of any nghts, as
respects dividends, to participate
in a distnbution,

¢ partculars of any nghts as

distnbuticn {including on winding
up), and

d whether the shares are to ba
redeemed or are liable to be
redeemed at the oplion of the
company or the shareholder ang

redemption of these shares

A separate lable must be used for
each class of share

Please use a Statement of capital
continuation page \f necessary

respects capital, to parkicipate in a

any terms or condilions relating to

o

Signature
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Signature

Signature

X Lj"z"‘(fé?/\/—‘

© Societas Eurapaea
i tha farm 15 being filed on behalf
of a Sooietas Europaea (SE), please
delete 'director’ and insert detars
of which argan of the SE the person
signing has membership

© Percon authorised

This form may be signed by Under erther section 270 or 274 of
Director @, Secretary, Person authonsed ©, CIC manager the Comparues Act 2006
CHFPO25

510 Version 4 0




SH19

Statement of capital

B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have 10 give any centact information, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there 1s a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

Please note that all information on this form will
appear on the public record

E How to pay

Iumﬁm"‘ Michael Bloch

[Tmrpany nama
Hogan Lovells International
F LLP

‘MW“ Atlantic House

rHolborn Viaduct

l Posttwn  1.ondon

1 County/Region

N G L

i Country

IDX 57 Londen Chancery Lane

Telephone  +44 20 7296 2000

ChecKlist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the
following

("] The company name and number match the
information held on the public Regrster

You have completed the relevant sections of the
statement of capial

You have signed the form

You have enclosed the correct fee

0O O

A fee of £10 is payable to Companies House to
reduce the share capital by Court Order or hy
Solvency Statement

Make cheques or postal orders payable to
'‘Companies House’

EWhere to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return it to the appropriate address below.

For companies registered in England and Wales®
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

For companies registered in Scotland,

The Registrar of Companies, Compantes House,
Fourth fioor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 SFF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

For companies registered in Northern Ireland-
The Regssirar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast1

ﬂ Further information

For further mformation, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk or
email enquines@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov uk

CHFP025
510 Version 40




DATED 17 AUGUST 2010

The Companies Acts 1985 - 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of
EBT MOBILE CHINA LIMITED

(As amended by Court Order dated 17 August 2010)

Hogan
Lovells

Hogan Lovells International LLP
Atlantic House, Holborn \Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG

42334 00018




Index

Clause No

Preliminary

Share capital

Shares

Shares not subject to Scheme of Arrangement
Deferred shares

Share certificates

Calls on shares

Forfeiture and lien

Transfer of shares

Uncertificated shares

Transmission of shares

Drag Along

Transfers of Substantial Interests - Tag Along
Share warrants to bearer

General meetings

Notice of general meetings
Proceedings at general meetings
Votes of members

Disclosure of interests

Proxies

Corporations acting by representatives
Directors

Appointment and retirement of directors
Meetings and proceedings of directors
Committees of the directors

Powers of directors

Alternate directors

Secretary

Provision for employees

Untraceable members

Borrowing powers

The seal

Authentication of documents
Reserves

Dividends

Page No.

o W N O

10

13
15
16
17
18
19
19
19
20
23
24
26
29
29
34
37
40
40
41
42
42
42
43
43
44
44
44




35
36
37
38

39.
40.
41.

Capitalisation of profits and reserves
Accounts

Auditors

Notices

Destruction of documents

Winding up

Indemnity

47
48
48
49
52
53
53




The Companies Acts 1985 - 2006

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of
EBT MOBILE CHINALIMITED

{As amended by Court Order dated 17 August 2010)

11

12

Preliminary
Table A not fo apply

The following articles shall be the articles of associaton of the Company and no
regulations set out in any statute, or in any statutory instrument or other subordinate
legislation made under any statute, concerning companies shall apply as regulations or
articles of the Company

Interpretation

in these articles, unless the context otherwise requires, the followming words and
expressions have the meanings set out opposite them

"2006 Act' means the Companies Act 2006 including any statutory modification or re-
enactment for the time being 1n force,

"Accepting Shareholder” has the meaning given in article 12 3,

"Act” means the Companies Act 1985 including any statutory modification or re-
enactment for the time being 1n force,

"AIM" means the AIM market operated by the Lendon Stock Exchange,

"Assoclate" In relation {o any person means any person who 1s an associate of such
person and the question of whether a person is an associate of another 1s to be
determined 1n accordance with section 435 of the Insolvency Act 1986, and {whether or
not an associate as so determined),

"Audley" means Audley European Master Fund on behalf of Audley Capital Management
Limited,

"these articles” means these articles of association as altered from time to time,

"Board" means the directors from time to time of the Company or the directors present at
a meeting of the directors at which a quorum 1s present,




"Business Day" means a day other than a day which 1s a Saturday, a Sunday or public
holiday in England,

"Called Shareholders” has the mearung given in article 11 3,

"Cash Memorandum Account” means an account so designated by the Operator of the
relevant system concerned,

"certificated” in relation to a share means a share which i1s not an uncertificated share,
"Company"” means EBT Mobile China Limited,

"Controlling Interest" means an interest in Shares giving to the holder or holders control
of the Company within the meaning of section 840 of the Income and Corporation Taxes
Act 1988,

"CREST" means the relevant system (as defined in the Regulatiens) of which Euroclear
UK & Ireland Limited (formerly known as CRESTCo Limited) 1s the Operator (as defined
in the Regulations),

"Drag Along Notice” has the meaning given in article 11 1,

"electronic communication" has the same meaning as in the Electronic
Commumcatons Act 2000,

"electronic form" and "electronic means" have the same meaning as in section 1168 of
the 2006 Act,

"Gartmore” means Gartmore Investments Limited on behalf of The Alphagen Volantis
Fund Limited, The Gartmore UK Small Cap Best Ideas Fund Limited, Gartmore UK and
Insh Smaller Companies Trust plg, Strathclyde Pension Fund, Gartmore Smaller
Companies Trust plc and Gartmore Growth Opportunities Trust plc,

“hard copy form" has the same meaning as in section 1168 of the 2006 Act,
“month” means calendar month,

"Offer" has the meaning given in article 11 1,

"Operator" has the meanmg given in the Regulations,

"paid” means paid or credited as paid,

"participating 1ssuer” has the meaning given in the Regulations,
"participating secunity” has the meaning given in the Regulations,

"properly authenticated dematerialised instruction” shall have the mearning given in
the Regulations,

"Proposed Transfer" has the meaning given in article 12 1,
"Proposed Transferee” has the meaning given in article 12 1,
"Proposing Seller" has the meaning given in article 12 1,
"Purchaser” has the meaning given in article 111,

"record date" has the meaning given in article 34 17,

2




13

"Register” means the register of members of the Company,
"Registered Office" means the registered office of the Company from time to time,

"Regulations" means the Uncertificated Secunities Regulations 2001 (S| 2001 no 3755)
including any statutory modification or re-enactment and any rules made thereunder or
any regulations made Iin substitution under section 207 of the Companies Act 1989 and
for the time being in ferce,

"Relevant class" has the meaning given in article ¢ 1{e),
"relevant system” has the meaning given in the Regulations,

"Secretary” means the secretary for the time being of the Company or any other person
appointed to perform the duties of the secretary of the Company including a joint,
assistant or deputy secretary,

"Share" means each ordinary share of 0 1 p in the capital of the company,
"Shareholder" means a person registered as the holder of a Share,

"Statutes” means the Act, the Companies Act 1989, the 2006 Act and all other statutes,
orders, prospectus rules (including the Prospectus Rutes published by the Financial
Services Authonty (In I1ts capacity as a competent authonty for the purposes of Part V| of
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000), Isting rules (including the AIM Rules
published by the London Stock Exchange and the Listing Rules published by the
Financtal Services Authonty, transparency rules (including the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules pubhshed by the Financial Services Authonty)), regulations and other
subordinate legislation for the tme being in force concerning companies so far as they
apply to the Company,

"Treasury Shares” has the meaning given in the Act (as amended by the Companies
(Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 and The Companies
(Acquisthion of Treasury Shares) No 2 Regulations 2003),

"uncertificated” in relation to a share means a share the title to which 1s recorded In the
Register as bemng held in uncertificated form and which, by virtue of the Regulations, may
be transferred by means of a relevant system,

"United Kingdom" includes England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland but excludes
the Channel Islands and the Isle of Man,

"working day" has the meaning given in section 1173(1) of the 2006 Act,

"in writing" means written or produced by any substitute for wnting or partly one and
partly another, and

"year" means calendar year
In these articles

(a) reference to any statute or statutory provision includes a reference to that statute
or statutory provision as amended, extended or re-enacted and for the time being
in force and to any regulation, order, instrument or subordinate legisiation under
the relevant statute or statutory provision,

{b) where the context so admits words and expressions used in the Regulations shall
bear the same meaning in these articles,

3
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21

22

(c) references In these articles to a share (or to a holding of shares) being in
uncertificated form or in certificated form are references, respectively, to that
share being an uncertificated unit of a secunty or a certificated unit of a secunty,

(d) a dematenalised instruction shall be treated for the purposes of these articles as
properly authenticated f 1t complies with the specificatons referred to In
paragraph 5(b) of schedule 1 to the Regulations,

(e) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural and vice versa,
{j] reference to any gender includes a reference to all other genders,
(9) headings are included only for convenience and shall not affect meaning,

(M) references to persons include bodies corporate, unincorporated associations and
partnerships and any reference to any party who 1s an individual 1s also deemed to
include their respective legal personal representatives,

n unless the context (or this article or article 12) otherwise require, words or
expressions defined in the 2006 Act (or in the absence of such definition therein,
in the Act) shall have the same meanings in these articles,

() reference to presence at a general meeting or class meeting shall include
presence of a member by one or more duly authonsed representatives and shall
include presence which 1s deemed i accordance wih these articles (and
"presence” shall be construed accordingly), and

(k) references to a relevant system shall be deemed to relate to the relevant system
in which the particular share or class of shares or renounceable nght of allotment
of a share concemed in the capital of the Company I1s a participating secunty for
the time being and all references in these articles to the giving of an instruction by
means of a relevant system shall be deemed to relate to a properly authenticated
dematenalised instruction given in accordance with the Regulations and the giving
of such instructions shall be subject to

n the faciliies and requirements of the relevant system,
() the extent permitted by the Regulations, and

(m) the extent permitted by or practicable under the rules, procedures and
practices from time to time of the Operator of the relevant system

Registered Office

The Registered Office shall be at such place in England and Wales as the Board shall
from time to time appoint

Share capital
Authonsed share capital

The authonsed share capital of the Company at the date of adoption of these articles 1s
£400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each

Varnation of nghts

Whenever the share capital of the Company 1s divided into different classes of shares, the

special nghts for the time being attached to any share or class of share in the Company

may, subject to the provisions of the Statutes, be varned or abrogated either with the
4
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24

25

26

consent in wnting of the holders of not less than three-quarters in nominal value of the
Issued shares of the class or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class (but not otherwise} and
may be so vaned or abrogated whilst the Company 1s a going concern or during or in
contemplation of a winding-up To every such separate general meeting all the provisions
of these articles relating to general meetings of the Company and to the proceedings at
such general meetings shall with necessary modifications apply, except that

(a) the necessary quorum shall be two persons holding or representing by proxy at
least one-third in nominal value paid up of the 1ssued shares of the c¢lass (but so
that If at any adjourned meeting a quorum as defined above I1s not present, any
one holder of any shares of the class present in person or by proxy shall be a
quorum), and

{b) any holder of shares of the class present in person or by proxy may demand a poll
and every such holder shall on a poll have one vote for every share of the class
held by him

Article 2 2 shall apply to the vanation or abrogation of the special nghts attached to some
only of the shares of any class as If each group of shares of the class differently treated
formed a separate class the special nghts of which are to be vaned

The special nghts attached to any class of shares having preferential nghts shall not,
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of 1ssue of that class of shares, be
deemed to be vaned

(a) by the creation or 1ssue of further shares ranking as regards participation Iin the
profits or assets of the Company in some or all respects equally with such shares
but in no respect in priority to such shares,

(b) by the purchase by the Company of any of its own shares (and the holding of any
such shares as Treasury Shares), or

(c) by the Board resolving that a class of shares shall become, or the Operator of the
relevant system permitting such class of shares to be, a participating secunty

Increase in share capital

The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution increase its capital by such
sum to be divided into shares of such amounts as the resolution shall prescrnbe All new
shares shall be subject to the provisions of the Statutes and of these articles with
reference to allotment, payment of calls, hen, transfer, transmission, forfeiture and
otherwise

Consolidation, subdivision and cancellation
The Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution

(a) consolidate and divide all, or any of 1ts share capital into shares of larger nominal
value than its existing shares,

(b) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not
been taken, or agreed to be taken, by any person and diminish the amount of its
capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled,

{c) subject to the provisions of the Statutes, sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into
shares of smaller nominal value than 1s fixed by the memorandum of association
and so that the resolution whereby any share 1s sub-divided may determine that,
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as between the shares resulting from the sub-division, any of them may have any
preference or advantage or be subject to any restriction as compared to the
others

Fractions on consolidation

Whenever as a result of a consolidation of shares any members would become entitled to
fractions of a share, the Board may deat with the fractions as 1t thinks fit and in particular
may sell the shares representing the fractions to any person (including, subject to the
provisions of the Statutes, the Company) and distnbute the net proceeds of sale in due
proportion among those members and the Board may authorise some person to transfer
or deliver the shares to, or in accordance with the directions of, the purchaser The
person to whom any shares are transferred or delivered shall not be bound to see to the
apphcation of the purchase money nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any
irregulanty in, or invalidity of, the proceedings relating to the sale

Reduction or cancellation

The Company may by special resolution reduce or cancel its share capital or any
revaluation reserve or share premiusm account or any other reserve fund In any manner
and with and subject to any confirmation or consent required by law and any nghts for the
time being attached to any shares

Purchase of own shares

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and any special nghts for the ttme being attached
to any shares, the Company may purchase or may enter into any contract under which 1t
will or may purchase at any price, any of its own shares of any class {(including any
redeemable shares) and may hold (and sell) any of such shares as Treasury Shares Any
shares to be so purchased may (subject to any resolution of the Company n general
meeting) be selected in any manner determined by the Board

Where there are in 1ssue convertible secunities convertible mnto or carrying a nght to
subscribe for equity shares of a class proposed to be purchased, a separate meeting of
the holders of the convertible secunties must be held and ther approval by special
resolution obtaned before the Company enters into any contract to purchase equity
shares of the relevant class Subject to this and notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in these articles, the nghts and privileges attached to any class of shares shall
be deemed not to be altered or abrogated by anything done by the Company mn
pursuance of any resotution passed under the powers conferred by the preceding article

Shares
Trust etc inferest not recogrused

Except as ordered by a court of competent junsdicton or as required by law, the
Company shall not be bound by or required Iin any way to recognise (even when it has
notice) the terms of any trust on which any shares are held or any equitable, contingent,
future or partial interest in any share or any interest in any fractional part of a share or
{except only as otherwise provided by these articles or by law) any other rnight in respect
of any share except an absolute nght of the holder to the entirety of such share

Rights attaching to shares on issue

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and without prejudice to any special nghts for the
time being conferred on the holders of any shares or class of shares for the time being
issued, any share in the Company may be 1ssued with such preferred, deferred or other
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spectal nghts, or subject to such restrictions, whether in regard to dividend, return of
capital, voting or otherwise, as the Company may from time to ttme by ordinary resolution
determine (or, in the absence of any such determination, as the Board may determine)

Redeemable shares

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and of any resolution of the Company n general
meeting passed In pursuance of such provisions, the Company may 1ssue shares which
are to be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or the
shareholder, and such shares shall be redeemed on such terms and in such manner as
may from time to time be provided by these articles

Board's power to allot

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes (and of any resolution of the Company in general
meeting passed pursuant to such provisions} and of these articles, all unissued shares
shall be at the disposal of the Board and it may allot with or without conferring a nght of
renunciation, grant options over or otherwise dispose of them to such persons, at such
times and on such terms as it thinks fit

Commissions on issue of shares

The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by the Statutes
to the full extent thereby permitted The Company may also on any 1ssue of shares pay
such brokerage as may be lawful

Renunciation of allotment

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and of these articles, the Board may at any tme
after the allotment of any share but before any person has been entered in the Register
as the holder recoghnise a renunciation of such share by the allottee In favour of some
other person and may accord to any allottee of a share a nght to effect such renunctation
upon and subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may think fit to impose

Register

Subject to the Act or the 2006 Act (as applicable), the Company shall enter on the
Register how many certificated and, for as long as any shares of the Company are
publicly quoted, uncertificated shares each member holds

Shares not subject to Scheme of Arrangement

In this article, references to the "Scheme" are to the Scheme of Arrangement between the
Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the Scheme) dated 24 June
2010 (as the same may have been modified with the consent of the Company,
NewHoldCo, BVICo and the Court) under section 899 of the Companies Act 2006 and
terms defined in the Scheme shall have the same meamngs in this article

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, If the Company I1ssues any Shares
(other than to NewHoldCo or any subsidiary of NewHoldCo (a "NewHoldCo Group
Company™}) on or after the date of the adoption of this arbicle and prior to 6 00 p m on the
Business Day wnmediately prior to the date of the heanng to sanction the Scheme (the
"Hearng Date") such Shares shall be 1ssued subject to the terms of the Scheme and the
holder or holders of such Shares shall be bound by the Scheme accordingly

If any Shares are 1ssued to any person {a "new member”") at or after 6 00 p m on the day
before the Heanng Date they will, provided that the Scheme has become effective and
that BVICo 1s a member of the Company, be immediately transferred to BVICo {(unless
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such shares are 1ssued to a NewHoldCo Group Company} in consideration of and
conditional on the 1ssue to the new member of such number of New Shares as that
member would have been entitled to had each Share transferred to BVICo hereunder
been a Scheme Share at the Scheme Record Time, being shares in NewHoldCo which
rank pan passu with all other shares in NewHoldCo for the time being in 1ssue including
any dividends or distnbutions made, paid or declared thereon following the date on which
the transfer of the shares in the Company 1s executed

The number of shares in NewHoldCo to be 1ssued to the new member under this article
may be adjusted by the directors in such manner as the Company's auditor may
determine on any re-organisation of the share capital of the Company or of NewHoldCo

To give effect to any such transfer required by this article, the Company may appoint any
person to execute a form of transfer on behalf of the new member n favour of BVICo and
to agree for and on behalf of the new member to become a member of NewHoldCo
Pending the registration of BVICo as the holder of any share to be transferred pursuant to
this article, BVICo shall be empowered to appoint a person nominated by the directors to
act as attorney on behalf of each holder of the share in accordance with such directions
as BVICo may give n relation to any dealings with or disposal of such share (or any
interest therein), exercising any nghts attached thereto or receiving any distribution or
other benefit accruing or payable in respect thereof and the registered holder of such
share shall exercise all nghts attaching thereto in accordance wath the directions of BVICo
but not otherwise

Deferred shares

The holders of deferred shares (as holders of deferred share) shall not be entitled to
recewve any dividend or distnbution and shall not be entitled to receive notice of, nor to
attend, speak or vote at any General Meeting of the Company On a return of assets,
whether on hquidation or otherwise, the deferred shares shall not entitle the holder thereof
to any participation in the assets or profits of the Company

The special resolution passed adopting these articles shall be deemed to confer
irrevocable authonty on the Company at any time to appoint any person to execute on
behalf of the holders of the deferred shares remaining in 1ssue (if any) a transfer thereof
and/or an agreement to transfer the same, without making any payment to the holders
thereof, 1o such persan as the Company may determine as custodian thereof and to
cancel and/or acquire the same (in accordance with the provisions of the Act) without
making any payment to or obtaining the sanction of the holders thereof and pending such
transfer and/or the cancellation and/or purchase to retain the certificate (if any) for such
shares The Company may, at its option at any time, redeem all or any of the deferred
shares then in issue (if any), at a price not exceeding 1 penny for all the deferred shares
redeemed, at any time upon giving the registered holder of such share or shares not less
than 30 days prevtous notice in wrniting of its intention s0 to do, fixing a time and place for
its redemption

Upon the redemption or purchase by the Company or cancellaton of any Deferred
shares, the directors may, pursuant to the authonty given by the adoption of this Article,
convert and sub-divide the authorised share capial created as a consequence of such
redemption or purchase by the Company or cancellation into shares of any class of share
capital into which the authonsed share capital of the Company 1s or may at that time be
divided of a like nominal amount (as nearly as may be) as the shares of such class then in
IsSsue
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Share certificates

General

Subject to the Statutes, the Board may by resolution determine, either generally or in any
particular case or cases, that share certificates need not be issued under a seal The
Board may by resolution decide, either generally or in any particular case or cases, that
any signatures on any share certificate need not be autographic but may be applied to the
certificates by mechamcal means or may be pnnted on them or that the certificates need
not be signed by any person

A share certificate (other than a bearer certificate) must include the following matters on
its face (or on the reverse In the case of (f) below)

(a) the authonty under which the issuer 1s constituted and the country of incorporation
and registered number,

(b) the number or amount and class of secunties the certificate represents and, If
applicable, the number and denomination of units (in the top nght-hand comer),

(c) a footnote stating that no transfer of the securnty or any portion of the secunty
represented by the certficate can be registered without production of the
certificate,

(d) if applhcable, the minimum amount and multiples of that amount in which the

securty 1s transferable,
(e) the date of the certificate, and

(f) for shares with preferential nghts, on the face {or, f not practicable, on the
reverse), a statement of the conditions as to capital, dwidends and (where
applicable) conversion or redemption

The overall size of a share certificate (other than a bearer certificate) must be no larger
than 22 5cm x 20cm

Joint holders

in the case of a certificated share held jointly by several persons the Company shall not
be bound to 1Issue more than cne certificate for such certificated share and delivery of a
certificate to one of two or more joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all

Issue of share certificate

Subject to the provisions of these articles, every person (except a London Stock
Exchange nominee in respect of which the Company 1s not by law required to complete
and have ready for delivery a certificate) whose name 1s entered in the Register in respect
of any certificated shares of any one class, shall upon the issue or transfer of such
certificated shares, be entitled without payment to a certificate for such certificated shares
(in the case of 1ssue) within one month (or such longer pernod as the terms of 1ssue shall
provide) after allotment or (in the case of a transfer of fully-paid shares) within fourteen
days after lodgement of the transfer or (in the case of a transfer of partly-paid shares)
within two months after lodgement of transfer




Balance certificate

56 Where some only of the shares compnsed in a share certificate are transferred the old
certificate shall be cancelled and a new certfficate for the balance of such certificated
shares shall be issued without charge

Replacement of share certificates

57 Any two or more certificates representing certificated shares of anyone class held by any
member may at his request and or surrender of the onginal certificates be cancelled and a
single new certificate for such shares 1ssued in eu without charge

58 If any member shall surrender for cancellation a share certificate representing certificated
shares held by him and request the Company to 1ssue in lieu two or more share
certificates representing such shares in such proportion as he may specify, the Board
may, If it thinks fit, comply with such request

59 If a share certificate shall be defaced, worn cut or alleged to have been lost, stolen or
destroyed, 1t shall be replaced without charge (other than exceptional out-of-pocket
expenses)} but on such terms (If any) as to evidence and indemnity as the Board may
think fit and, where 1t 1s defaced or worn out, after delivery of the old certfficate to the
Company

510 In the case of certificated shares held Jointly by several persons any request for a new
share certificate may be made by anyone of the joint holders

6. Calls on shares
Power to make calls

61 The Board may from time to time make calls upon the members in respect of any money
unpaid on their shares (whether an account of the nominal value of the shares or, when
permitied, by way of prermium) but subject always to the terms of 1ssue of such shares A
call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board
authonsing the call was passed and may be made payable by instalments A person
upon whom a call 1Is made shall remain hable on such call notwithstanding the subsequent
transfer of shares In respect of which the call was made

Liabiltty for calls

62 ~Each member shall {subject to receiving no fewer than fourteen days' notice specifying
the time or times and place of payment) pay to the Company at the time or times and
place so specified the sum called on his shares The joint holders of a share shall be
jointly and severally hable to pay all calls in respect of such share A call may before
receipt of the Company of any sum due thereunder be revoked or postponed in whole or
in part as regards all or any members as the Board may determine

Interest on overdue sums

63 If a sum called in respect of a share 1s not paid before or on the day appomnted for
payment of such sum, the person from whom the sum 1s due shall pay interest on the sum
from the day appointed for payment of such sum to the time of actual payment at such
rate (not exceeding 15 per cent per annum) as the Board determines but the Board shall
be at iberty to waive payment of such interest wholly or in part
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Cther sums due on shares

Any sum (whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium)
which by the terms of 1ssue of a share becomes payable upon allotment or at any fixed
date shall for all the purposes of these articles be deemed to be a call duly made and
payable on the date on which by the terms of issue the same becomes payable In case
of non-payment all the relevant provisions of these articles as to payment of interest and
expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as If such sum had become payable by virtue
of a call duly made and notified

Power to differentiate between holders

The Board may on the allotment or 1ssue ¢f shares differentiate between the allottees or
holders of such shares as to the calls to be made and the times of payment

Payment of calls in advance

If the Board thinks fit the Company may receive from any member who 15 willing to
advance them all or any part of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon the shares held by
him and upon all ar any of the maoneys so advanced may (until they would, but for the
advance, become payable) pay interest at such rate, not exceeding {unless the Company
by ordinary resclution shall otherwise direct) 15 per cent per annum as the Board may
decide While any amount paid up in advance of calls on any share may entitle the holder
of the share to interest it shall not entitle the holder to participate 1n respect of that amount
i any dividend

Forfeiture and lien
Notice on failure to pay a call

If a member fails to pay in full any call or instalment of a call on the due date for payment
of such call or instalment, the Board may at any time after the fallure serve a notice on
him or any person entitled to the shares by transmission requirnng payment of so much of
the call or instalment as 1s unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued on
such call or instalment and any expenses incurred by the Company by reason of such
non-payment

The notice shall name a further day (being not fewer than seven days from the date of
service of the notice) on or before which, and the place where, the payment required by
the notice 1s to be made, and shall state that in the event of non-payment in accordance
with such notice the shares on which the call was made will be hable to be forfeited

Forferture for non-compliance

If the requirements of any such notice as 1s referred to in the preceding article are not
comphed wtth, any share in respect of which such nctice has been given may at any time
after the non comphance, before payment of all calls and interest and expenses due In
respect of such share has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that
effect Such forfeiture shall include all dividends declared in respect of the forfeited share
and not actually paid before forfeiture The Board may accept a surrender of any share
hable to be forfeited under these articles

Notice on previous holder

Where any share has been forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be served upon the

person who was the holder of the share before forfeiture or, in the case of a person

entitted to such share by transmussion, upon such person (as the case may be) An entry

recording the fact that notice of forfeiture has been given and that the share has been
1
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forfeited shall immediately be made in the Register in respect of such share However, no
forfeiture shall be invalidated n any manner by any omission or neglect to give such
notice or make such entry

Disposal of forferted shares

A share forfeited or surrendered shall become the property of the Company and, subject
to the Statutes may be sold, re-allotted or disposed of in any other way either to the
person who was the holder of such share or entitled to such share before such forferiture
or surrender, or to any other person upon such terms and in such manner as the Board
shall think fit and at any time before a sale, re-alloiment or other disposition the forfeiture
may be annulled by the Board on such terms as it thinks fit The Board may, if necessary,
authorise some person to transfer a forfeited or surrendered share to any such other
person

Holder to remain hable despite forferfure

A member whose shares have been forfeited or surrendered shall cease to be a member
In respect of the shares (and shall surrender to the Company for cancellation the
certificate for such shares) but shall notwithstanding the forfeiture or surrender remain
hable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture or surrender were
presently payable by him to the Company 1n respect of the shares with interest on such
shares at such rate (not exceeding 15 per cent per annum) as the Board may determine
from the date of forfeiture or surrender until payment The Board may at its absolute
discretion enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the time
of forfeiture or surrender or waive payment in whole or In part

Lien on partly-pard shares

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share {not being a fully paid
share) for all moneys (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time
in respect of such share The Board may waive any lien which has ansen and may
resolve that any share shall for some hmited penod be exempt wholly or partially from the
provisions of this article

Sale of shares subject to hen

The Company may sell in such manner as the Board thinks fit any share on which the
Company has a hen, but no sale shall be made unless some sum In respect of which the
hen exists 1s presently payable nor until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice Iin
writing stating and demanding payment of the sum presently payable and giving notice of
intention to sell in default shall have been given to the holder for the time being of the
share or the person entitled to such share by reason of his death, bankruptcy, iqudation
or otherwise

Proceeds of sale of shares subject to hen

The net proceeds of sale of shares subject to a hen (after payment of the costs of such
sale) shall be applied in or towards payment or satisfaction of the debts or habilties in
respect of which the lien exists so far as the same are presently payable and any residue
shall (subject to a ke lien for habiities not presently payable as existed upon the shares
prior to the sale) be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the time of the sale For
giving effect to any such sale the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shares
sold to, or in accordance with the directions of, the purchaser
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Evidence of forferture

A statutory declaration in wnting that the declarant 1s a director or the Secretary and that a
share has been duly forfeited or surrendered or sold to satisfy obligations covered by a
lien of the Company on a date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of
the facts stated in the declaration as aganst all persons claming to be entitled to the
share Such declaration shall (subject to the execution of a transfer if the same be
required) constitute a good title to the share and the person to whom the share 1s sold, re-
allotted or disposed of shall be registered as the holder of the share and shall be
discharged from all calls made prior to such sale or disposition and shall not be bound to
see to the application of the purchase moneys (if any) nor shall his title to the share be
affected by any irregulanty or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the forfeiture,
surrender, sale, re-allotment or other disposal of the share

The forfeiture of a share shall extinguish at the time of forferture all interest in and claims
and demands agamnst the Company in respect of the share and all other nghts and
habiities inadental to the share as between the holder whose share 1s forfeited and the
Company, except only such of those nghts and habiliies as are by these articles
expressly saved, or as are by the Act or the 2006 Act (as applicable) given or imposed in
the case of past members

Transfer of shares
Transfer of securifies without a wrilten instrument

Title to any secunties of the Company may be evidenced and title to and interests in
secunities may be transferred without a written instrument In accordance with statutory
regulations from time to time made under the Statutes, and the Board shall have power to
implement any arrangements it may think fit for such evidencing and transfer which
accord with those regulations

Form of transfer

Subject to articles 8 1 and 9, all transfers of cerificated shares may be effected by
transfer in writing 1in any usual or comman form or In any other form acceptable to the
Board and may be under hand only The instrument of transfer shall be signed by or on
behalf of the transferor and (except in the case of fully paid shares) by or on behalf of the
transferee In relation to both certificated and, for as long as any shares of the Company
are publicly quoted, uncertificated shares, the transferor shall remain the holder of the
shares concerned until the name of the transferee i1s entered in the Register in respect of
such shares All instruments of transfer which are registered may be retained by the
Company

Closing of Register

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such penods {not
exceeding 30 days in any year) as the Board may from ttme to time determine and either
generally or in respect of any class of shares, save that the Register will not be closed in
respect of participating secunties without the pnor consent of the Operator Notice of
closure of the Register shall be given in accordance with the requirements of the Act or
the 2006 Act (as applicable)

Right to refuse to register a transfer

The Board may in its absolute discretion and without assigning any reason for its actions
refuse to register any transfer of any certificated share which 1s not a fully paid share
provided that the Board shall not refuse to register any transfer or renunciation of partly
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paid shares which are admitted to trading on AIM on the grounds that they are partly paid
shares in circumstances where such refusal would prevent dealings in such shares from
taking place on an cpen and proper basis

Other rights to decline registration

The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer relating to certificated
shares unless

(a) the instrument of transfer

(n Is In respect of only one class of share,

{n) Is lodged at the Registered Office or such other place as the Board may
appoint,

{m) 15 accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s} and such other

evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the nght of the
transferor to make the transfer (and, f the instument of transfer 1s
executed by some other person on his behalf, the authornty of that person

so to do),
() 1s duly stamped {If so required), and
(b) in the case of a transfer to joint halders, the number of joint holders does not

exceed four
Notice of refusal

If the Board refuses to register a transfer, it shaill send notice of the refusal to the
transferee within two months of the date on which the transfer was lodged with the
Company Any instrument of transfer which the Board refuses to register shall (except in
the case of suspected or actual fraud) be returned to the person depositing it

Transfer without certificate

In the case of a transfer by a recognised cleanng house or a nominee of a recognised
clearing house or of a recognised investment exchange the lodgement of share
certificates with the mstrument of transfer will only be necessary If and to the extent that
certificates have been 1ssued in respect of the shares in queston The expressions
"recognised cleanng house” and "recogrised investment exchange” shall have the
meanings given to them in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

Branch register

Subject to and to the extent permitted by the Statutes and the Regulations, the Company,
or the Board on behalf of the Company, may cause a branch reqister to be kept in any
terntory of members resident in such terntory, and the Board may make and vary such
regulations as they may think fit in respect of the keeping of any such register, provided
however that, for as long as any shares of the Company are publicly quoted, those
members who heold uncertificated shares may not be entered as holders of those shares
on an overseas branch register

No fee for registration

No fee will be charged by the Company in respect of the registration of any instrument of
transfer, or probate, or letters of administration, or certificate of marnage or death, or stop
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notice, or power of attomey, or other document relating to or affecting the title to any
shares or otherwise for making any entry in the Register affecting the title to any shares

Uncertificated shares

For as long as any shares of the Company are publicly quoted

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

save where the London Stock Exchange otherwise agrees, all shares shall be
eligible for electronic settlement, which includes settlement by a relevant system

Shares of a class shall not be treated as forming a separate class from other
shares of that class merely because any such shares are held from time to time In
uncertificated form or are permitted in accordance with the Regulations to become
a participating secunty

the directors shall have power to implement such arrangements as they may, in
their absolute discretion, think fit in order for any class of shares to be a
participating secunty (subject always to the Regulations and the facilities and
requirements of the relevant system concemed). Where they do so, articles (d)
and (e) shall commence to have effect immediately prior to the time at which the
Operator of the relevant system concerned permits the class of shares concerned
to be a participating secunty

these articles shall apply to uncertficated shares, save that, in relation to any
class of shares which s, for the time being, a participating secunty, and for so
long as such class remains a participating security, no provision of these articles
shall apply or have effect to the extent that it 1s in any respect inconsistent with

n the holding of shares of that class in uncertificated form,
() the transfer of title {o shares of that class by means of a relevant system,
or

() the Regulations

without prejudice to the generally of article (d) and notwithstanding anything
contained in these articles, where any class of shares i1s, for the time being, a
participating secunty (such class being referred to 1n these articles as the
"Relevant Class")

(1) the register relating to the Relevant Class shall be maintained at all times
in the United Kingdom,

() shares of the Relevant Class may be i1ssued wn uncertificated form in
accordance with and subject as provided in the Regulations,

(m) unless the directors otherwise determine, shares of the Relevant Class
held by the same holder or jont holder n certificated form and
uncertificated form shall be treated as separate holdings,

(1v) shares of the Relevant Class may be changed from uncertificated to
certificated form, and from certificated to uncertificated form, n
accordance with and subject as provided in the Regulations,

{v) title to shares of the Relevant Class which are recorded on the register as
being held in uncertificated form may be transferred by means of the
relevant system concerned and accordingly (and in particular) article 8
shall not apply 1n respect of such shares to the extent that that article
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(v

{vir)

{vin)

requires or contemplates the effecting of a transfer by an instrument In
writing and the production of a certificate for the share to be transferred,

the Company shali comply with the provisions of Regulations 21 and 22 in
relation to the Relevant Class and articles 8 5 and 8 7, in particular, shall
be read as subject to Regulation 22,

the provisions of these articles with respect to meetings of or including
holders of the Relevant Class, including notices of such meetings, shall
have effect subject to the provisions of Regulation 34; and

no provision of these articles shall apply so as to require the Company to
iIssue a certificate to any person holding shares of the Relevant Class in
uncertificated form

where the Company 1s entitled under the Statutes, the Regulations, the rules,
procedures or practices of any relevant system or in accordance with the rules of
the London Stock Exchange to dispose of, forfeit, accept the surrender of, enforce
a lien over, re-allot or sell, transfer or otherwise procure the sale of any shares
which are held in uncertificated form, the Board shall have the power to take such
steps as the Board considers appropriate, by mstruction by means of a relevant
system or otherwise, to effect such disposal, forfeiture, surrender, enforcement,
re-allotment, sale or transfer and such powers shall include the nght to

n

(n)

{m)

request or require the deletion of any computer-based entnes in the
relevant system relating to the holding of such shares in uncertificated
form, and/or

alter such computer-based entries so as to divest the registered holder of
such shares of the power to transfer such shares to a person other than
the transferee, purchaser or his nominee identified by the Company for
this purpose, andfor

require any holder of any uncertificated shares which are the subject of
any exercise by the Company of any such entitlement, by notice 1n wnting
to the holder concerned, to convert his holding of such uncertfficated
shares into certificated form within such penod as may be specified in the
notice prior to completion of any disposal sale ar transfer of such shares
or direct the holder to take such steps as may be necessary to sell or
transfer such shares, and/or

appoint any person to take such other steps in the name of the holder of
such shares as may be required to effect the conversion and/cr transfer of
such shares and such steps shall be as effective as f they had been taken
by the reqistered holder of the uncertificated shares concerned

Transmission of shares

Persons entitled on death

On the death of a shareholder, the survivors or survivor where the deceased was a Jjoint
holder, and the executors or administrators of the deceased where he was a sole or only
surviving holder, shall be the only person or persons recognised by the Company as
having any title to or interest in the shares, but nothing in this article shall release the
estate of a deceased holder (whether sole or joint) from any liability In respect of any
share held by him
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Election by persons entitled by transmisston

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
member or of any other event giving nse by operation of law to such entittement may,
(subject as provided n these articles) upon supplying to the Company such evidence as
the Board may reasonably require to show his ttle to the share, either be registered
himself as holder of the share upon giving to the Company notice in wniting of his desire to
be so reqistered or transfer such share to some other person If he shall elect to have his
nominee registered, he shall signify his election

(a) if such share 1s a certificated share, by signing an instrument of transfer of such
share 1n favour of his nominee, and

(b) for as long as any shares of the Company are publicly quoted, if such share 1s an
uncertificated share, either by procuring that instructions are given by means of
the relevant system to effect the transfer of the share to that nominee or by
changing the share to a certificated share and transfer it in accordance with
article 10 2(a)

All the hmitations, restrictions and prowisions of these articles relating to the nght to
transfer and the reqistration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice
or transfer as if the death or bankruptcy of the member or other event had not occurred
and the notice or transfer were a transfer executed by such member Where the
entitlement of a person to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
member or of any other event giving nse to its transmission by operation of law 1s proved
to the satisfaction of the Board, the Board shall, within two months after being so satisfied,
cause the entitiement of that person to be noted in the Register

Rights of persons entitled by transmission

Save as otherwise provided by or in accordance with these articles a person becoming
entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member or other event
giving nse by operation of law to such entitlement (upon supplying to the Company such
evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show his title to the share) shall be
entitled to the same dividends and other advantages as those to which he would be
entitled If he were the registered holder of the share (and the nghts of the registered
holder In relation to such share shall cease) except that he shall not be entitled in respect
of such share {except with the authornty of the Board) to exercise any nght conferred by
membership in relation to meetings of the Company until he shall have been registered as
a member n respect of the share The Board may at any time give notice requinng any
such person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share and if the
notice 1s not complied with within sixty days the Board may after that withhold payment of
all dividends and other moneys payable in respect of the share until the requirements of
the notice have been comphed with

Drag Along

If a bona fide third party who 1s not an Associate of a Shareholder (the "Purchaser”)
makes an arms’ length offer to the Shareholders on the same terms for each Shareholder
(the "Offer") to acquire all of their Shares for cash (or for assets for which there 1s a ready
market for sale in exchange for cash) then Shareholders who wish to accept the Offer and
who hold between them at least 50 per cent of the issued Shares may give written notice
to the company signed by or on behalf of all of them (the "Drag Along Notice") stating

(a) that they wish to accept the Offer,

{b) the price per Share payable under the Offer, and
17
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(c) any other condifions attaching to the offer

Not later than the date five Business Days after the date of service of the Drag Along
Notice, the directors shall serve a copy of it on all Shareholders who have not signed it

If not later than the date 40 Business Days after the date of service of the Drag Along
Notice the directors or another Shareholder have not procured an offer to be made for all
the 1ssued Shares on terms which in the reasonable opmion of the directors are better
than the terms of the Offer, then all Shareholders who have not already accepted the
Offer (the "Called Shareholders”) will be deemed to have accepted the Offer referred to
in the Drag Along Notice and must transfer their Shares to the Purchaser on the 20th
Business Day following the expiry of the 40 Business Day penod against payment or
delivery to them of the consideration specified in the Offer but without requining the Called
Shareholders to assume any other obligation

If the Seller faills to comply with the provisions of article 11 3,

{a) the chairman of the company ar, faling him, cne of the directors, or some other
person hominated by a resolution of the directors, may on behalf of the Called
Shareholder

(1 complete, execute and deliver in his name all documents necessary to
give effect to the transfer of the relevant Shares to the Purchasers,

{n) sign a warranty on behalf of the Called Sharehclder that he sells with full
title guarantee,

(m) receive the consideraton payable for the Shares of the Called
Sharehoiders and give a good discharge for 1it, and

(1v) (subject to the transfer being duly stamped) enter the Purchasers in the
register of members as the holders of the Shares purchased by them, and

(b) the company shall pay the consideration payable for the Shares of the Called
Shareholders into a separate bank account in the company's name on trust (but
without interest) for the Seller until he has dehvered to the company his certificate
or certificates for the relevant Shares (or an indemnity, n a form reasonably
satisfactory to the directors, 1n respect of any lost certificate)

No Called Shareholder will be obliged to assume any obligation in connection with the
sale of his Shares other than to effect such sale and to give a warranty that he sells with
ful} title guarantee

Transfers of Substantial Interests - Tag Along

The provisions of article 12 2 will apply iIf a Shareholder (a "Proposing Seller”) proposes
a transfer of Shares (the "Proposed Transfer"), which would, if put into effect, result in
any person {and Associates of his) (each a "Proposed Transferee") becoming the holder
of a Contralling Interest

A Proposing Seller must, before making a Proposed Transfer procure the making by the
Proposed Transferee of an offer to the other Shareholders to acquire theirr Shares for a
consideration per share the value of which 1s at least equal to the highest consideration
per share paid or payable by the Proposed Transferee for any Share duning the penod of
12 months ending on the date of the offer

The offer referred to in article 12 2 must be expressed to be capable of acceptance for a
period of not less than 20 Business Days and if it 1s accepted by any Shareholder (an
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"Accepting Shareholder"} within that penod, the completion of the Proposed Transfer
will be conditional upon the completion of the purchase of all the Shares held by
Accepting Shareholders

Share warrants to bearer

Share warrants to bearer may be 1ssued by the Board in respect of fully-paid shares on
such terms and conditions as to voling and in all other respects as they may prescnbe,
providing that no new share warrant to bearer shall be 1ssued to replace one that has
been lost unless 1t 1s proved beyond reasonable doubt to the satisfaction of the Board o
have been destroyed The bearer of a share warrant shall be subject to the terms and
conditions governing share warrants for the time being in force, whether made before or
after the 1ssue of such share warrant

General meetings
Annual general meetings

The Board shall convene and the Company shall hold general meetings as annual
general meetings in accordance with the requirements of the Statutes at such time and
place as the Board may determine

Calling of general meetings

The Board may whenever it thinks fit, and shall on members' requests in accordance with
the 2006 Act, proceed with proper expedition to convene a general meeting

Form of resolution

Subject to the Statutes, where for any purpose an ordinary resoluticn of the Company 1s
required, a special resolution shall also be effective

Notice of general meetings
Length of notice for general meefings and persons entitled to receive notice

Subject to the requirements set out In the 2006 Act, any notice of general meeting may be
given by the Company

(a) in hard copy form,
(b) In electronic form, or
(c) by means of a website

or partly by one of these means and partly by anocther of these means Notices of general
meeting shall be given in accordance with article 38

An annual general meeting shall be called by not fewer than twenty-one days' notice and
any other general meeting by not fewer than fourteen days' notice The penod of notice
shall in each case be exclusive of the day on which it 1s served or deemed to be served
and of the day on which the meeting is to be held A general meeting, notwithstanding
that it has been called by a shorter notice than that specified above, shall be deemed to
have been duly called If it 1s so agreed

(a) in the case of an annual general meeting by all the members entitled to attend and
vote at that annual general meeting, and
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(b) in the case of any other general meeting by a majority in number of the members
having a nght to attend and vote at that general meeting, being a majonty together
holding not less than 95 per cent In nominal value of the shares giving that nght

The notice shall be given to the members (other than any who, under the provisions of
these arlicles or of any restnctions imposed on any shares, are not entitled to receve
notice from the Company), to the directors and to the auditors The notice shall also be
given to any other person entitled to receive such notice under the 2006 Act

The Board may determine that persons entitled to receive notice of meetings are those
persons entered on the Register at the close of business on a day determined by the
Board, but if the Company Is a participating tssuer, the day determined by the Board may
not be mare than 21 days before the date upon which the relevant notice 15 being sent

Contents of notice of general meetings
Every notice calling a general meeting shall

(a) specify the place and the day and time of the meeting, and contain a reasonably
prominent statement informing the member of his nghts to appoint proxies under
section 324 of the 2006 Act and any more extensive nghts conferred by these
articles (or such other statement as may from time tc time be required under the

Statutes),
{ in the case of an annual general meeting, specify the meeting as such,
{c) in the case of any annual general meeting (but not any other general meeting) at

which business other than ordinary business 1s 10 be transacted, specify the
general nature of such business, and

(d) if any resolution 1s to be proposed as a special resolution, set out in full the
resolution to be proposed as a special resolution

Ordinary business
Ordinary business in relation to an annual general meeting shall mean

(a) receiving, considerning and adopting the annual accounts and the report of the
directors and the auditors on the annual reports,

{b) receving, considering and adopting the annual directors’ remuneration report,
(c) declanng a dividend,

(d) reappointing directors and appointing directors to replace those retinng at the
meeting not offering themselves for reappontment,

{(e) reappointing auditors and authonsing the Board to fix their remuneration, and
(f) renewing or regranting an existing authonty for a scnip dividend alternative
Proceedings at general meetings

Chairman

The chairman of the Board (if any), faling whom the deputy charman (if any), shall
preside as chairman at a general meeting If there 1s no such chainman or deputy
chairman, or If at any meeting neither the chawrman nor deputy chairman is present within
five minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or if nesther of them 1s willing
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to act as chairman, the directors present shall choose one of thewr number (or, If no
director 1s present ar If all the directors present decline to take the chair, the persons
present and entitled to vote on a poll shall choose one of therr number), to be chawman of
the meeting

Quorum

No business other than the appointment of a chairman shall be transacted at any general
meeting unless a quorum I1s present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business
Two members present In person or by proxy and entitled to attend and vote at that
meeting shall be a quorum for all purposes

Directors and other persons may attend and speak

Any director and any person appointed as proxy (and any other person invited by the
chairman to do so) shall, notwithstanding that he 1s not a member, be entitled to attend
and speak at any general meeting and at any separate meeting of the holders of any
class of shares of the Company

Adjournment

The chairman of any general meeting may with the consent of the meeting at which a
quorum 1s present (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from time
to time (or without a date being fixed} and from place to place, but no business shall be
transacted at any adjourned meeting except business which might lawfully have been
transacted at the meeting from which the adjournment took place Where a meeting 15
adjourned without a date being fixed, the time and place for any adjourned meeting shall
be fixed by the Board

When a meeting 1s adjourned for thirty days or more or without a date being fixed, nct
fewer than seven days' nohce of any adjourned meeting shall be given in the same
manner as in the case of the onginal meeting

If within five minutes (or such longer time not exceeding one hour as the chairman of the
meeting may determine to wait) after the time appointed for the meeting a quorum 1s not
present, or If during the meeting a quorum ceases to be present, the meeting, If convened
on the requisition of members, shall be dissolved In any other case it shall stand
adjourned to such other day (not beng fewer than fourteen nor more than twenty-eight
days after such meeting) and at such other time or place as the chairman of the meeting
may determine and at such adjourned meeting one member present in person or by proxy
{(whatever the number of shares held by lun) shall be a quorum The Company shall give
not fewer than seven days' notice in wniting of any meeting adjourned through want of a
quorum and such nohtce shall state that one member present in person or by proxy
(whatever the number of shares held by him) shall be a quorum

Notice of adjourned meeting

Except as expressly provided in these articles, 1t shall not be necessary to give any notice
of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting

Amendmenis to resolutions

If an amendment shall be proposed to any resoluton under consideration but shall in
goad faith be ruled out of order by the chairman of the meeting the proceedings on the
substantive resolution shall not be invalidated by an error in such ruling In the case of a
resolution duly proposed as a special resolution ne amendment to such resolution (other
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than a mere clerncal amendment or to correct a patent error) may in any event be
considered or voted upon

Securtty and other arrangements at meetings

The Board may from time to time make any arrangement and impose any restriction it
considers appropnate to ensure the secunty of a meeting including the requinng of
evidence of identity to be produced by a person attending the meeting, the searching of a
person attending the meeting and the restnction of the items of property which may be
taken into the meeting place The Board may refuse entry to, and/or remove from, a
meeting any person who refuses to comply with these arrangements or restrictions

Declaration by chairman

Unless a poll 1s required a declaration by the chairman of the meeting that a resolution
has been carned on a show of hands, or carned unanimously, or by a particular majonty,
or lost, and an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting signed or purporting to be
signed by the charrman of the meeting or by the chairman of the next fellowing general
meeting, shall in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive evidence of that fact without
proof of the number or propertion of the votes recorded for or against such resolution

Demand for poll

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) a
poli is demanded by

(a) the chairman of the meeting,

(b) not fewer than five members present in person or by proxy and entitied to vote at
the meeting,

(c) a member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not less
than one-tenth of the total voting nghts of all the members having the nght to vote
on the resoluton (excluding any voting nghts attached to any shares in the
Company held as treasury shares), or

(d) a member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares in the
Company conferring a nght to vote on the resolution, being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been pawd up equal to not less than cne-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all the shares conferring that nght {(excluding shares in the Company
conferring a nght to vote on the resolution which are held as treasury shares)

Withdrawal of demand for poll

A demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time before the poll 1s taken or the close of
the meeting, whichever i1s earler, but only with the consent of the chairman and a demand
so withdrawn shall not be taken to have invalidated the result of a show of hands declared
before the demand was made

Procedure on a poll

If a poll 1s required, it shall be taken in such a manner (including the use of ballot or voting
papers or tickets) as the chairman of the meeting may direct, and the result of the poll
shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded The
chairman of the meeting may (and If so directed by the meeting shall) appoint scrutineers
and may adjourn the meeting to some place and time fixed by him for the purpose of
declanng the result of the poll
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Timing of polf

A poll demanded on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on a question of
adjournment shall be taken immediately A poll demanded on any other question shall be
taken either iImmediately or at such subsequent time (not being more than thirty days from
the date of the meeting) and place as the chairman of the meeting may direct No notice
need be given of a poll not taken immediately

Continuing the meeting after a demand for a poll

A demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of the meeting for the transaction of
any business other than the question on which the poll has been demanded

Votes of members
Votes altaching to shares

Subject to the provisions of the Act and/or the 2006 Act and to any special nghts or
restrictions as to voting afttached to any shares or class of shares or otherwise provided
by these articles, on a show of hands every member who 1s present in person or by proxy
shall have one vote and on a poll every member who 1s present in person or by proxy
shall have one vote for every share of which he 1s the holder

No chairman's casting vote

In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, no person
shall have a second or casting vote

Votes of joint holders

In the case of Joint holders of a share the vote of the semor who tenders a vote, whether
In person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders and for this purpose senionty shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register in respect of the share

Voles by guardian

Where in the United Kingdom or elsewhere a guardian, recewver, curator bonis or other
person (by whatever name called) has been apponted by any court claiming junisdiction
in that behalf to exercise powers with respect to the property or affarrs of any member on
the ground (however formulated) of mental discrder or being otherwise incapable of
managing his affairs, the Board may in its absolute discretion, upon or subject to
production of such evidence of the appointment as the Board may require, permi such
guardian, receiver, curator bonis or other person on behalf of such member to vote in
person or by proxy at any general meeting or to exercise any other nght conferred by
membership in relation to meetings of the Company

Restriction of rights of members where calls outstanding

Unless the Board otherwise determines, no member shall be entitled to recewve any
dwidend or to be present and vote at a general meeting or at any separate general
meeting of the holders of any class of shares either personally or by proxy, or to be
reckoned In a quorum, or to exercise any other right or privilege conferred by membership
in respect of a share held by him in relation to meetings of the Company unless and until
he shall have paid all calls or other sums presently due and payable by him, whether
alone or jointly with any other person, to the Company

Validity and result of vote
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No objection shall be raised as to the adnussibility of any vote or to the counting of, or
failure to count, any vote except at the meeting or adjoumned meeting at which the vote
objected to ts or may be given or tendered or at which any errors occurs and every vote
not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes Any such objection shall be
referred to the chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive

Unless a poll 1s taken a declaration by the chairman of the meeting that a resclution has
been carnied, or carried unammously, or by a particular majonty, or lost, and an entry to
that effect in the minute book, shall be conclusive evidence of that fact without proof of the
number or proportion of the votes recorded for or against such resolution

Voting on a poll

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a person entitled to more
than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way

Disclosure of interests

For the purposes of these articles, unless the context otherwise requires

{a) "Disclosure Notice" means a notice i1ssued by or on behalf of the Company
requinng information about interests in its shares pursuant to section 793 of the
2006 Act,

(b) "Specified Shares” means all or, as the case may be, some of the shares

specified in a Disclosure Notice,
(c) "Restrictions” means one or more, as determined by the Board, of the following

(N that the member holding the Specified Shares shall not be entitled, In
respect of those shares, to attend or be counted in the quorum or vote
either personally or by proxy at any general meetng or at any separate
meeting of the holders of any class of shares or upon any poll or to
exercise any other right or privilege in relation to any general meeting or
any meeting of the holders of any class of shares,

(n) that, unless effected pursuant to article 18 3, no transfer of the Specified
Shares in certificated form shall be effective or shall be registered by the
Company,

() that no dividend or other money payable shall be paid in respect of the
Specified Shares and that, in circumstances where an offer of the nght to
elect to receive shares instead of cash in respect of any dividend 1s or has
been made, any election made under that offer in respect of such
Specified Shares shall not be effective,

provided that only the restnction referred tc in sub-paragraph (1) may be
determined by the Board to apply if the Specfied Shares represent less than
0 25% of the relevant class at the time of 1ssue of the Disclosure Notice,

{d) "Restriction Notice" means a notice 1ssued by or on behalf of the Company
stating, or substantially to the effect, that the Specified Shares referred to in that
notice shall be subject to one or more of the Restrictions stated in that notice,

(e) a person other than the member holding a share shall be treated as appearnng to
be interested (as that word 1s construed far the purposes of Part 22 of the 2006
Act) in that share f
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] the member has informed the Company, whether under any statutory or
regulatory provision relating to disclosure of interests or otherwise, that the
person 1s, or may be, or has been at any tme dunng the three years
immediately preceding the date upon which the Disclosure Notice 1s
Issued, so interested,

() the Board (after taking account of any information obtained from the
member or, pursuant to a Disclosure Notice, from any other person) knows
or has reasonable cause to believe that the person 1s, or may be, or has
been at any time dunng the three years immediately preceding the date
upon which the Disclosure Notice 15 1ssued, so interested, or

(m) in response to a Disclosure Notice, the member or any other person
appeanng to be so interested has failed to establish the identities of all
those who are so interested and (after taking into account the response
and any other relevant information) the Company has reasonable cause to
believe that such perscn I1s or may be so interested, and

the Company shall not be treated as having recerved the information required by a
Disclosure Notice in accordance with the terms of such Disclosure Notice in
circumstances where the Board knows or has reasonable cause to believe that
the information provided 1s false or matenally incorrect

Notwithstanding anything in these articles to the contrary, 1

(a)

(b)

a Disclosure Notice has been sent or suppled to a member or any cther person
appearing to be interested in the Specified Shares, and

the Company has not received {in accordance with the terms of such Disclosure
Notice) the information required in the notice In respect of any of the Specified
Shares within fourteen days after such Disclosure Notice was sent or supplied,

then the Board may determine that the member holding the Specified Shares shall, upon
the tssue of a Restriction Notice refernng to those Specified Shares In respect of which
information has not been receiwved, be subject to the Restnctions referred to in such
Restriction Notice, and upon the i1ssue of such Restriction Notice such member shal! be
so subject As soon as practicable after the issue of a Restniction Notice the Company
shall serve a copy of the notice on the member holding the Specified Shares but the
accidental omussion to do so, or the non-receipt by the member of the copy, shall not
invalidate or otherwise affect the application of this article

The Restricticns on shares shall cease to apply

(a)
(b)

(c)

etther in whole cr in part at any time the Board may determine,

upon the Company receiving in accordance with the terms of the relevant
Disclosure Notice the information required in that Disclosure Notice in respect of
those shares, or

if the Company receives an executed instrument of transfer (or for as long as any
shares of the Company are publicly quoted, a transfer of uncertificated shares 1s
effected under the relevant system) in respect of those shares, which would
otherwise be given effect to, pursuant to a sale to a party not connected (within
the meaning given in section 839 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988)
with the member holding such shares or with any other person appeanng to be
interested in such shares where such sale s
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() on a recogmsed mvestment exchange (within the meaning given in section
285 of the Fiancial Services and Markets Act 2000},

{n) on any stock exchange outside the United Kingdom on which the
Company's shares are normally deait, or

{m) on the acceptance of an offer made to all the holders (or all the holders
other than the person making the offer or his nominees) of the shares of
the class of which the shares subject to the Restrictions form part to
acquire those shares or a specified partion of them

Subject to the requrements of the London Stock Exchange, notwithstanding sub-
paragraph (c) of article 18 3 the Restrictions on shares shall continue to apply if within ten
days of receipt of the instrument of transfer the Board decides that it has reascnable
cause to believe that the change in the registered holder of those shares would not be as
a result of an arm's length sale resulting in a matenal change in the beneficial interests in
those shares Where the Board makes a decision pursuant fo this article 18 4, the
Company shall notify the purported transferee of the decision as soon as practicable and
any person may make representations i wnting to the Board concerning the decision
The Company shall not be hiable to any person as a result of having imposed Restrictions
or deciding that such Restrictions shall continue to apply if the Board acted in good faith

Where dvidends or other moneys are not paid as a result of Restnictions having been
imposed on shares, such dividends or other moneys shall accrue and, upon the relevant
restnction ceasing to apply, shall be payable (without interest) to the person who would
have been entitled had the restriction not been imposed

Shares which the Company offers or procures to be offered pro rata (or pro rata ignonng
fractional entitlemments and ignonng shares not offered to certain members by reason of
legal or practical problems associated with offering shares outside the United Kingdom) to
holders of shares which are subject to Restnctions shall on issue become subject to the
same Restrictions

The Board shall at all times have the nght, atits discretion, to suspend, in whole or in part,
any Restnction Notice either permanently or for any given period and to pay to a trustee
any dividend payable in respect of any shares subject to Restrnictions or in respect of any
shares i1ssued in nght of shares subject to Restnctions Notice of any suspension,
specifying the sanctions suspended and the penod of suspension, shall be given to the
relevant holder in wnting within seven days after any decision to implement such a
suspension

The limitations on the powers of the Board to impose and retain Restnictions are without
prejudice to the Company's power to apply to the court pursuant to the Statutes to apply
the Restrictions or any other restrictions on any conditions

Proxies

Proxy need not be a member

A proxy need not be a member of the Company
More than one proxy may be appointed

A member may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion, provided
that each proxy i1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares
held by the member
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When two or more valid but diffenng appointments of proxy are delivered or received in
respect of the same share for use at the same meeting and n respect of the same matter,
the one which 1s last validly delivered or received (regardless of its date or of the date of
its execution} shall be treated as replacing and revoking the other or others as regards
that share If the Company 1s unable to determine which instrument was last validly
delivered or received, none of them shall be treated as vahd in respect of that share

Appointment of proxy

The appontment of a proxy shall be executed in any usual or common form or In any
other form which the Board may approve, and

(a) in the case of an individual, an appointment of a proxy shall be signed by the
appointor or by his attorney, and

(b} in the case of a corporation, an appointment of a proxy shall be either given under
its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer, attorney or other person
authonsed tc sign it

Board may supply proxy forms

The Board may at the expense of the Company send, by post or otherwise, instruments of
proxy (reply-paid or otherwise) to members for use at any general meeting or at any
separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares, either in blank or nominating 1n
the alternative anyone or more of the directors or any other persons If for the purpose of
any meeting invitations to appoint as proxy a person or one of a number of persons
specified in the invitations are 1ssued at the expense of the Company, such invitations
shali, subject to article 15 3, be 1ssued to all (and not some only) of the members entitled
to be sent a notice of the meeting and to vote thereat by proxy

Signature on proxy

The signature on an appointment of a proxy need not be winessed Subject to
article 19 8 below n the case of appointments by electronic communication, where an
appointment of a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or
power of attorney or a duly certified copy of such letter or power of attorney must (failing
previous registration with the Company) be lodged with a wniften appointment of proxy
pursuant to the following article, failling which the appointment may be treated as invalid

Receipt of appointrnent of proxy
An appointment of a proxy must

(a) in the case of an instrument in wnting, be depaosited at the Registered Office or
such place or one of such places (If any) as may be specified for that purpose in
or by way of note to the notice convening the meeting or in any tnstrument of
proxy sert out by the Company no fewer than forty-eight hours (excluding days
that are not a working day) before the tme appointed for the holding of the
meeting or adjourned meeting,

(b) In the case of an appointment contained in an electromc communication, where an
address has been specfied for the purpose of receving electronic
communications

()] in the notice convemng the meeting,
()] In any instrument of proxy sent out by the Company in relation to the
meeting, or
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() n any invitation contained 1n an electronic commumication to appoint a
proxy 1ssued by the Company in relaticn to the meeting,

be received at such address no fewer than forty-eight hours (excluding days that
are not a working day) before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote,

(c) or, in the case of a poll taken more than forty-eight hours (excluding days that are
not a working day) after it was demanded (whether the appointment 1s contained
in an instrument in wiiting or contatned 1n an electronic communication), no fewer
than 24 hours (excluding days that are not a working day) before the tme
appointed for the taking of the poll at which it 1s to be used,

and an appointment of proxy which 1s not deposited, delivered or received in such a
manner shall not be treated as valid An appointment of proxy relating to more than one
meeting (including any adjournment of such meeting) having once been so delivered for
the purposes of any meeting shall not have to be delivered agam for the purposes of any
subsequent meeting to which it relates

Without himiting the foregoing, for as long as any shares of the Company are publicly
quoted in relation to any shares which are held in uncertficated form, the directors may
from time to time permit appointments of a proxy to be made by means of an electronic
communication in the form of an Uncertificated Proxy Instruction, (that 1s, a properly
authenticated dematenalsed instruction, and/or other instruction or notification which 1s
sent by means of the relevant system concerned and received by such participant in that
system acting on behalf of the Company as the directors may prescribe, in such form and
subject to such terms and conditions as may from time to time be prescribed by the
directors (subject always to the facilites and requirements of the relevant system
concerned)), and may in a similar manner permit supplements to, or amendments or
revocations of, any such Uncertificated Proxy Instruction to be made by ike means The
directors may in addition prescnbe the method of determining the time at which any such
properly authenticated dematenalised instruction (and/ar other instruction or notification)
1s to be treated as received by the Company or such participant The directors may treat
any such Uncertificated Proxy Instruction which purports to be or is expressed to be sent
on behalf of a holder of a share as sufficient evidence of the authonty of the person
sending that instruction to send it on behalf of that holder of a share

Rights of proxy

An appomntment of a proxy shall be deemed to include the nght to attend and to speak
and vote at the meeting, together with the nght to demand or join In demanding a poll
The appointment shall, unless the contrary 1s stated on or in 1t, be valid as well for any
adjournment of the meeting as for the meeting to which it relates No appointment of a
proxy shall be vald, in the case of a wntten instrument of proxy, after the expiration of
twelve months from the date named in the instrument of proxy as the date of its execution
or, In the case of the appointment of a proxy contained in an electronic communication,
after the expiration of twelve months from the date on which 1t was received by or on
behalf of the Company Delivery of an appointment of a proxy shall not preclude a
member from attending and voting at the meeting or poll convened

Revocation of proxy

Neither a vote cast or demand for a poll made by a proxy at a general meeting nor
anything a proxy does as chairman of a general meeting nor any decision as to whether a
proxy counted in deciding whether there was a quorum at a general meeting shall be
invahdated by the previous death or insanity of the principal or by the revocation of the

appointment of the proxy or by the revocation or determination of the authonty under
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which the appointment was made or the transfer of the share in respect of which the
appointment of proxy was executed unless wntten notice of such death, insanity,
revacation, determination or transfer shall have been received by the Company

(a) at the Registered Office (or at the address at which the instrument of proxy was
duly deposited}, or

(b) where the appointment of the proxy was contained wn an electronic
communication, at the address at which such appointment was duly received,

at least 48 hours {excluding days that are not a working day) before the commencement
of the meeting or adjourned meeting, unless a poll 1s taken

{1 otherwise than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjoumed
meeting, and

(n) more than 48 hours (excluding days that are not a working day) after it
was demanded,

in which case, at least 24 hours (excluding days that are not a working day) before the
time appointed for the taking of the poll at which the vote Is cast

Address

For the purposes of this article 19, "address" in relation to electronic communications,
includes any number or address, including (in the case of any Uncertificated Proxy
Instruction permitted pursuant to article 19 8, an dentification number of a participant in
the relevant system concerned) used for the purposes of such communications

Corporations acting by representatives

Any corporation which 1s a member of the Company may by resolution of its directors or
other governing body authonse such person or persons as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of members of the
Company Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the person or any of the persons so
authonsed shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such corporation as
the corporation could exercise If it were an individual member of the Company

Such corporation shall for the purpose of these articles be deemed to be present in
person at any such meeting If a person so authonsed 1s present at such meeting A
director, the secretary or some person authonsed for the purpose by the secretary may
require the corporation's representative to produce a certified copy of the resolution so
authorising him or such other evidence of his authonty reasonably satisfactory to them
before permiting him to exercise his power

Directors
Number of directors

Subject as provided in these articles the dwectors shall not be fewer than two nor more
than six iIn number The Company may by ordinary resolution and with the prior wntten
consent of Audley and Gartmore (the "Investors") from time to time vary the minimum
number and/or maximum number of directors, provided that the consent of an Investor will
not be required if, at the time of the proposed resolutions, it 1s the registered holding of
ordinary shares representing less than 10 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of
the Company

Share qualification
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A director shall not be required to hold any shares of the Company by way of qualfication
A director who 1s not a member of the Company shall nevertheless be entitled to attend
and speak at shareholders' meetings

Directors’ fees

The ordinary remuneration of the directors shall from time to time he determined by the
Board except that such remuneration shall not exceed US$300,000 per annum In
aggregate or such higher sum as may from tme to tme be determined by ordinary
resolution of the Company and shall (unless such resolution otherwise provides) be
divistble among the directors as the Board may agree, or, fahng agreement, equally,
except that any director who shall hold office for part only of the perod in respect of which
such remuneration 1s payable shall be entitled only to rank in such dmwvision for a
proportion of remuneration related to the penod during which he has held office

Other remuneration of directors

Any director who holds any executive office (including for this purpose the office of
chairman or deputy chairman whether or not such office 1s held in an executive capacity),
or who serves on any committee of the Board, or who otherwise performs services which
in the opinion of the Board are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a director, may
be paid such extra remuneration by way of salary, commission or otherwise or may
receive such other benefits as the Board may determine

Directors' expenses

The Board may repay to any director all such reasonable expenses as he may properly
incur In attending and returning from meetings of the Board or of any commitiee of the
Board or shareholders’ meetings or otherwise in connection with the performance of his
duties as a director of the Company

Directors’ penstons and other benefits

The Board shall have power to pay and agree to pay gratuities, pensions or other
retirement, superannuation, death or disability benefits to (or to any person in respect of)
any director or ex-director and for the purpose of providing any such gratuities, pensions
or other benefits to contnbute to any scheme or fund or to pay premums

Directors’ permitted interests

Provided (if these articles so require) that he has declared to the directors, in accordance
with the provisions of these articles, the nature and extent of any interest of his, a director
may {save as to the extent not permitted by law from time to time), notwithstanding his
office, have an interest of the following kind, namely

{a) where a director (or a person connected with him) is party to or in any way directly
or indirectly interested in, or has any duty in respect of, any existing or proposed
contract or arrangement or transaction with the Company or any other undertaking
in which the Company 1s in any way interested,

{b) where a director {or a person connected with vm) 1s a director, employee or other
officer of, or a party to any arrangement or transaction with, or in any way
interested n, any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the
Company Is In any way interested,

() where a director (or a person connected with him} holds and 1s remunerated In
respect of any office or place of profit {other than the office of auditor) under the
Company or body corporate in which the Company 1s 1n any way interested,
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(d) where a director 1s given a guarantee, or I1s to be given a guarantee, in respect of
an obhgation incurred by or on behalf of the Company or any body corporate n
which the Company is in any way interested,

(e) where a director (or a person connected with him or of which he 1s a member or
employee) acts (or any body corporate promoted by the Company or in which the
Company 1s in any way interested of which he 1s a director, employee or other
officer acts) in a professional capacity for the Company or any body corporate
promoted by the Company or in which the Company I1s 1n any way interested
{other than as auditer) whether or not he oritis remunerated for thus,

f an interest which cannot reasonably be regarded as hkely to give nse to a conflict
of interest, or

(9) any other interest authonsed by ordinary resolution
No authortsation under article 21 9 shall be necessary in respect of any such interest

In any situation or matter permitted by, or authonsed under this article 21 (save as
otherwise agreed by him} a director shall not by reason of his office be accountable to the
Company for any benefit which he denves from that situation or matter and no such
contract, arrangement or transaction shall be avoided on the grounds of any such interest
or benefit

Authorisation of direcfors’ interesls

For the purposes of section 175 of the 2006 Act, the directors shall have the power,
subject to articles 21 10 and 21 11, to authonse any matter which would or might
otherwise constitute or give nse to a breach of the duty of a director under that section to
avold a situation in which he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or
possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company

Authonsation of a matter under article 21 9 shall be effective only I

(a) the matter in question shall have been proposed in wniting for consideration at a
meeting of the directors, in accordance with the Beard's normal procedures or in
such other manner as the directors may determine,

{b) any requirement as to the quorum at the meeting of the directors at which the
matter 1s considered 1s met without counting the director in question and any other
interested director (together, the "Interested Directors”), and

(c) the matter was agreed to without the Interested Directors voting or would have
been agreed to if the votes of the Interested Directors had not been counted

Any authonsation of a matter under article 21 9 may

(a) extend to any actual or potential conflict of interest which may anse out of the
matter so authornised,

(b) be given on such terms, and subject to such conditions or imitations as may be
imposed by the authonsing directors as they see fit from time to time, including,
without limitation

(1) restricting the Interested Director from voting on any resolution put to a
meeting of the directors or of a committee of the directors in relation to the
matter so authensed,
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{n restricting the Interested Director from being counted in the quorum at a
meeting of the directors or of a committee of the directors where the
matter so authonsed 1s to be discussed, or

(m) restricting the application of the provisions in articles 21 13 and 21 14, so
far as i1s permitted by law, in respect of such Interested Director, and

{c) be withdrawn, or vaned at any time by the directors entitled to authonse the
Relevant Interest as they see fit from time to time, and

an Interested Director must act in accordance with any such terms, conditions or
hmitations iImposed on him by the authonsing directors pursuant to such authonsation

Subject to section 239 of the 2006 Act, the Company may by ordinary resolution ratify any
contract, transaction or arrangement, or other proposal, not properly authorised by reason
of a contravention of any provisions of this article 21

Subject to article 21 14 (and without prejudice to any equitable pnnciple or rule of law
which may excuse or release the director from disclosing information, in circumstances
where disclosure may otherwise be required under this article), if a director, otherwise
than by virtue of his position as director, receives information in respect of which he owes
a duty of confidentiality to a person other than the Company, he shall not be required

(a) to disclose such information to the Company or to the directors, or to any director,
officer or employee of the Company, or

(b) otherwise to use or apply such confidential information for the purpose of or in
connechon with the performance of his duties as a director

Where such duty of confidentiality anses out of a situation in which he has, or can have, a
direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the
Company, article 21 13 shall apply only if the conflict anses out of a matier which 1s
permitted by article 21 7 or has been authonsed under article 21 9 (subject to any
restrictions iImposed by the authonsing directors)

Where a director has an interest which can reasonably be regarded as likely to give nise
to a conflict of interest, the director may take such additional steps as may be necessary
or desirable for the purpose of managing such conflict of interest, including comphance
with any procedures laid down from time to time by the directors for the purpose of
managing conflicts of interest generally and/or any specific procedures approved by the
directors for the purpose of or in connection with the situation or matter in gquestion,
ncluding without kmitation

{a) absenting himself from any discussions, whether iIn meetings of the directors or
otherwise, at which the relevant situation or matter falls to be considered, and

(b} excluding himself from documents or information made avallable to the directors
generally in relaton to such situation or matter andfor arranging for such
documents or information to be reviewed by a professional adviser to ascertain
the extent to which it might be appropnate for him to have access to such
documents or information

Prowvisions applicable to declarations of interest

Subject to section 182 of the 2006 Act and articles 21 17 to 21 19, a director shall declare
to the other directors the nature and extent of his interest

(a) if such interest s permitted under article 21 7 and 1s not fully within article 21 7(f),
32




2117

2118

2119

(b) if he 1s In any way, directly or indirectly, interested in a proposed transaction or
arrangement with the Company, or

{(¢) tf he 1s in any way, directly or indirectly, interested in a transaction or arrangement
that has been entered into by the Company, untess the interest has been declared
under article 21 16{a) or 21 16(b)

The declaration of interest must (in the case of article 21 16(c)) and may, but need not (in
the case of article 21 16{a} or 21 16(b) be made

(a) A director need not declare at a meeting of the directors, or
(b) by notice to the directors in accordance with
(n section 184 of the 2006 Act (notice in writing), or

{n section 185 of the 2006 Act (general notice)

an interest
(a) if it cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give nise to a confhct of interest,
{b) if, or to the extent that, the other directors are already aware of it {and for this

purpose the other directors are treated as aware of anything of which they ought
reasonably to be aware), or

(c) if, or to the extent that, it concems terms of his service contract that have been or
are to be considered

()] by a meeting of the directors, or
(n) by a commitiee of the directors appointed for the purpose under the
articles

The following further provisions apply in respect of the declaration of interests

(a) if a declaration of interest proves to be, or becomes, Inaccurate or incomplete, a
further declaration must be made,

(b) any declaration of interest required by articles 21 16(a) or 21 16(c) must be made
as soon as Is reasonably practicable,

(c) any declaration of interest required by artcle 21 16(b) must be made before the
Company enters into the transaction or arrangement,

(d) a declaration in relation to an interest of which the director 1s not aware, or where
the director 1s not aware of the transaction or amangement in question, 1S not
required, for this purpose, a director 1s treated as being aware of matters of which
he ought reasonably to be aware, and

(e) a general notice to the directors that a director 1s to be regarded as having an
interest of the nature and extent specified in the notice in any transaction or
arrangement in which a specified person or class of persons 1s interested shall be
deemed to be a disclosure that the director has an interest in any such transaction
of the nature and extent so specified

Appointment of executive directors
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The Board may from time to time appoint one or more of their body to be the holder of any
executive office (including, where considered appropriate, the office of chairman or deputy
chairman) on such terms and for such period as they may (subject to the provisions of the
Statutes) determine and, without prejudice to the terms of any contract entered into 1n any
particular case, may at any time revoke or vary the terms of any such appointment

Ceasing to be a director

The appointment of any director to the office of chairman or deputy chairman or chief
executive or managing or Joint managing or deputy or assistant managing director shall
automatically determine If he ceases to be a director but without prejudice to any claim for
damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company The
appointment of any director to any other executive office shall not automatically determine
if he ceases from any cause to be a director, unless the contract or resolution under which
he holds office shall expressly state otherwise, in which event such determination shall be
without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service between
him and the Company

Powers of executive directors

The Board may entrust to and confer upon any director holding any executive office any
of the powers exercisable by them as directors upon such terms and conditiens and with
such restnctions as they think fit, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of therr
own powers, and may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such
powers

Meaning of certain terms
For the purposes of this article 21

(a) a conflict of interest includes a conflict of interest and duty and a conflict of duties,
and

{b) the provisions of section 252 of the 2006 Act shall determine whether a person 1s
connected with a director

Appointment and retirement of directors
Power of Company to appoint directors

Subject to the provisions of these articles, the Company may by ordinary resolution
appeint any person who 15 willing to act to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board, but so that the total number of directors shall not at any
time exceed any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with these articles

Power of Board to appoint directors

Without prejudice to the power of the Company in general meeting pursuant to any of the
provisions of these articles to appoint any person to be a director, the Board may appomnt
any person who 1s willing to act to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Board, but so that the total number of directors shall not at any time exceed
any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with these articles Any director so
appointed must retire from office at, or at the end of, the next following annual general
meeting and will then be eligible to stand for election but shall not be taken into account in
determining the directors or the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at that
meeting

Retirement by rotation
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At each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation (or, if their number 1s not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third) shall so retire prowided always that all directors must be
subject to re-election at intervals of no more than three years

Selection of directors lo retire by rotation

The directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the number
required) any director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-elechon  Any
further directors so to retire shall be those of the other directors subject to retirement by
rotation who have been longest in office since their last re-election and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same day those to
retire shall, unless they otherwise agree among themselves, be determined by lot
together with those who in the absence of any such retirement would continue in office for
a penod In excess of three years A retinng director shall be eligible for re-election

Re-election of retiring directors

The Company may, at the meeting at which a director retires under any provision of these
articles, by ordinary resolution fill the office being vacated by electing to that office the
retinng director or some other person eligible for election In default the retinng director
shall be deemed to have been re-elected except in any of the following cases

(a) where at such meeting it 1s expressly resolved not to fill such office or a resolution
for the re-election of such director 1s put to the meeting and lost,

{b) where such director has given notice in wnting to the Company that he 1s unwilling
to be re-elecled, or

{c) where the default 1s due to the moving of a resolution In contravention of the next
following article

Election of two or more directors

A resolution for the election of two or more persons as directors by a single resolution
shall not be moved at any general meeting unless a resolution that it shall be so moved
has first been agreed to by the meeting without any vote being given against it, and any
resolution moved in contravention of this provision shall be void

Timing of retrement

The retirement of a director at any general meeting shall not have effect untll the
conciusion of the meeting except where a resolution 1s passed to elect some other person
in place of the retinng director or a resolution for his re-election 1s put to the meeting and
lost and accordingly a retinng director who 15 re-elected or deemed to have been re-
elected will continue In office without a break

Nomination of director for election

No person other than a director retinng at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election as a director at any general meeting uniess not
fewer than seven nor more than 42 days (inclusive of the date on which the notice 15
given) before the date appointed for the meeting there shall have been lodged at the
Registered Office notice in wniting signed by some member (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice 1s given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
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Vacation of office .
The office of a director shall be vacated if

(a) he ceases to be a dwrector by virtue of any provision of the Statutes or he
becomes prohibited by law from being a director,

{b) he becomes bankrupt, has an intenm recewving order made against him, makes
any arrangement or compounds with his creditors generally or applies to the court
for an intenm order under section 253 of the Insolvency Act 1986 In connection
with a voluntary arrangement under that act,

{c) he 1s, or may be suffenng from mental disorder and either

()] he 1s admitted to hospital In pursuance of an application for admission for
treatment under the Mental Health Act 1983 or, In Scotland, an application
for admission under the Mental Health (Scotland) Act 1 960, or

() an order 1Is made by a court having junsdiction (whether in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere) in matters concerning mental disorder for his
detention or for the appointment of a recewver, curator bonis or other
person to exercise powers with respect to his property or affarrs,

(d) he resigns by wnting under his hand left at the Registered Office or he offers in
wnting to resign and the Board resolves to accept such offer,

{e) he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without
permission of the Board from meetings of the Board held dunng that penod and
the Board resolves that his office be vacated, or

) notice stating he 1s removed from office as a director 1s served upon him signed by
all his co-directors who must account to the members at the next general meeting
of the Company If a director holds an appointment to an executive office which
automatically determines on his removal from office under this or the preceding
sub-paragraph such removal shall be deemed an act of the Company and shall
have effect without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract
of service between him and the Company

Removal of director

The Company may Iin accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Statutes by
ordinary resolution of which special notice has been given remove any director from office
(notwithstanding any provision of these articles or of any agreement between the
Company and such director, but without prejudice to any claim he may have for damages
for breach of any such agreement) and elect another person n place of a director so
removed from office Any person so elected shall be treated for the purpose of
determining the time at which he or any other director 1s to retire by rotation as if he had
become a director on the day on which the director In whose place he 15 elected was last
elected a director In default of such etection the vacancy arnsing upon the removal of a
director from office may be filled as a casual vacancy

Resolution as to vacancy conclusive

A resolution of the Board declanng a director to have vacated office under the terms of
article 22 10 shall be conclusive as to the fact and grounds of vacation stated in the
resolution
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Meetings and proceedings of directors
Convening of meetings of directors

Subject to the provisions of these articles the Board may meet together for the despatch
of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their proceedings as they think fit At any
time any director may, and the Secretary at the request of a director shall, summon a
mesting of the Board Notice of a Board meeting shall be deemed to be properly given to
a director if it 1s given to hum personally or by word of mouth or sent in writing to him at his
last known address or any other address given by him to the Company for that purpose
It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting of the Board to any director for the
time being absent from the United Kingdom Any director may waive notice of any
meeting and any such waiver may be retroactive

Quorum

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business of the Board may be fixed from
time to time by the Board and unless so fixed at any other number shall be two A
meeting of the Board at which a quorum 1s present shall be competent to exercise all
powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by the Board

Chairman

The Board may elect from their number a charman and a deputy chairman (or two or
more deputy chairmen) and deterrmine the penod for which each 1s to hold office and may
at any ime remove him or them from office If no charman or deputy chairman shall have
been appointed or If at any meeting of the Board no chairman or deputy chairman shall be
present within five minutes after the tme appointed for holding the meeting, the directors
present may choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting

Deputy chairman

If at any time there 1s more than one deputy chanman the nght in the absence of the
chainman to preside as chainman at a meeting of the Board or of the Company shall be
determined as between the deputy chainmen present (if more than one) by serionty In
length of appointment or otherwise as resolved by the Board

Casting vote

Questions ansing at any meeting of the Board shall be determined by a majonity of votes
In the case of an equality of votes, the chainman of the meeting shall have a second or
casting vote

Restrictions on voting

A director shall not vote (save as provided in the following two articles) in respect of any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he has an interest
which may reasonably be regarded as likely to give nse to a conflict of interest otherwise
than by virtue of his interests In shares or debentures or other secunties of, or otherwise
in or through, the Company A director shail not be counted in the quorum at a meeting In
relation to any resolution on which he i1s not enttled to vote For the purposes of this
article 23, a conflict of interest includes a conflict of interest and duty and a conflict of
duties

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, a director shall (in the absence of some interest
which may reasonably be regarded as likely to give nse to a conflict of interest other than
1s iIndicated below) be entitled to vote (and be counted In the quorum) in respect of any
resolution
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(a) relating to the giving of any secunty, guarantee or iIndemnity in respect of

0 money lent or obligations incurred by him or by any other person at the
request of or for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings, or

{n) a debt or obhgation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings
for which he himself has assumed responsibility in whole or part under a
guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of secunty,

{b) where the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings 1s offering secunties In
which offer the director 1s ar may be entitled to participate as a holder of secunties
or in the underwnting or sub-underwnting of which the director 1s to participate,

{c) relating to the indemnification (including loans made in connection with 1t) by the
Company of the director in relation to the performance of his duties on behalf of
the Company or of any of its subsidiary undertakings,

(d) relating to another company in which he does not hold an interest in shares (as
that term 1s defined 1n sections 820 to 825 of the 2006 Act) representing one per
cent or more of either any class of the equity share capiial, or the voting nghts in
such company,

(e) relating to a pension, superannuation or similar scheme or retirement, death or
cdisability benefits scheme or employees’ share scheme which has been approved
by HM Revenue & Customs or 1s conditional upon such approval or does not
award him any pnvilege or benefit not awarded to the employees to whom such
scheme relates, or

(f} concerning insurance which the Company proposes to mantain or purchase for
the benefit of directors or for the benefit of persons including directors

Where proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment (including fixing or
varying the terms of appointment) of two or more directors to offices or employments with
the Company or any body corporate in which the Company 1s interested, the proposals
may be divided and considered In relation to each directer separately and in such case
each of the directors concerned (If not debarred from voting under the preceding article)
shall be entitled to vote (and be counted In the quorum) in respect of each resolution
except that concerning his own appointment

If a question anses at any time as to whether the interest of a director (other than a
chairman) may reasonably be regarded as hkely to give nse to a conflict of interest or as
to his enttlement (other than the chairman) to vote in relatien to a transaction or
arrangement with the Company and the question 1s not resoived by his voluntanly
agreeing to abstain from voting, such question shall be referred to the chaiman of the
meeting and his ruling in relation to the director concerned shall be final and conclusive
except In a case where the nature or extent of the interest of director concerned, so far as
known to him, has not been fairly disclosed If any question arises at any meeting as to
the matenality of the chairman's interest or as to the entitlement of the chairman to vote or
be counted in a quorum, and such question 1s not resolved by his voluntarnly agreeing to
abstain from voting or being counted in the quorum, such question shall be decided by
resolution of the directors or committee members present at the meeting {excluding the
chairman) whose majonty vote shall be final and conclusive

Subject to the Statutes, the Company may by ordinary resolution ratify any transaction not
duly authonsed by reason of a contravention of any restrictions in these articles of a
director's entitiement to vote
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For the purposes of article 23 6 to 23 9 (which shall apply equally to alternate directors)
an interest of a person who 1s for the purposes of the Act connected (which word shall
have the meaning given to it by section 252 of the 2006 Act) with a director shall be
treated as an interest of the director and, in the case of an alternate director, an interest of
his appointer shall be treated as an interest of the alternate in addition to any interest
which the alternate otherwise has

Number of directors below minimum

The continuing drrectors may act notwithstanding any vacancies, but if and so long as the
number of directors 1s reduced below the mmimum number fixed by or in accerdance with
these articles the continuing directors or director may act for the purpose of filing such
vacancles or of summoning a general meeting for the purpose of making such
appointment, but not for any other purpose If there are no directors or director able or
willing to act, then any two members may summon a general meeting for the purpose of
appointing directors

Written resolufions

A resolution in writing executed by or on behalf of all the directors entifled to receive
notice of a meeting of directors or of a committee of directors shall be as effectual as If it
had been passed at a meeting of the directors or, as the case may be, a committee of
directors duly convened and held and may consist of several documents each accurately
stating the terms of the resolution and each executed by or on behalf of one or more
directors but a resolution executed by an alternate director need not also be executed by
his appointor and, If It i1s executed by a director who has appointed an alternate director, it
need not also be executed by the alternate director In that capacity Such a resolution
need not be signed by a director who 1s prohibited by these articles from voting on that
matter or by his alternate

Subject to the provisions of the 2006 Act and where the Company has so agreed
(generally or specifically), the confirmation to the Company by a director of his assent to
any resolution by electronic means, sent to the electronic address notified by the
Company for this purpose, shall be deemed to constitute a duly executed document for
the purposes of article 23 13

Validity of proceedings

All acts done by any meeting of the Board, or of any committee of the Board, or by any
person acting as a director or as a member of any such committee, shall as regards all
persons dealing m good faith with the Company, notwithstanding that there was some
defect in the appointment of any of those persons so acting, or that any such persons
were disqualified or had vacated office, or were not entitled to vote, be as vald as if every
such person had been duly appointed and was qualfied and had continued to be a
director or member of the commiitee and had been entitled to vote

Telephone meetings

Any director or hus alternate may participate in a meeting of directors by means of a
conference telephone or similar communications system whereby all those participating in
the meeting can hear and address each other Such participation shall be deemed to
constitute presence In person at such meeting for all purposes Including that of
establishing a quorum and entittement to vote A meeting held by such means shall be
deemed to take place where the largest group of participators in number 1s assembled In
the absence of such a majonty the location of the chairman shall be deemed to be the
place of the meeting A resolution passed at any meeting held in the above manner, and
signed by the chairman of the meeting, shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been
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passed at a meeting of the Board (or commitiee, as the case may be), duly convened and
held

Committees of the directors
Appointment and constitution of committees

The Board may delegate any of their powers or discretions (including without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing all powers and discretions whose exercise involves or may
involve the payment of remuneration to or the confernng of any other benefit on all or any
of the directors) to committees consisting of one or more directors and (if thought fit) one
or more other named persons or person to be co-opted as provided below The Board
may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary any of such powers and discharge
any such committee In whole or in part Insofar as any such power or discretion 1s
delegated to a committee, any reference Iin these articles to the exercise by the Board of
the power or discretion so delegated shall be read and construed as if it were a reference
to the exercise of such power or discretion by such committee Any committee so formed
shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulations which may
from time to time be imposed by the Board Any such regulations may provide for or
authorse the co-option to the committee of persons other than directors and may provide
for members who are not directors to have voting rights as members of the committee but
so that the number of members who are not directors shall be fewer than one-half of the
total number of members of the commitiee

Proceedings of committee meetings

The meetings and proceedings of any such committee consisting of two or more persons
shall (with necessary changes only) be governed by the prowvisions of these aricles
regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Board, so far as the same are not
superseded by any regulations made by the Board under article 24 1

Powers of directors
General powers

The business and affairs of the Company shal be managed by the Board, who may pay
all expenses incurred 1n forming and registering the Company, and may exercise all such
powers of the Company as are not by the Statutes or by these articles required to be
exercised by the Company in general meeting subject nevertheless to any regulations of
these articles, the memorandum of association, to the provisions of the Statutes and to
such regulations as may be prescnbed by special resolution of the Company, but no
regulation so made by the Company shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which
would have been vald if such regulation had not been made The general powers given
by this article 25 1 shall not be limited or restricted by any special authonty or power given
to the Board by any other article

Local boards

The Board may establish any local boards or agencies for managing any of the affairs of
the Company, either in the United Kingdom or elsewhere, and may appoint any persaens
to be members of such local boards, or any managers or agents, and may fix their
remuneration, and may delegate to any local board, manager or agent any of the powers,
authonties and discretions vested in the Board, with power to sub-delegate, and may
authonise the members of any local boards, or any of them, to fill any vacancies in their
number, and to act notwithstanding vacancies, and any such appointment or delegation
may be made upon such terms and subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit,
and the Board may remove any person so appointed, and may annul or vary any such
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delegation, but no person dealing in good faith and without notice of any such annulment
or vanation shall be affected by such annulment or vanation

Appoiniment of attorney

The Board may from time to tme and at any time by power of attorney or otherwise
appoint any company, firm or person or any fluctuating body of persons, whether
nominated directly or indirectly by the Board, to be the attorney or attorneys of the
Company for such purposes and with such powers, authonties and discretions (not
exceeding those vested In or exercisable by the Board under these articles) and for such
penod and subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any such appointment
may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with
any such attorney as the Board may think fit, and may also authonse any such attorney to
sub-delegate all or any of the powers, authonties and discretions vested in him  The
Board may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary any of such powers

President

The Board may from time to time elect a president of the Company and may determine
the penod for which he shall hold office Such president may be either honorary or paid
such remuneration as the Board in its discretion shall think fit, and need not be a director
but shall, if not a director, be entitled to recetve notice of and attend and speak, but not to
vote, at all meetings of the Board

Associate directors

The Board may appoint any person (not being a director) to any office or employment
having a designation or title including the word "director” or attach to any existing office or
employment with the Company such designation or title and may terminate any such
appointment or the use of such designation or title  The inclusion of the word "director” in
the designation or titte of any such office or employment shall not imply that such person
1s, or 1s deemed to be, or 1Is empowered in any respect to act as, a director for any of the
purposes of the Act or these articles

Signature on cheques elc

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange, and other negotiable or
transferable instruments, and all receipts for moneys pad to the Company, shall be
signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may be, in such
manner as the Board shall from time to time by resolution determine

Alternate directors

Any director (other than an alternate director) may at any time by writing under his hand
and deposited at the Registered Office, or delivered at a meeting of the Board, appont
any person (including another director} to be his alternate director and may in like manner
at any time terminate such appomntment Such appointment, unless previously approved
by the Board or unless the appointee 1s another director, shall have effect only upon and
subject to being approved by the Board

The appomntment of an alternate director shall determine on the happening of any event
which If he were a director would cause him to vacate such office or If his appointor
ceases to be a director, otherwise than by retirement at a general meeting at which he 1s
re-elected

An alternate director shall (except when absent from the United Kingdom) be entitled to
receive notices of meetings of the Board and shall be entitted to attend and vote as a
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director at any such meeting at which the director appointing him s not personally present
and generally at such meeting to perform all functions of tis appointor as a director and
for the purposes of the proceedings at such meeting the provisions of these articles shall
apply as If he (instead of his appointor) were a director [f he shall be himself a director
{or shall attend any such meeting as an alternate for more than one director), his voting
nghts shall be cumulative but he shall not be counted more than once for the purposes of
the quorum If tus appointor 1s for the time being temporarily unable to act through 1l
health or disabiity ks Signature to any resolution In writing of the Board shall be as
effective as the signature of his appointor To such extent as the Board may from time to
time determine in relation to any committees of the Board the foregoing provisions of this
article shall also apply with necessary changes only to any meeting of any such
committee of which his appointor 1s a member An aliernate director shall not (save as
aforesaid) have power to act as a director, nor shall he be deemed to be a director for the
purposes of these articles, nor shall he be deemed to be the agent of his appointor

An alternate director shall be entitled to contract and be interested in and benefit from
confracts or arrangements or transactions with the Company and to be repaid expenses
and to be indemntfied to the same extent with necessary changes only as If he were a
director but he shall not be entitled to receive from the Company in respect of his
appointment as alternate director any remuneration except only such part (if any} of the
remuneration otherwise payable to his appointor as such appomntor may by notice in
writing to the Company from time to time direct

Secretary

The Secretary shall be appointed by the Board on such terms and for such pericd as they
may think fit Any Secretary so appointed may at any time be removed from office by the
Board, but without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of
service between him and the Company If thought fit two or more persons may be
appointed as Joint secretanes The Board may also appoint from time to time on such
terms as they may think fit one or more deputy andfor assistant secretares  Any
provision of the Act or the 2006 Act or these articles requinng or authonsing a thing to be
done by or to a director and the Secretary shall not be satisfied by its being done by or to
the same person acting both as director and as, or in place of, the Secretary

Provision for employees

The Board may by resolution exercise any power conferred by the Statutes to make
provision for the benefit of persons employed or formerly employed by the Company or
any of its subsidianes i connection with the cessation or the transfer to any person of the
whole or part of the underiaking of the Company or any of its subsidiaries

Untraceable members

The Company shall be entitled to cease sending dividend warrants by post if such
warrants have been retumed undelivered or left uncashed, provided that this power may
not be exercised until either such warrants have been so returned or left uncashed on two
consecutive occasions or, following one such occasion, reasonable enquines have failled
to establish any new address of the registered holder

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best pnce reasonabiy obtainable at the time
of sale the shares of a member or the shares to which a person 1s entitled by transmission
on death or bankruptcy or otherwise by operation of law provided that this power may not
be exeraised unless

{a) dunng the penod of 12 years prior to the date of the publication of the
advertisements referred to \n sub-paragraph (b) (or, If published on different dates,
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the latest date) no communication has been received by the Company from the
member or the person entitled by transmussion and no cheque or warrant sent by
the Company In respect of the shares has been cashed and no fewer than three
dividends in respect of the shares have become payable dunng such pernod and
no dividend in respect of those shares has been claimed,

{b) the Company shall on expiry of such penod of 12 years have inserted
advertisements In both a national dailly newspaper and in a newspaper Circulating
in the area in which the last known address of the member or the address at
which service of notices may be effected in the manner authonsed by these
articles 1s located giving notice of its intention to sell the shares,

(c) during such pernod of 12 years and the penod of three months following the
publication of such advertisements (or, if pubhished on different dates, the latest
date) and pnor to the exercise of the power of sale, the Company shall have
received no communication from such member or person, and

{d) if the Company has any of its secunties admitted to the Official List of the UK
Listing Authonty or admitted to trading on AIM, notice shall have been given to the
UK Listing Authonty and/or the London Stock Exchange (as the case may be) of
Hs intention to make such sale

To give effect to any such sale pursuant to article 29 2 the Company may appoint any
person to execute as transferor an instrument of transfer of the said shares and such
instrument of transfer shall be as effective as If it had been executed by the registered
holder of or person entitled by transmission on death or bankruptcy or otherwise by
operation of law to such shares and the title of the transferee shall not be affected by any
irregulanty or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the transfer nor shall the transferee
be bound to see the application of the purchase moneys The net proceeds of sale shall
beleng to the Company which shall be obliged to account to the former member or other
person previously entitled for a sum equal to such proceeds and shall enter the name of
such former member or other person in the books of the Company as a creditor for such
sum which shall be a permanent debt of the Company No trust shall he created in
respect of the debt, no interest shall be payable in respect of the same and the Company
shall not be required to account for any money eamed on the net proceeds, which may be
employed in the business of the Company or invested in such investments {other than
shares of the Company or its holding company if any) as the Board may from time to time
think fit

Borrowing powers

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money, to give
guarantees and to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and assets (present and
future) and uncalled capital, and to i1ssue debentures and other secunties, whether
outnght or as collateral security for any debt, hability or obligation of the Company or of
any third party

The seal

The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the common seat of the Company which
shall not be used without the authonty of the Board or of a committee authorised by the
Board in that behalf

Every instrument to which the common seal of the Company shall be affixed shall be
signed by one director and the Secretary or by two directors save that as regards any
certificates for shares or debentures or other secunties of the Company the Board may by
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resolution determine that such signature or either of them be dispensed with or affixed by
some method or system of mechanical signatures

Any instrument signed by one director (in the presence of a withess who attests the
signature) one director and the Secretary or by two directors and expressed to be
executed by the Company shall have the same effect as If executed under the common
seal of the Company, provided that no instrument which makes it clear on its face that it 1s
intended to have effect as a deed shall be so signed without the authonty of the Board or
of a committee authorised by the Board in that behalf

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by the Statutes with regard to having
an official seal for use abroad and such powers shall be vested in the Board

Authentication of documents

Any director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Board for the purpose shall
have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of the Company and
any resolution passed by the Company or the Board or any committee, and any book,
record, document or account relating to the business of the Company and to certify copies
or extracts of such resolution, book, record, document or account as true copies or
extracts, and if any resolution, book, record, document or account 1s elsewhere than at
the Registered Office the local manager or other officer of the Company having the
custedy of them shall be deemed to be a person appointed by the Board A document
purporting to be a copy of a resolution, or an extract from the minutes of a meeting, of the
Company or of the Board or any committee, which 1s certified shall be conclusive
evidence n favour of all persons dealing with the Company upon the faith of such certified
copy that such resolution has been duly passed or, as the case may be, that any minute
50 extracted s a true and accurate record of proceedings at a duly constituted meeting -

Reserves

The Board may from time to time set aside out of the profits of the Company and carry to
reserve such sums as they think proper which, at the discretion of the Board, shall be
applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may properly be applied
and pending such apphcation may either be employed in the business of the Company or
be invested The Board may divide the reserve into such special funds as they think fit
and may consochdate into one fund any special funds or any parts of any special funds into
which the reserve may have been divided The Board may also without placing the same
to reserve carry forward any profits In carrying sums to reserve and in applying the same,
the Board shall comply with the provisions of the Statutes

Dividends
Frnal dividends

Subject to the provisions of the Act andfor the 2006 Act (as applicable} and of these
articles, the Company may by ordinary resoluton declare dwvidends to be pad to
members according to their respective nghts and interests but no such dividends shall
exceed the sum recommended by the Board

Interim dividends

In so far as in the opinion of the Board the profits of the Company justify such payments,
the Board may declare and pay the fixed dividends on any class of shares carrying a fixed
dwvidend expressed to be payable on fixed dates on the half-yearly or other dates
prescribed for the payment of such dividends and may also from ttme to time declare and
pay intennm dividends on shares of any class of such sums and on such dates and In
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respect of such periods as it thinks fit Provided the directors act in good faith they shall
not incur any liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred nights for any loss they
may suffer by the lawful payment of an interim dividend on any shares having deferred or
non-preferred nghts

Ranking of shares for dividend

Unless and to the extent that the nghts attached to any shares or the terms of issue of
such shares otherwise provide, all dividends shall (as regards any shares not fully pad
throughout the penod in respect of which the dividend 1s paid) be apportioned and paid
pro rata according to the sums patd on the shares duning any portion or portions of the
pencd In respect of which the dividend 1s paid For the purposes of this article no sum
paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated as paid on the share

No dividend except out of profits

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits availlable for distnbution under the
provisions of the Statutes

No interest on dividends

No dmidend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share shall bear interest as
against the Company

Retention of dividends

The Board may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share
on which the Company has a hen, and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of
the debts, liabilities or obligations in respect of which the lien exists :

The Board may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any person
1s under the provisions as to the transmission of shares in these arlicles entitled to
become a member, or which any person 1s under those provisions entitled to transfer,
until such person shall become a member In respect of such shares or shall transfer the
same

Waiver of dividend

The waiver in whole orin part of any dividend on any share by any document {(whether or
not executed as a deed) shall be effective only if such document 1s signed by the holder of
such share {or the person becoming entitled to the share in consequence of the death,
bankruptcy or mental disorder of the holder or by operation of law or any other event) and
delivered to the Company and if or to the extent that the same 1s accepted as such or
acted upon by the Company

Unclaimed dividend

All dividends, interest or cther sum payable and unclaimed for 12 months after having
become payable may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for the benefit
of the Company untll clamed and the Company shall not be constituted a trustee n
respect thereof Any dividend unclaimed after a period of twelve years from the date the
dividend became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company

Distribution in specie

The Company may upon the recommendation of the Board by ordinary resotution direct
payment of a dividend in whole or in part by the distnbution of specific assets {and in
particular of paid-up shares aor debentures of any other company) and the Board shall give
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effect to such resolution Where any difficulty anses in regard to such distnbution, the
Board may settle the same as it thinks expedient and 1n particular

(a) may issue fractional certificates,

{b) may fix the value for distnbution of such specific assets or any part of such
specific assets,

{c) may determine that cash payments shall be made to any member upon the
footing of the value so fixed in order to adjust the nghts of all members, and

{d) may vest any such specific assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the
Board

Manner of payment of dividends

Any dividend or other moneys payable in cash on or in respect of 2 share may be paid by
one or more of the following methods to be determined by the Board from time to time as
it sees fit

(a) by cheque, warrant or other financial instrument (made payable to the order of the
person fo whom 1t I1s sent or to such person as the holder or joint holders or
person or persons entitled to the share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy
or mental disorder of the holder or by operation of law or any other event may
direct) sent through the post to the registered address of the member or person
entitted to such dividend or other moneys (or, if two or more persons are
registered as jomt holders of the share or are entiled to such share In
consequence of the death, bankruptcy or mental disorder of the holder or by
operation of law or any other event, to anyone of such persons) or to such person
and such address as such member or person or persons may In writing direct,

(b) by means of the relevant system {including, without limitation, CREST) In respect
of an uncertificated share If the Board decides and the person entitled to payment
has in writing authorised the payment to be made by means of that system, or

{c) by such other methed as the person entitfed to the payment may agree in writing

Payment by cheque or warrant or other financial instrument by the banker upon whom it 1s
drawn shall be a good discharge to the Company Every such cheque or warrant or other
financial instrument shall be sent at the nsk of the person entitled to the money
represented by such cheque or warrant or other financial instrument and shall (where
relevant) be crossed in accordance with the Chegues Act 1992 Payment by bank or
other funds transfer, by means of relevant systems (which, If the relevant system s
CREST, may include the sending by the Company or by any person on its behalf of an
instruction to the QOperator of the relevant system to credit the Cash Memorandum
Account of the holder or joint holders or, If permitted by the Company, of such person as
the holder or joint holders may direct} or by another method at the direction of the
person(s) entitled to payment shall be a good discharge to the Company and the
Company shall have no responsibifity for any amounts lost or delayed in the course of
making that payment If any such cheque, warrant or other financial instrument has been,
or shall be alleged to have been, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Board may, at the request
of the person(s) entitled to it, 1ssue a replacement cheque, warrant or other financial
instrument or other form of payment subject to complance with such conditions as to
evidence and indemnity and the payment of such out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the
Company in connection with the request as the Board may think fit Notwithstanding any
other provision of these articles relating to payments in respect of shares, where
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(a) the Board determines to make payments in respect of uncertificated shares
through the relevant system, it may also determine or enable any holder of
uncertificated shares to elect not to receive dividends through the relevant system
and, in such event, establish procedures to enable such holder to make, vary or
revoke any such election, and

(b) the Company receives an authonty in respect of such payments in respect of
shares in a form satisfactory to it from a holder of any shares (whether such
authority 1s given in writing or by means of the relevant system or otherwise), the
Company may make, or procure the making of, such payments in accordance with
such authonty and any payment made in accordance with such authonty shall
constitute a good discharge therefore

Subject to the provisions of these articles and to the nghts attaching to, or the terms of
issue of, any shares, any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share
may be paid in such currency as the Board may determine

If any dividend or other moneys payable on or In respect of a share are to be paid in a
currency other than sterling, the Board may make such provisions as it thinks fit to enable
such payment to be made, including making arrangements to enable payment to be made
in the relevant currency for value on the date due for payment or on such later date as the
Board may decide

Where a dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share are to be paid in a
currency other than sterling, the rate of exchange to be used to calculate the relevant
amount of foreign currency shall be such market rate selected by the Board as it shall
consider appropnate, ruling at any time between the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the day on which the Board publicly announces its intention to
pay or recommend (as the case may be) the relevant dividend and the close of business
on the day on which that dividend 1s paid

Joint holders

« If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, or are entitled jointly
to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or mental disorder of the holder or
otherwise by operation of law or any other event, anyone of them may give effectual
receipts for any dividend or other money payable or property distributable on or in respect
of the share

Record date for dividends, 1ssues of shares etc

Subject to the Statutes and the requirements of the London Stock Exchange, the
Company Iin general meeting, or the Board by resolution, may specify any date (the
"record date") as the date at the close of business on which persons registered as the
holders of shares shall be enttled to receipt of any dividend, distnbution, interest,
allotment, 1ssue or other nght and such record date may be on, or at any ime before or
after, that on which the resolution 1s passed Upon that date the dividend, distnbution,
interest, allotment, 1ssue or other right shall then be payable or due to them in accordance
with therr respective holdings so registered, but without prejudice to the nghts between
transferors and transferees of any such shares in respect of such dividend, distnbution,
interest, allotment, issue or other nght

Capitalisation of profits and reserves

The Board may, with the sanction of an ordinary resclution of the Company, capitalise any
sum standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve accounts (including any share
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premium account, capital redemption reserve, or other undistributable reserve) or any
sum standing to the credit of profit and loss account

Such capitalisation shall be effected by appropnating such sum to the holders of ardinary
shares on the Regster at the close of business on the date of the resolution {(or such
other date as may be specified in such resolution or determined as provided in such
resolution) in proportion to therr holdings of ordinary shares and applying such sum on
their behalf in paying up n full unissued ordinary shares {or, subject to any special nights
previously conferred on any shares or class of shares for the ime being issued, unissued
shares of any other class not being redeemable shares) for allotment and distnbution
credited as fully patd up to and amongst them in proportion to their holdings

The Board may do all acts and things considered necessary or expedient to give effect to
any such capitalisation, with full power to the Board to make such provision as it thinks fit
for any fractional entitements which would arise on the basis aforesaid (including
provisions whereby fractional entitlernents are disregarded or the benefit of such fractional
enhtlements accrues to the Company rather than to the members concerned) The Board
may authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the members interested into an
agreement with the Company providing for any such capitalisation and matters incidental
to such capitalsation and any agreement made under such authonty shall be effective
and binding on all concerned

Accounts
Accounting records

Accounting records sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
otherwise complying with the Statutes shall be kept at the Registered Office, or at such
other place as the Board thinks fit, and shall always be open to inspection by the officers
of the Company No member of the Company or other person shall have any right of
inspecting any account or book or document of the Company except as conferred by
Statute or these articles or as ordered by a court of competent junsdiction or as
authonsed by the Board

Copres of accounts for members

A copy of every balance sheet and profit and loss account which 1s to be laid before a
general meeting of the Company (including every document required by law to be
comprised in such balance sheet and profit and loss account or attached or annexed to
such balance sheet and profit and loss account) shall no fewer than twenty-one days
before the date of the annual general meeting be sent or supplied to every member of,
and every holder of debentures of, the Company and to every other person whe 1s entitted
to receive notice of meetings from the Company under the provisions of the Statutes or of
these articles Provided that this article shall not require a copy of these documents to be
sent or suppled to any member to whom a summary financial statement 1s sent in
accordance with the Statutes nor to more than one of joint holders nor to any person of
whose address the Company 1s not aware, but any member or holder of debentures to
whom a copy of these documents has not been sent or supplied shall be entitled to
receive a copy free of charge on applicaton at the Registered Office

Auditors
Vahdity of auditor's acts

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, all acts done by any person acting as an auditor
shall, as regards all persons dealing in good faith with the Company, be vald,
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notwithstanding that there was some defect in hus appointment or that he was at the time
of his appointment not qualified for appointment or subsequently became disqualfied

Auditor's nights to attend general meetings

An auditor shall be entitled to attend any general meeting and to receive all notices of and
other communications relating to any general meeting which any member I1s entitled to
receive and to be heard at any general meeting on any part of the business of the
meeting which concerns him as auditor

Notices
Service of notices and other documenis

Subject to the requirements set out in the 2006 Act, any notice given or document sent or
supplied to or by any person under these articles, or otherwise sent by the Company
under the Act or the 2006 Act, may be given, sent or suppled

{a) in hard copy form,

(b) in electromic form, or

{c) (by the Company) by means of a website (other than notices calling a meeting of
directors},

or partly by one of these means and partly by another of these means

Notices shall be given and documents supplied in accordance with the procedures set out
in the 2006 Act, except to the extent that a contrary provision 1s set out In this article 38

Notices in hard copy form

Any notice or other document in hard copy form given or supphed under these articles
may be dehvered or sent by first class post (airmail if averseas)

{(a) to the Company at the Registered Office or any other company at its registered
office, or

(b) to the address notified to or by the Company for that purpose, or

(c) in the case of a member or his legal personal representative or trustee In
bankruptcy, to such member's address as shown n the Register, or

{(d) in the case of an intended recipient who 1s a director or alternate, to his address
as shown in the register of directors, or

(e) to any other address to which any provision of the Companies Acts (as defined in
the 2006 Act) authonses the document or information to be sent or supplied, or

(i where the Company 1s the sender, If the Company 1s unable to obtain an address
falling within one of the addresses referred to in (a) - (e) above, to the intended
recipient’s last address known to the Company

In the case of a member registered on a branch register, iIf any such notice or document I1s
posted in hard copy or electronic form it may be posted either in the United Kingdom or in
the terntory in which such branch register 1s maintaned

Any notice or other document in hard copy form given or supplied under these articles
shall be deemed to have been served and be effective

49




385

386

387

388

(a) if delivered, at the time of delivery, and

(b} if posted, on receipt or 48 hours after the time 1t was posted, whichever occurs
first

Notices in electromic form

Subject to the provisions of the 2006 Act, any notice or other document in electronic form
given or supphed under these articles may

(a) if sent by fax or email (provided that a fax number or an address for email has
been notified {o or by the Company for that purpose), be sent by the relevant form
of electronic communication to that address,

(b) if delvered or sent by first class post (armail if overseas) in an electronic form
(such as sending a disk by post), be so delivered or sent as If in hard copy form
under article 38 2, or

{c) be sent by such other electronic means (as defined in section 1168 of the 2006
Act) as the Company may specify

(n on its website from time to ime, or

(n) by notice (in hard copy or electronic form) to all members of the Company
from time to time

Any notice or other document in electronic form given or supplied under these articles
shall be deemed to have been served and be effective

(a) if sent by facsimile or email {(where a fax number or an address for email has been
notified to or by the Company for that purpose), on receipt or 48 hours after the
ttime It was sent, whichever occurs first,

{b) if posted in an electronic form, on receipt or 48 hours after the time 1t was posted,
whichever accurs first,

{c) If delivered in an electronic form, at the time of delivery, and

(d) if sent by any other electronic means as referred to 1n article 38 5(c) above, at the
time such delivery 1s deemed to occur under the 2006 Act

Where the Company 1s able to show that any notice or other document given or sent
under these articles by electronic means was properly addressed with the electrenic
address supphed by the intended recipient, the giving or sending of that notice or other
document shall be effective notwithstanding any receipt by the Company at any time of
notice either that such method of communication has falled or of the intended recipient's
non-receipt

Notice by means of a website

Subject to the provisions of the 2006 Act, any notice or other document or information to
be given, sent or suppled by the Company to members under these articles (or to any
other person with nghts to receive copies of such notices or other documents or
information to be given, sent or supplied by the Company to members) may be given,
sent or supplied by the Company by making it availlable on the Company's website

General
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The accidental omission to give notice to or the non-receipt of notice by any person
entitled to such notice shall not iInvalidate any general meeting or any proceedings at such
general meeting

Without prejudice to article 38 9, where the Company 1s able to show that any notice of
general meeting or other notice or document sent by electronic means was property
addressed with the electronic address supplied by the intended recipient, the giving of
that notice or sending of that document shall be effective notwithstanding any receipt by
the Company at any time of notice either that such method of communication has failled or
of the intended recipient's non-receipt

Without prejudice to arhicle 38 9, where notice 1s given or document sent by means of a
website, the accidental failure to make the notice or document available on the website
throughout the requisite period shall, subject to the provisions of the 2006 Act, not
invahdate any general meeting or any proceedings at such general meeting and the giving
of that notice or sending of that document shall be effective

A member present either in person or by proxy, at any meeting of the Company or the
holders of any class of shares in the Company shall be deemed to have receved notice of
the meeting and, where requisite, of the purpose for which it was called

Jomnt holders

Any notice given to the joint holder of a share wheose name stands first in the Register in
respect of the share (the "Primary Holder") shall be sufficient notice to all the joint
holders n their capacity as such For such purpose a joint holder having no registered
address in the United Kingdom and not having supphed an address withun the United
Kingdom for the service of notices shall be disregarded for the purposes of determining
the Primary Holder

Anything agreed or specified by the Pnmary Holder in relation to the service, sending or
supply of notices, documents or other information shall be treated as the agreement or
specification of all the joint holders m thewr capacity as such (whether for the purposes of
the 2006 Act or otherwise}

Deceased and bankrupt members

A person entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or mental disorder
of a member or by operation of law or any other event upon suppiying to the Company
such evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show his title to the share, and
upon supplying also an address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices, shall
be entitled to have served upon or delivered to him at such address any notice or
document to which the member but for his death or bankruptey or other event would be
entitled, and such service or delivery shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service
or delvery of such notice or document on all persons mnterested {whether jointly with or as
claiming through or under him) in the share Save as aforesaid any notice or document
delivered or sent by post to or left at the address of any member in pursuance of these
articles shall, notwithstanding that such member is then dead or bankrupt or in hquidation,
and whether or not the Company has received notice of his death or bankruptcy or
hguidation, be deemed to have been duly served or delivered in respect of any share
registered in the name of such member as sole or first-named joint holder

Overseas members

A member who (having no registered address within the United Kingdom) has not
supplied to the Company either an address within the United Kingdom or a valid emall
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address for the service of notices shall not be entitled to receive notices from the
Company

Suspension of postal services

If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtallment of postal services or threat
thereof within the United Kingdom the Company 1s or would be unable to convene a
general meeting effectively by notices sent through the post, a general meeting may be
convened by a notice adverlised on the same date In no fewer than one national dailly
newspaper published in the United Kingdom with appropnate circulation and, where the
Company keeps an overseas branch register, tn at least one daily newspaper published in
the terntory where such register 1Is maintained and such notice shall be deemed to have
been duly served on all members entitled to such notice at noon on the day when the
advertisement appears In any such case the Company shall send confirmatory copies of
the notice by post If at least seven days prior to the meeting the posting of notices to
addresses throughout the United Kingdom again becomes practicable

Statutory requirements as to notices

The provisions In these articles regarding the serving of notices and other documents are
subject to any requirements In the Statutes that a particular offer, notice or other
document be served in any particular manner

Destruction of documents
The Company may destroy

(a) any share certificate which has been cancelled at any time after the expiry of one
year from the date of such cancellation,

(b) any vanation or cancellation of any dividend mandate at any time after the expiry
of two years from the date such vanation or cancellation was recorded by the
Company,

{c) any notification of change of name or address at any time after the expiry of two
years from the date such notfication was recorded by the Company,

(d) any instrument of transfer of shares which has been registered at any time after
the expiry of six years from the date of reqistration, and

(e) any other document on the basis of which any entry in the Register 1s made at any
time after the expiry of six years from the date an entry in the Register was first
made in respect of it,

and 1t shall conclusively be presumed in favour of the Company that every share
certificate so destroyed was a vald certificate duly and properly cancelled and that every
instrument of transfer so destroyed was a valid and effective instrument duly and properly
registered and that every other document destroyed under this aricle was a vald and
effective document in accordance with the recorded particutars of that document in the
books or records of the Company Provided always that

f)] the faregaing provisions of this article shall apply only to the destruction of
a document in good faith and without express notice to the Company that
the preservation of such document was relevant to a claim,

()] nothing contained in this article shall be construed as imposing upon the
Company any hability in respect of the destruction of any document earlier
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than as stated in this article or in any case where the conditions of proviso
(1) are not fulfilled, and

(nr) references in this article to the destruction of any document include
references to its disposal in any manner

Winding up
Directors’ power to petition

The Board shall have power in the name and on behalf of the Company to present a
petition to the court for the Company to be wound up

Distribution of assets in specie

If the Company shall be wound up (whether the liquidation 1s voluntary, under supervision,
or by the court) the hquidator may, with the authonty of a special resolution and subject to
any provision sanctioned in accordance with the provisions of the Insclvency Act 1986,
divide among the members in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the
Company and whether or not the assets shall consist of property of one kind or shall
consist of properties of different kinds, and may for such purpose set such value as he
deems fair upon anycne or more class or classes of property and may determine how
such dwision shall be camed out as between the members or different classes of
members The hquidator may, with the like authonty, vest any part of the assets In
trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of members as the hquidator with the like
authonty shall think fit, and the hquidation of the Company may be closed and the
Company dissolved, but so that no contnbutory shall be compelled to accept any shares
or other property in respect of which there ts a liabiity The Iiquidator may make any
provision referred to in, and sanctioned in accordance with the prowvisions of the
Insolvency Act 1986

Transfer or sale under sechion 110 Insolvency Act 1986

A special resolution sanctioning a transfer or sale to another company duly passed
pursuant to section 110 of the Insolvency Act 1986 may in the ke manner authornise the
distnbution of any shares or other consideration receivable by the liquidator among the
members otherwise than i accordance with ther existng nghts and any such
determination shall be binding on all the members subject to the nght of dissent and
consequential nghts conferred by that section

Indemnity

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Statutes, every director
or other officer of the Company (excluding the Company's auditors) shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company (and the Company shall also be able to indemnify directors
of any associated company (as defined in section 256 of the 2006 Act)) out of the
Company's assets agamnst all habihtes incurred by him i the actual or purported
execution or discharge of his duties or the exercise or purported exercise of his powers or
otherwise 1n relation to or in connection with his duties, powers or office, provided that no
director of the Company or any assocociated company 1s indemnified by the Company
against

(a) any habilty incurred by the director to the Company or any associated company,
or
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(b) any lrabihty incurred by the director to pay a fine mposed in cnminal proceedings
or a sum payable to a regulatory authonty by way of a penalty in respect of non-
compliance with any requirements of a regulatory nature, or

(c) any labihty incurred by the director
{ in defending any criminal proceedings 1in which he 1s convicted,

(n in defending civil proceedings brought by the Company or any associated
company in which final judgment (withuin the meaning set out In section
234 of the 2006 Act) 1s given against him, or

() In connection with any application under sections 144(3) or 144(4) or 727
of the Act or sections 661(3) or 661(4) or 1157 of the 2006 Act (as the
case may be) for which the court refuses to grant him relief,

save that, in respect of a provision indemnifying a director of a company (whether or not
the Company) that Is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme {as that term 1s used In
section 235 of the 2006 Act) against liability incurred In connection with that company's
actvities as trustee of the scheme, the Company shall also be able to Indemnify any such
director without the restricttons in articles 41 1 (a), 41 1 (c)(u) and 41 1 (c}m) applying

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Statutes, and without
prejudice to article 41 1, the Board shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance
at the expense of the Company for or for the benefit of any persons who are or were at
any time directors, officers or employees or auditors of any Relevant Company (as
defined in the following article} or who are or were at any time trustees of any pension
fund or employees’ share scheme 1in which employees of any Relevant Company are
interested, including {(without prejudice to the generalty of the foregoing} insurance
agamst any hability incurred by such persons in respect of any negligence, default, breach
of duty or breach of trust of which they may be guilty in relation to a Relevant Company
ansing out of any act or omission in the actual or purported execution or discharge of their
duties or in the exercise or purported exercise of theirr powers or otherwise In relation to
thewr duties, powers or offices in relation to any Relevant Company, or any such pension
fund or employees’ share scheme

For the purpose of article 41 2, "Relevant Company” shall mean the Company, any
holding company of the Company or any other body, whether or not mncorporated, n
which the company or such holding company or any of the predecessors of the Company
or of such holding company has or had any interest whether direct or indirect or which is
in any way allied to or associated with the Company, or any subsidiary undertaking of the
Company or of such other body
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